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Name of Registrant as specified in its charter GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC.

Metro Manila, Philippines

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization
SEC Identification Number AS094-44.62

BIR Tax Identification Code 000-426-523-000

7% Floor, Renaissance Tower, Meralco Avenue, Pasig City 1600
Address of principal office Postal Code
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code 76-3376:576-

27 June 2013, 9:00 A.M,, Grand Ballroom, Eastwood Richmonde Hotel
Orchard Road, Eastwood City, Bagumbayan, Quezon City, Philippines

Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

05 June 2013

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security holders

[No Proxy Solicitations)

. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA

(information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate registrants):
Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock
- Outstanding or Amount of Debt Outstanding
{As of 14 May 2013)
Common shares . : ' 8,486,000,000

Are any or all of registrant's securities listed on a Stock Exchange?

Yes__ v No

The Registrant’s common shares are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange.
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GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS. INC.

NOTICE AND AGENDA OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC. (the “Company”) will hold its Annual
Meeting of Shareholders (the “Annual Meeting”) at the Grand Ballroom, Eastwood Richmonde Hotel, Orchard
Road, Eastwood City, Bagumbayan, Quezon City on Thursday, 27 June 2013 at 9:00 in the morning.

The AGENDA for the Annual Meeting shall be as follows:

1. Call to order :

2. Certification of Notice and Quorum

3. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held on 28 June 2012

4, Annual Report of Management

5. Approval of the 2012 Audited Financial Statements

6. Ratification of all acts and resolutions of the Board of Directors and Corporate Officers adopted
during the preceding year

7, Election of Directors (including Independent Directors) for the ensuing year

8.  Appointment of External Auditors

9. Other matters as may properly come before the meeting

10.  Adjournment

Only shareholders of record at the close of business hours on 14 May 2013 are entitled to notice and to vote
at the Annual Meeting.

Registration for the Annual Meeting will start at 8:00 A.M. and will close at 8:50 A.M. For your convenience in
registering your attendance, please present some valid form of identification such as Passport, Driver's
License, or Company ID.

WE ARE NOT SOLICITING YOUR PROXY. However, if you are unavailable to attend the Annual Meeting but
would like to be represented thereat, you may at your option appoint a representative by accomplishing the
attached Proxy Form and submitting the same to the Office of the Corporate Secretary of the Company, 6t
Floor Renaissance Tower, Meralco Avenue, Ortigas, Pasig City, Metro Manila not later than end of business
hours on 20 June 2013. Validation of the written proxies shall be held at the same office on 21 June 2013 at
10:00 AM,

By Order of the Board of Directors.

Pasig City, 24 May 2013.

U~

ATTY. DOMINIC V. ISBERTO
Corporate Secretary
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PROXY

The undersigned shareholder(s) of GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC. (the “Company) hereby appoint/s
or in his absence, the Chairman of the Annual Shareholders’
Meeting, as proxy of the undersigned shareholder(s) at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders scheduied on 27
June 2013 at 9:00 in the morning at the Grand Ballroom, Eastwood Richmonde Hotel, Orchard Road,
Eastwood City, Bagumbayan, Quezon City and/or at any postponement or adjournment thereof, and/or any
annual shareholders’ meeting of the Company, which appointment shall not exceed five (5) years from date
hereof,

The undersigned shareholder(s) hereby direct/s the said proxy to vote all shares on the agenda items set
forth below as expressly indicated by marking the same with [V] or [X]:

ITEM NO. SUBJECT ACTION
FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN
3 Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders held on 28 lune 2012
5 Approval of the 2012 Audited Financial Statements
6 Ratification of all acts and resolutions of the Board

of Directors and Corporate Officers adopted during

the preceding year

7 Election of Directors (including Independent Directors) far the ensuing year:

Andrew L. Tan

Robert John L. Sobrepefia

Ferdinand T. Santos

Wilbur L. Chan

Lourdes T. Gutierrez

Garry V. de Guzman

Robert Edwin C. Lim

Miguel B. Varela - Independent Director

Gerardo C. Garcia - Independent Director

8 Appointment of Punongbayan & Araulle as External

Auditors '

9 ‘| Authority to vote, at the proxy’s own discretion, on

such other matters as may properly come before
the meeting :

. PRINTED NAME OF SHAREHOLDER SIGNATURE OF SHAREHOLDER/ NUMBER OF SHARES DATE
o AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY TO BE REPRESENTED ‘

This proxy should be received by the Corporate Secretary not later than end of business hours on 20 June 2013,

This proxy when properly executed will be voted in the manner as directed herein by the shareholder. if no direction is
‘made, the proxy will be voted for the election of all nominees and for the dpproval of all matters stated above and for such
other matters as may properly come before the meeting in the manner described in the information statement.

A shareholder giving a proxy has the power to revoke it at any time before the right granted is exercised. A proxy is also
considered revoked if the shareholder attends the.meeting in person and expressed his intention to vote in person.

This proxy does not need to be notarized. (Partnerships; Corporations and Associations must attach certified resolutions
thereof designating Proxy/Representative and Authorized Signatories.)
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" PARTI

A, GENERAL INFORMATION
iITEM 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders

(a} The Annual Meeting of the Shareholders of Global-Estate Resorts, Inc. (the “Corporation”) is
scheduled to be held on 27 June 2013, 9:00 in the morning at the Grand Ballroom, Eastwood
Richmonde Hotel, Orchard Road, Eastwoaod City, Bagumbayan, Quezon City, Philippines.

The complete mailing address of the principal office of the registrant is 7t Floor, Renaissance
Towers, Meralco Avenue, Pasig City.

(h} The approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security
holders is on or before 05 June 2013.

The Corporation is not soliciting any proxy -
WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY.

ITEM 2. Dissenters' Right of Appraisal

A shareholder has the right to dissent and demand payment of the fair value of his shares in the
following instances stated in the Corporation Code, to wit:

(1) In case any amendment to the Articles of Incorporation has the effect of changing or
restricting the rights of any shareholder or class of shares, or authorizing preferences
in any respect superior to those of outstanding shares of any class, or of extending or
shortening the term of corporate existence (Section 81);

(2}  Incase of sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposition of all or
substantially all of the corporate property and assets (Section 81);

{3) In case of merger or consolidation of the Corporation with or into another entity
{Section 81}; and,

(4} In case of any investment of corporate funds in any other corporation or business or
for any purpose other than the primary purpose for which the Corporation was
organized (Section 42). . :

The procedures and conditions for the exercise by a dissenting shareholder of his appraisal right
shall be in accordance with Sections 81 to 86 of the Corporation Code, to wit:

(1)  Ashareholder voted against a proposed action of the Corporation;

{2) + The dissenting shareholder shall make a written demand on the Corporation within
thirty (30) days after the date on which the vote was taken for payment of the fair
value of his shares. The failure of the shareholder to make the demand within the
thirty (30)-day period shall be deemed a waiver of his appraisal right;

(3) If the proposed corporate action is implemented, the Co'rp'oration shall pay to such
shareholder, upon surrender of the corresponding certificates of stock representing
his shares within ten (10) days after demanding payment for his shares (See Section

- ‘”Page .
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£6), the fair market value thereof as of the day prior to the date on which the vote was
taken;

(4)  If the dissenting shareholder and the Corporation cannot agree on the fair value of the
shares within sixty (60) days from the date of shareholders’ approval of the corporate
action, then the fair value of the shares shall be determined and appraised by three (3)
disinterested persons, cne (1) of whom shall be named by the dissenting shareholder,
one (1) by the Corporation and a third to be named by the two already chosen. The
findings of the majority of the appraisers shall be final and their award shall be paid
by the Corporation within thirty (30) days after such award.

(5) No payment shall be made to any dissenting shareholder unless the Corporation has
unrestricted retained earnings in its books to cover such payment.

(6) Upon payment of the agreed or awarded price, the shareholder shall transfer his
shares to the Corporation.

The proposed corporate actions to be voted upon at the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting are not
among the matters provided under the Corporation Code which will give rise to the possible
exercise of appraisal right by a dissenting shareholder.

ITEM 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

(a} No director, officer, or nominee for election as director, or the associate of any of the foregoing, has
- any-substantial interest, direct or indirect, by security holdings or otherwise, in any matter which
will be acted upon during the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting, other than election to office.

)] No director has informed the Corporation in writing that he intends to oppose any action to be taken
by the Corporation at the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting,

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION |
ITEM 4., Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof
(a) Number of Shares Qutstanding

The Corporation has 8,486,000,000 common shares outstanding as of 14 May 2013. Each of the
commen shares is entitled to one (1) vote with respect to all matters to be taken up during the
Annual Shareholders’ Meeting. :

(b) Record Date

_Under the By-L.aws of the Corporation, for the purpese of determining the shareholders entitled to
notice of or to vote at any meeting of sharehoiders or any adjournment thereof, the Board of
Directors may provide that the stock and transfer books be ¢losed for a stated period which shall
not be more than sixty (60) days nor less than thirty {30) days before the date of such meeting. In
the event that the Board fails to specify a date for the closing of the stock and transfer books, the
closing date shall be deemed to be the thirtieth (30™) calendar day prior to the intended date of the
meeting. In lieu of closing the stock and transfer books, the Board may fix in advance a date as the
record date for any such determination of stockholders which shall not be less than twenty (20)
days prior the meeting. Pursuant to these By-Laws provisions, the Board of Directors of the
Corparation set 14 May 2013 as the record date for determining the shareholders entitled to notice
and to vote at the said Annual Shareholders’ Meeting on 27 June 2013. As such, only shareholders
as of such record date are entitled to notice and to vote at the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting.

Tsi{rage
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{c)

(d)

Cumulative Voting Rights

All shareholders have cumulative voting rights with respect to the election of the members of the
Board of Directors of the Corporation, Cumulative voting entitles each shareholder to cast the vote to
which the number of shares he owns entitles him for as many persons as the number of directors to
be elected multiplied by the number of his shares shall equal, or he may distribute them on the same
principle among as many candidates as he may see fit, provided, that the whole number of votes cast
by him shall not exceed the number of shares owned by him multiplied by the whole number of
directars to be elected. (Section 7, Article V of the By-Laws)

For other matters requiring shareholders’ approval, each shareholder is entitled to one vote for each
share of stock standing in his name in the books of the Corporation. (Section 6, Article V of the By-
Laws) .

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners and Management

{i}) Security ownership of certain record and beneficial owners

. Security ownership of certain record and beneficial owners owning more than five percent (5%) of

any class of the Corporation's voting securities as of 14 May 2013 -

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN RECORD AND BENEFICAL OWNERS

DEFINITIVE INFORMATION STATEMENT

Title of Name, address of Name of Citizen- | No. of Shares Percent
Class record owner and Beneficial ship Held (Based on
relationship with issuer | Owner and total
Relationship shares)
with Record
Owner
Common | Alliance Global Group, Alliance Global | Filipino | 5,405,000,000 63.69%
shares Inc. Group, Inc.
7th/F 1880
Eastwood Avenus,
Eastwood City, E.
Rodriguez Jr.
Avenue,
Bagumbayan,
Quezon City
Common - | PCD Nominee ~ Various Filiping | 1,396,661,058 16.46%
shares Corporation (Filipinc) _shareholders - ,
6/F MKSE Bldg. C x
Avala Avenue,
Makati City
Common | Fil-Estate Management, Fil-Estate Filipino | 1,112,774,606 13.11%
shares Inc. - Management, -
6/F Renaissance Tower, ~ne.
Meralco Avenue, Pasig
City
Common | PCD Nomines
T




shares Corporation  {Foreign) Various Foreign 457,878,360 5.40%
6/F MKSE Bldg. Ayala | shareholders
Avenue, Makati City

Other than the ahovementioned, the Corporation has no knowledge of any person who, as of 14 May
2013, is directly or indirectly the beneficial owner of, or who has voting power or investment power
(pursuant to a voting trust or other similar agreement) with respect to shares comprising more than
five percent (5%) of the outstanding capital stock of the Corporation.

(ti) Security ownership of Management

security ownership of directors and executive officers of the Corporation as of 14 May 2013
representing original issues and stock dividends -

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT

| Title of Name of Beneficial Owner | Amount and Nature of | Ci-ti-ze'nship- | Percent of
Class 7 Beneficial Ownership Class
.Common Andrew L. Tan 1 {direct) Filipino | 0.00%
5,405,000,000 (indirect)! 63.69%
Common Robert John L. Sobrepefia 1,617 485 (direct) Filipino 0.02%

, 1,112,774,606 (indirect) 2 13.11%
Common Ferdinand T. Santos 30,009 (direct) | Filipino 0.00%
Common | Wilbur L. Chan 2,611,826 (direct) . |  Fllipino 0.03%
Common Miguel B. Varela 511 (direct)? | _Filipino 0.00%
Common . | Garry V. de Guzman 1 (direct) Filipino 0.00%
_E‘ommon 1 Lourdes T. Gutierrez _ 1 (direct) , _ Filipino 0.00%
l(_)or.nmon Robert Edwin C. Lim ~ 1 (direct) Filipino 0.00%
Common . | Gerardo C. Garcia LS T M(directy - | Filipino |- 0.00%

| — _ Other Executive Officers
Common _ Roberto S. Roco ‘ 7'26'6‘.448 -(direct) ) _ Filipino |~ 0.00%
Common Emelyn C. Martinez 0 Filipino n/a

! The shares are directly held by Alliance Global Group, Inc. (AGI). However, Andrew L, Tan, in his capacxty as Cha|rman of the
' Board orin his absence the Corporate Secretary, Is authorized to vote AGl's common shares in the Corporation.
The shares are directly held by Fil-Estate Management Inc. (FEM!). However, Robert John L. Schrepefia, in his capacity as
Chairman of the Board, or in his absence the Chairman of the Meeting, is authorized to vote FEMI's commaon shares in the
Corporation,

Five hundred ten (510) out of the five hundred eleven (511) shares are registered in the books of the Corporation under the
names “MIGUEL B. VARELA &'CR CECILIA M. VARELA."

7\ Page
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Commen Jennifer L. Romualdez 0 Filipino n/a
Common Abraham M. Mercado 0 Filipino nia
Common Catherine D. Marcelo 0 Filipino n/a
Commoen Atty. Dominic V. Isberto 0 Filipino n/a
Common Rolando D. Siatela 0 Filipina n/a
Aggregate for above named Directors 4,526,284 0.0533%*
and Officers as a Group

(ifi)

Yoting Trust Holders of 5% or more -

The Corporation has no knowledge of persons holding more than five percent (5%) of its voting
securities under a voting or similar agreement.

No change in control of the Corporation occurred since the beginning of its last fiscal year. Neither
does the Corporation have any knowledge of any arrangement which may result in a change in

(e) Changes in Control

control of the Corporation.
ITEM 5. Directors and Executive Officers
(a) -

Incumbent Directors, Independent Directors, and Executive Officers

The following are the names, ages, citizenship and periods of service of the incurnbent directors and
independent directors of the Corporation:

Name Age Citizenship Pefiod during which individual has
- served as such .
Andrew L. Tan 63 .. Filipino January 2011 up to present
Robert John L. Sobrepefia 87 -« Filipino - 1994 up to present
.Ferdinand T. Santos 62 “Filiping - 1994 up to present ‘
Wilbur L. Chan 53 Filipino January 2011-up to present
Lourdes T. Gutierrez T 49 Filipino June 2011 up to present

4

Does not include the shares directly owned by AGI and by FEMI.
® Supra
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Garry V. de Guzman 45 Filipino January 2011 up to present

Robert Edwin C. Lim 55 Filipino ~ June 2011 up to present

Miguel B. Varela 73 Filipino September 2012 up to present
{Independent Director)

Gerardo C. Garcia 71 Filipino August 2011 up to present
(Independent Director) : -

The following are the names, ages, positions, citizenship and periods of service of the incumbent
executive officers of the Corporation:

Name Age Position Citizenshi Period during
: p which individual
has served as such
Andrew L. Tan 63 | . Chairman & CEQ Filipino January 2011 up to
‘ present
Robert John L. Sobrepefia 57 Co-Chairman Fifipino January 2011 up to
A present
Wilbur L. Chan 53 | Executive Director - Filipino August 2011 up to
present
Ferdinand T. Santos 62 - President Filipino 1294 up to present
‘Roberto-S. Roco : 60 | Chief Financial Officer | Filipino | 1995 up to present
Garry V. de'Guzman A45.4 - - Treasurer _Filipino - January 2011 up to
e o ‘ o ‘present
- Atty. Dominic V. Isberto .38 .|, Corporate Secretary ' Filipino - | . January 2011 upto
e . present
Rolando D. Siatela 52 Assistant Corporate -'Filipino | January 2011 up to
' Secretary ] present ’
Emelyn C. Martinez 43 SVP for Legal Division Filipino February 2012 up to
present

DEFINITIVE INFORMATION STATEMENT



Jennifer L. Romualdez 43 VP for Contracts, Filipino July 2012 up to present
Procurement and
Management
Catherine D. Marcelo 37 VP for HR & Corporate Filipino January 2011 up to
Services present
Abraham Ramon M. 34 | VP for Sales & Marketing Fitipino January 2011 up to
Mercado present

The term of office of these executive officers is coterminous with that of the Directors who elected or
appointed them, unless such officers are sooner removed for cause.

Brief Background of the Directors and Officers

The business experiences of the Directors and Executive Officers of the Corporation for the last five
(5) years are as follows:

Board of Directors -

ANDREW L. TAN, Filipino, 63 years old, was elected as Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company on 12 January 2011. He is also the Chairman of the Board of Alliance Global
Group, Inc. since 2006. He has broad experience in the real estate, food and beverage, and quick
_service restaurants industries. Mr. Tan is concurrently the Chairman of the Board and President of
Megaworld Corporation, Megaworld Land, Inc, Megaworld Globus Asia, Inc,, Megaworld Newport -
Property Holdings, [nc., Mactan Oceanview Properties and Holdings, Inc., Richmonde Hotel Group
International Limited, The Bar Beverage, Inc. and Yorkshire Holdings, Inc. He is also the Chairman of
Alliance Global Group Cayman Islands, Inc., Empire East Land Holdings, Inc,, Alliance Global Brands,
Inc, Suntrust Properties, Inc., Adams Properties, Inc.,, Townsquare Development, Inc.,, and Emperador
Distillers, [nc. He sits in the boards of Megaworld Cayman Islands, Inc, Forbes Town Properties &
Holdings, Inc., Gilmore Property Marketing Associates, Inc, Eastwood Cyber One Corporation,
Megaworld Central Properties, Inc,, Raffles & Company, Inc., Travellers International Hotel Group,
. Inc, The Andresons Group, Inc, Fairways & Bluewater Resort Golf & Country Club, Inc. and Twin
-Lakes Corporation He is also the Vice-Chairman and Treasurer of Golden Arches Development.
-Cerporation-and Golden Arches Reéalty Corporation and a Director and Treasurer of Andresons
Global, Inc. Mr. Tan graduated Magna Cum Laude from the University of the East with a degree of
Bachelor of Science in Business Administration.
ROBERT JOHN L. SOBREPENA, Filipino, 57 years old, is Co-Chairman of the Board. Currently, he is
also the Chairman of the Board of various companies such as Fil-Estate Management Inc., Fil-Estate
Corporation, Fii-Estate Properties Inc., Fil-Estate .Ecocentrum Corp., Fil-Estate Golf & Devetopment -
Inc,, Fil-Estate Urbar & Development Corporation, Fil-Estate Realty Corporation, Fil-Estate Marketing
Association, Inc, Fil-Estate Network, [nc,, Camp John Hay Development Corporation, Camp John Hay
Hotel, Inc., Sherwood Hills Development, Inc., Club Leisure Management, Inc, Manila Southwoods
Golf & Country-Club, Sherwood Hills Golf & Country Club, Camp John Hay Goif Club, Summit Estate
Realty & Development Corporation, Pacific Touch Group Ltd., Metro Rail Transit Holdings, Inc., Metro
Rail Transit Holdings II, Inc., Metro Rail Transit Corporation, MRT Development Corporation, and
Monumento Rail Transit Corporation, A member of the American Chamber of Commerce and the
Rotary Club of Manila, he earned his Bachelor’s Degree in Psychology and Marketing from the De La
Salle University in 1978.

e b { 5 ag .
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WILBUR L. CHAN, Filiping, 53 years old, was appeinted as Executive Director of the Company on 01
August 2011. He is currently the Chairman and Director of Fairways & Bluewater Resorts Golf &
Country Club, Inc, He is also Director in the following corporations: Harbortown Development
Corporation, La Compafia de Sta. Barbara, Inc., Sto. Domingo Place Development Corporation, Fil-
Estate Urban Development Corporation, Blue Sky Airways, Inc, Fil-Estate Ecocentrum Corporation,
and MRT Development Corporation. He is alse a Director in Uni-Asia Properties,Inc. He has a Masters
Degree in Business Management at Asian [nstitute of Management, Masters Degree in National
Security Administration (Silver Medalist) at National Defense College of the Philippines and a Degree
in Command & General Staff Course at Command & General Staff College.

FERDINAND T. SANTOS, Filipino, 62 years old, is currently the President of the Company. He has
been with the Company since its incorporation in 1994, He is also the President of Fil-Estate
Management Inc, Fil-Estate Development Inc, Fil-Estate Properties Inc, Fairways & Bluewater
Resort Golf & Country Club, Inc, MRT Development Corporation, St. Benedict Realty & Development
Inc., Royal Jade Memorial Inc, and Mt. Zion Memorial Inc. He graduated from Arellano University
with Bachelor of Arts degree in 1970 and took his Bachelor of Laws at San Beda College where he
graduated Valedictorian and Magna Cum Laude in 1974, He was a topnotcher in the 1974 Philippine
Bar (2rd Place). ' :

LOURDES T. GUTIERREZ, Filipino, 49 years old, was elected as Director of the Company on 30 june
2011. She is currently the Chief Operating Officer of Megaworld Corporation, Ms. Gutierrez joined
Megaworld in _1990. She is a Certified Public Accountant and is a member of Megaworld's
Management Executive Committee, Ms. Gutierrez graduated Cum Laude from the Far Eastern
University with the degree of Bachelor of Science Major in Accounting. She is the Chairman of
Megaworld's property management arm, First Oceanic Property Management, Inc. and Eastwood
Cinema 2000, Inc, She is currently the Director and Vice Chairman of Suntrust Properties, Inc, also a
Director of Forbes Town Properties & Holdings, Inc, Megaworld Resort Estates, [nc., Megaworld -
Homes, Inc., Oceantown Properties, Inc., Palm Tree Holdings & Development Corporation, Eastwood
Cyber One Corporation, Prestige Hotels & Resorts, Inc,, and Lucky Chinatown Cinemas, Inc. Sheisa
trustee and Corporate Secretary of Megaworld Foundation, Inc. Prior to joining Megaworld, she was
Audit Manager of Philippine Aluminum Wheels, Inc. and Senior Auditor in Cabanero Katighak
Clemente & Associates and RubberWorld Philippines. :

‘GARRY V. DE GUZMAN, Filipino, 45 years- old, was elected as Director of the Company on 12 January .

2011 and currently the Treasurer. of the. Company. He heads the Legal Affairs Department of
Megawerld Corporation. Mr. De Guzman serves as director of ERA Real Estate Exchange, Inc,
Megaworld Resort Estates, Inc, and Oceanic Realty International Group, Inc.. He is concurrently
Director, Corporate Secretary and Treasurer of Fairways & Bluewater Resort Golf & Country Club,
Inc. and Corporate Secretary & Director of Megaworld Global-Estate, Inc. Mr. De Guzman has been in
continuous litigation practice for more than twelve (12) years. Before joining Megawarld, he was an
Associate at the ACCRA Law Offices and Tax Assistant in Punongbayan and Araullo, CPAs. He

. obtained his Bachelor of Laws in 1994 from San Beda College where he graduated Class Salutatorian
and was admitted to the Integrated Bar of the Philippines in 1995; In 1989, he obtained his
bachelor’s degree in Commerce Major in Accounting from the same institution graduating Magna
Cum Laude and Class Valedictorian. Mr. De Guzman is a member of the Commercial Law Affiliates,
Asia Law, Philippine Institute of Certified Accountants and is Past President of the Rotary Club,
Parafiaque City Chapter.

ROBERT EDWIN C. LIM, Filipino, 55 yeal'*s' old, was elected as Director of the Company on 30 June
2011. He is currently the Vice President for Corporate Planning and Landbanking of Empire East
Land Holdings, Inc., a position he has held since 1994. Prior to joining Empire East, he worked with
Woodland Real Estate Deve]opment,' Inc. as Head of Project Planning, Supervision and Controi. He

TTairage
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also worked as Staff Consultant of PSR Consulting, Inc. He worked as Contracts Administrator and
Structural Engineer at the DCCD Engineering Corporation. Mr. Lim obtained his bachelor’s degree in
Civil Engineering and Masters Degree in Business Administration from the University of the
Philippines.

MIGUEL B. VARELA, Filipino, 73 years old, was elected as Independent Director on 28 September
2012. He has been an Independent Director of Megaworld Corporation since June 2006. He is
presently the President of the Philippine Chamber of Commerce and Industry (PCCI} was formerly
President and now presently Director of Manila Bulletin Publishing Corporation, Director of Ausphil
Tollways Corporation, Director, NPC Ailiance Corporation, Vice Chairman Richmonde Hotel, among
others. Chairman of the Empioyers Confederation of the Philippines (ECOP), Board of Trustee of
Philippines Trade Foundation, Inc. Chairman of Pribadong Institusyon Laban sa Kahirapan (PILAK).
Chairman of the Philippine Association of Voluntary Arbitration Foundation (PAVAF), and Vice
Chairman of Philippine Dispute Resolution Center, Inc. (PDRCI). He is also the Vice President of the
International Labor Organization, Inc, and Vice Chairman and Trustee, Foundation for Crime
Prevention. He is an accredited international arbitrator of the Paris-based International Court of
Arbitration. A member of the Philippine Bar, he pursued his Bachelor of Laws in the Atenec de
Manila Law School and his Associate in Liberal Arts from the San Beda College. He attended a Top
Management and Productivity Program from the Asian Institute of Management (AIM) as well as
special courses sponsored by ILO, Geneva, Switzerland, Asian Productivity Organization (APO), and
the Nikkeren, Japan, covering areas of Managerial Management and Organizational Development,
Productivity, -Legal Management, Labor and Industrial Relations, -Development of SME's among
others. He is a member of the Philippine Bar Association, a Commissioner of the Consultative
Commission on Constitutional Reform and a Lifetime Member of the Philippine Constitution
Association {PHILCONSA). He is the recipient of various awards and citations such as San Beda
College's Outstanding Alumni Award for Business Leadership, and San Beda Hall of Fame Awardee.
Presidential Medal of Merit for Qutstanding Service to the Republic of the Philippines, Tamaraw
Leadership Award, Katipunan Leadership Award and Leadership Award from ECOP, PCCI and ASEAN

. Productivity Organization and Confederation of Asia-Pacific Chamber of Commerce and Industry
(CACCI) Medallion for Distinguished Service Award. He was also conferred by the Central Luzon
State University with the degree of Doctor of Humanities (honoris causa), and by the Eulogio
“Amang” Rodriguez University of Science and Technology with a Doctorate in Business Technology
(honoris causa).

. GERARDO GARCIA, Filipino, 71 yearsﬂold was elected as Independent Director of the Company on
01 August 2011. He concurrently serves as Independent Director in the boards of Megaworld
Corporation since June 1994, and Empire East Land Holdings, Inc. smce October 1994.. He is alsoa
Director. of Megaworld Land, Inc, Suntrust Properties, Inc. and Philippine -Tech:. & Development
Ventures, [nc. From October 1994 to-December 1997, Mr. Garcia served as President of Empire East
Land Holdings, Inc. Prior to joining Empire East Land Holdings, Inc., Mr. Garcia served as Executive
Vice President of UBP Capital Corporation. He holds a bachelor’s degree in Chemical Engmeermg and ‘
a Masters Degree in Business Administration from the University of the Philippines.

Executive Officers -

ROBERTO S. ROCQ, Filipino, 60 years old, is Senior Vice President and Chief Finance Officer,
Compliance Officer and Corporate Information Officer of the Company. He is also a Director of Fil-
Estate Properties, Inc. and Fil-Estate Ecocentrum Corporation. Mr. Roco was formerly the Executive
Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of Smith Bell & Co,, Inc. He also held concurrent positions
in various Smith Bell companies.
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EMELYN C. MARTINEZ, Filipino, 48 years old, is the Senior Vice President for Legal. She is also a
Director of Fil-Estate Properties, Inc. and the Assistant Corporate Secretary of Fairways and
Bluewater Resort Golf and Country Club, Inc. Before joining GERI, she was the Chief of Staff of the
Office of COMELEC Commissioner Augusto C. Lagman. She was a Partner in Ponce Enrile Reyes &
Manalastas {PECABAR) Law Offices and in Nisce Mamuric Guinto Rivera & Alcantara Law Offices.
She was admitted to the Bar in 1991 after obtaining her Bachelor of Laws degree from University of
the Philippines and her Bachelor of Arts Major in Economics from the same university.

JENNIFER LIM-ROMUALDEZ, 43 years old, joined the Company on 1 July 2012 as Vice President for
Contracts and Procurement. In September 2012, she was appointed Vice President for Contracts
Procurement and Project Management. Previously, she worked for Megaworld Corporation which
engaged her in 1995 as Purchasing Supervisor/Coordinator, eventually was promoted to Assistant
Purchasing Manager. She became Assistant Vice President for Special Projects/Interior Design Group
in 1999, managing and coordinating the design and construction of various projects. She was
promoted as Vice President to head the Contracts & Procurement Group of Megaworld and was
responsible for all construction-related contracts and materials procurement. She served as
Corporate Manager for Quantity Surveying & Tender of Ding Feng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
in Shanghai, PRC. She was also engaged by Ho Cheng (China) Co. Ltd. (HCG) in Shanghai, PRC, as-
Assistant Director for Marketing-Interior Design & Graphics, and subsequently as Consultant for the
HCG Beijing Flagship Showroom project. She graduated from the University of the Philippines in
Diliman, Quezon City with a degree in Bachelor of Science Major in Architecture. She completed and
passed the Philippine Licensure Examination for-Architectsin 1993,- ---

ABRAHAM M. MERCADO, Filipino, 35 years old, is the Vice President for Sales and Marketing of the
Company since 2011. He is a Market Strategy Analyst in Real Estate Selling with cross-functional
expertise in real estate brokering.. He holds a degree in Marketing taken at De La Salle University-
College of Saint Benilde in 1998. He also took a course at International Academy of Management and
Economics (AIME) in 2001.

CATHERINE D, MARCELO, Filipino, 38 years old, is the Vice President for Human Resources and
Corporate Services of the Company since 2011. Prior to joining the Company she worked with
Lufthansa Technik Philippines, Inc. and ABS-CBN Broadcasting Corporation as Human Resources
Head. From May 1996 to July 2001, she was the Human Resources Division Senior Supervisor and
Recruitment Officer, Training and Development Officer, and Overall HR Officer for Fil-Estate Group of
Companies. -She graduated from the University of Santo Tomas-with a degree of BS in Psychology in "
1996. ‘

- DOMINIC V. ISBERTO, Filipino, 38 years old, was elected Corporate ‘Secretary and Assistant
Corporate Information Officer of the Company on 12 January 2011. He is also the ‘Corporate
Secretary of Alliance Global Group, Inc,, Twin Lakes Corporation, Fil-Estate Properties, Inc., Suntrust

- Properties, Inc. and Eastwood City"Es_tétes Association, Inc. He is currently a Senior Assistant Vice

" President for Corporate Management of Megaworld Corporation, where he is primarily responsible
for negotiation, preparation and review of joint venture and sale and purchase agreements for the
acquisition of property, lease agreements, loan agreements, and other corporate contracts and
agreements, and the handling of legal cases. Mr. Isherto has experience in litigation and banking and
corporate law. He has a degree in Management Engineering from the Ateneo de Manila University
and obtained his Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines.

ROLANDO D. SIATELA, Filipino, 52 years old, was elected Assistant Corporate Secretary of the
Company on 12 January 2011. He concurrently serves in PSE-listed companies, Alliance Global
Group, Inc. and Megaworld Corporation as Assistant Corporate Secretary, and in Suntrust Home
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Developers, Inc. as Corporate Secretary and Corporate Information Officer. He is also the Assistant
Vice President for Corporate Management of Megaworld Corporation. Prior to joining Megaworld
Corporation, he was employed as Administrative and Personnel Officer with Batarasa Consolidated,
Inc. and served as Assistant Corporate Secretary and Chief Administrative Officer of The Andresons
Group, Inc. He is a member of the beard of Asia Finest Cuisine, Inc., serves as Corporate Secretary of
ERA Real Estate Exchange, [nc. and Qceanic Realty Group International, Inc. and as Documentation
Officer of Megaworld Foundation.

Significant Employees

There is no employee who is not an executive officer who is expected by the Company to make a
significant contribution to the business. The business is not highly dependent on the services of
certain key perscnnel.

Family Relationships

There are no family relationships up to the fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or affinity
among directors, executive officers or persons nominated or chosen by the Corporation to become
directors or executive officers.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

The Company has no knowledge of any of the following events that occurred during the past five (5)
years up to the date of this report which are material to an evaluation of the ability or initegrity of any
director or executive officer:

a. None of them has been involved in any bankruptcy petition. -

b. - None of them has been convicted by final judgment in a criminal proceeding or being subject
to a pending criminal proceeding both domestic and foreign.

C. None of them has been subject to any order, judgment or decree of any court of competent
jurisdiction (domestic or foreign) permanently or temporarily, enjoining, barring,
suspending or otherwise limiting their involvement in any type of business, securities,
commeodities or banking activities. :

d. None of them has been found by a domestlc or foreign court of competent jurisdiction (in a
- civil action), the commission or comparable'foreign body or a domesticor foreign exchange -
- or other organized trading market or self-regulatory organization, to have violated a
securities or commodities law or regulation.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions - - -

No transaction was undertaken or to be undertaken by the Corporation in which any Director or
Executive Officer, or any nominee for election as Director, or ‘any member of their 1mmedlate famliy
was or to be invoived or had or will have a direct or indirect material interest.

No single Director or Executive Officer, or any nominee for election as Director, or any member of
their immediate family owns or holds more than 10% of the Corporation’s voting shares.

Advances granted to and obtained from subsidiaries,”a'ssociz‘;te;s and other related parties are for
purposes of working capital requirements. Related party transactions of the Group were discussed
on Note 20 of the Consolidated Notes to Financial Statements,
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{b)

()

- {d)

Disagreement with the Corporation

No director has resigned or declined to stand for re-election to the Board of Directors since the
date of the last Annual Shareholders' Meeting because of disagreement with the Corporation
on any matter relating to the Corporation's operations, policies or practices.

Procedure for Nomination and Election of Independent Directors

The Board of Directors of the Corporation has nine (9) members, two (2) of which should be
independent directors.

The Nomination Committee, tasked to nominate candidates for election at least thirty (30) days prior
to the date of the annual stockholders’ meeting, shail conduct the nominations in accordance with
SRC Ruie 38.

The Nomination Committee shall pre-screen the qualifications and prepare a ﬁnal list of candldates
for directors, specifying the nominated independent directors.

The qualifications of the candidates for nomination shall be ascertained pursuant to the Revised Code
of Corporate Governance and applicable issuances from the SEC.

Nominees
Memibers of the Board of Directors ife elected annually by the shareholders during the Annual -
Shareholders’ Meeting to serve for a period of one (1) year and shall serve until their successors shall

have heen elected and qualified.

The Corporation's Nomination Committee, in accordance with the guidelines in the Revised Code of
Corporate Governance and the Requirements on Nomination and Election of Independent Directors

- under SRC Rule 38 submitted the following complete and Final List of Candidates for the election of

the members of the Board of Directors:

Andrew L. Tan

Robert John L. Sobrepefia

Ferdinand T. Santos

Wilbur L. Chan

Lourdes T. Gutierrez

Garry V. de Guzman

Robert Edwin C. Lim .

Miguel B. Varela - Independent Director:
Gerardo C, Garcia - - Independent Director

VON; RN

" Messrs. Varela and Garcia, as candidates for independent directors of the C'drporation for the

forthcoming year, were recommended for nomination by Alliance Global Group, Inc.

Mr. Garcia’s first-term election as an:independent director. was in August 2011. Mr. Varela, on the
other hand, was elected independent director in September 2012, replacing an independent director
who resigned in July 2012. Both Messrs. Garcia and Varela have not exceeded the term limits for
independent director as prescribed under SEC Memorandum Circular No. 9 Series of 2011

In comipliance with SEC Notice dated 20 October 2006, the Corporation will require the elected

“independent directors to submit to SEC their respective Certifications on- Quallﬂcanon of

Independent Directors within thirty (30) days from their election.

The Nomination Committee determined that the Messrs. Andrew L. Tan, Robert John L. Sobrepefia,
Ferdinand T. Santos, Wilbur L. Chan, Ms. Lourdes T. Gutierrez, Garry V. de Guzman, Robert Edwin C.
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Lim, Miguel B. Varela,

disqualifications of a director.,

and Gerarde C. Garcia have all the qualifications and none of the

The Nomination Committee is composed of Mr. Miguel B. Varela as Chairman, and Messrs. Wilbur L.
Chan and Garry V. De Guzman as Members.

ITEM 6.

Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

Executive Officers

NAME & POSITICN

YEAR

SALARY

BONUS

OTHER ANNUAL
COMPENSATION

TOTAL

A,

5 Most Highiy
Compensated Officers

Ferdinand T.
President
Roberto S. Roco, SVP &.
CFO

Emelyn C. Martinez, SVP
Jennifer L. Romualdez, VP
Catherine M. Marcelo, VP

Santos,

2013
(Estimat
ed)

12.5
Million

1.34 Million

13.84
Million

and
group

All  other officers
directors as a
unnamed

2013
(Estimat
ed)

10.2
Million

- 0.89 Million

11.09
Million

NAME & POSITION

YEAR

SALARY

OTHER
ANNUAL
COMPENSATI

ON .

BONUS

TOTAL

5 Most Highly
. Compensated Officers

Ferdinand T.
President
Roberto S. Roco, SVP and
CFO ‘
Edgardo S. Pinga,VP
Abraham M. Mercado, VP
Catherine M. Marcelo, VP

Santos,

2012

11.2 Million-| -

- 1.2 Milion

| Million

124

D.

and
group

Al other officers
directors as a

unnamed

2012

7.8 Million

- 0.8 Million

8.6
Mitlion
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NAME & POSITION YEAR SALARY | BONUS OTHER TOTAL
ANNUAL
COMPENSATI
ON
E. 5 Most Highly 2011 6.8 Million - 0.7 Million 75
Compensated Cfficers Million
Ferdinand T. Santos,
President
Roberto S. Roco, SVP &
CFO
Edgardo S. Pinga, VP
Abraham M. Mercado, VP
Catherine D. Marcelo, VP
F. Al other officers and 2011 4 IMillion - 0.4 Million 5.3
directors as a group Million
unnamed

Mr. Andrew L. Tan does not receive any compensation from the Corporation by virtue of his position
as the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) of the Corporation.

The total annual compensation paid to all senior personnel from AVP and up is ail payable in cash.
The total annual compensation includes the basic salary and 13% month pay. The Corporation has no
other arrangement with regard to the remuneration of its existing officers aside from the
compensation received as herein stated.

Directors
Article II1, Section 8 of the Corporation's By-laws provides -

“Section 8. Compensation - By resolution of the Board, each director shall receive a
reasonable per diem allowance for his attendance at each meeting of the Board. As
compensation, the Board shall receive and allocate an"amount af not more than five
(5%) percent of the net income before income tax of the corporation during the
preceding year. Such compensation shall be,determined and apportioned among
the directors in such manner as the Board may deem proper.”

Other than payment of per diem per attendance at board meetings, there. are neither standard nor
_ other arrangements pursuant to which directors of the Corporation are compensated or are to be
*. compensated, for any service provided as director for the last completed year and the ensuing year.

Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change-in-Control Arrangements,

The Corporation has no existing employment contract with any executive officer or any existing
compensatory plan or arrangement, including payments to be received from the Corporation or from
a change-in-control of the Corporation or a change in the named executive officer's responsibilities
following a change-in-control and the amount involved, if any, including all periodic payments or
instailments, which exceeds P2,500,000.
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Warrants and Options Outstanding held by Directors or Officers

ITEM 7.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

On 23 September 2011, the Board of Directors of the Company apprdved an Executive Stock Option
Plan and this was approved on 8 November 2011 by stockholders helding at least 2/3 of the
outstanding capital stock. The purpose of the Plan is to enable the key Company executives and
senior officers who are largely responsible for its further growth and development to obtain an
ownership interest in the Company, thereby encouraging long-term commitment to the Company.
The Plan is being administered by the Executive Compensation Committee of the Board.

Under the Plan, the Company shall initially reserve for exercise of stock optiens up to 500 million
commen shares of the Company's outstanding shares to be issued, in whole or in part, out of the
authorized but unissued shares. Stock options may be granted within ten (1Q) years from the
adoption of the Plan and may be exercised within seven (7) years from date of grant. The exercise
price shall be at a 15% discount from the volume weighted average closing price of the Company’s
shares for twelve (12) months immediately preceding the date of grant. The options shall vest within
three (3} years from date of grant and the holder of an option may exercise only a third of the option
at the end of each year of the three (3) year period. The Company shall receive cash for the stock
options.

Pursuant to this ESOP, on 16 February 2012, the Company granted the options to its key company
executives to subscribe to 100 million shares of the Company, at an exercise price of Php1.93. As of
31 December 2012, no options have vested. An Option Holder may exercise in whole or in part his
vested Opinn provided, that, an Option exercisable but not actually exercised within a given year
shall accrue and may be exercised at any time thereafter but prior to the expiration of said Option’s
Life Cycle.

Independent Public Accountants

Punongbayan & Araullo is being recommended to the shareholders at the scheduled Annual
Shareholders’ Meeting on 27 June 2013 for approval as external auditor of the Corporation for the
calendar year ending 31 December 2013,

Punongbayan & Araulle was the same entity recommended to and approved by the shareholders at
the Annual Sharehoiders’ Meeting in 2012 as external auditor of the Corporation for the calendar
year ending 31 December 2012. Punongbayan & Araullo was likewise appointed external auditor of
the Corporatlon for the fiscal year endmg 30 September 2011 and per:od 31 December 2011

The appointment of Punongbayan & Araullo is comphant with the provisions of SRC Rule 68
paragraph. 3 {h} (ix) on rotation of external auditors, and the.Corporation’s Manual.on Corporate
Governance, which require that the external aiiditor be rotated or the handling partner changed
every five (5) years or earlier.

Representatives of Pﬁnongbayan' & Araullo- are expected to be 'present during the Annual

-Shareholders’ Meeting and they will have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so

and are expected to he available to respond to appropriate questions.

The selection of the external auditor is upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee which is
chaired by Mr. Miguel B. Varela, with Mr, Wilbur L. Chan and Ms. Lourdes T. Gutierrez as members,
and is made on the basis of credibility, professional reputation, accreditation with Securities and
Exchange Commission, and affiliation with a reputable foreign partner.,

There are no disagreements with the auditors on any matter of accounting principles or practices,
financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which, if not resolved to their
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satisfaction, would have caused the auditors to make reference thereto in their reports on the
financial statements of the Corporation and its subsidiaries.

ITEM 8. Compensation Plans

No action is to be taken up during the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting with respect to any pian
pursuant to which cash or non-cash compensation may be paid or distributed.

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

ITEM 9.  Authorization or Issuance of Securities other than for Exchange

No action is to be taken up during the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting with respect to the
authorization or issuance of any securities other than for exchange for outstanding securities of the
Corporation.

The Corporation currently has an ~ authorized capital stock of Ten Billion Pesos
(Php10,000,000,000.00) divided into Ten Billion (10,000,000,000) common shares with a par value
of One Peso (Phpl.00) each. As of Record Date, the Corporation has 8,468,000,000 issued and
outstanding common shares.

During the Special Shareholders’ Meeting held on 8 November 2011, the shareholders ratified the
increase in authorized capital stock of the Corporation from Ten Billion Pesos
(Php10,000,000,000.00) divided into Ten Billion {10,000,000,000)} common shares with a par value

- of One Peso (Php1.00) each to Twenty Billion Pesos (Php20,000,000,000.00) divided into Twenty
Billion (20,000,000,000) common shares with a par value of One Peso (Phpl.00} each. The
Corporation will seek the approval of the SEC on the subject increase in capital at the appropriate
time.

ITEM 10. Modification or Exchange of Securities

No action is to be taken up during the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting with respect to the modification
of any class of securities of the Corporation, or the issuance or authorization for issuance of one class
of securities of the Carporation in exchange for outstanding securities of another class.

ITEM 11. . Financial and Other Information

Financial Statements of the Corporation for the immediately preceding year as well as the
Management's Discussion and- Analysis' of ‘Operations and Financial' Condition for the-
corresponding period are included in the Corporation’s Management Report and are incorporated
herein by reference. -

ITEM 12, Mergers, Consolidations, A'cduisitio'hs :i;id Similar Matters

No action is to be taken up during the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting with respect to any transaction
involving (a) merger or consclidation of the Corporation into of with any other person or of any
-other person into or with the Corporation; (b) the acquisition by the Corporation or any of its
security holders of securities of another person; {c) the acquisition by the Corporation of any other
going business or of the assets thereof; (d) the sale or other transfer of all or any substantial part of
the assets of the Corporation; or () the liquidation or dissolution of the Corporation.

ITEM 13. Acquisition or Disposition of Property

No action is to be taken up during the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting with respect to the acquisition
or disposition of any property.
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ITEM 14. Restatement of Accounts

No action is to be taken up during the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting with respect to the restatement
of any asset, capital, or surplus account of the Corporation.

D, OTHER MATTERS
ITEM 15. Action with Respect to Reports

The following are to be submitted for the approval of the shareholders at the Annual Shareholders’
Meeting:

1. Minutes of the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting of held on 28 June 2012;
2. 2012 Audited Financial Statements

The 28 June 2012 Minutes refers to adoption of shareholder’s resolutions pertaining to approval of
the previous annual meeting, appointment of external auditors, ratification of acts and resolutions of
the Board of Directors, Board Committees and Management, ratification of the amendment to the
Articles of Incorporation of the Company to mclude an additional Secondary Purpose and election of
directors.

The approval or disapprovai of the reports will constitute merely an approval or disapproval of the
correctness of said reports but will not constitute an approval or disapproval of the matters referred
to therem

ITEM 16. Matters not Required to be Submitted

No action is to be taken up during the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting with respect to any matter
which is not required to be submitted to a vote of security holders. Only matters which require
shareholders’ approval will be taken up during the shareholders’ meeting,

ITEM17. Amendment of Charter, By-Laws or Other Documents

No action is to be taken with respect to any amendment of the Corporation’s Articles of
Incorporation, By-Laws, or other documents as to which mformatlon is not required in the preceding
items.

ITEM 18. Other Proposed Actions ‘ STUC R S

a. Ratification of the acts of the Board of Directors and the management from the date of the

. last Annual Shareholders’ Meeting up to the date of the scheduled Annual Shareholders’

.. Meeting for year 2013, pertaining to acts covered by Resolut:ons of the Board of Directors

- duly adopted in the normal course of trade or business, such as-appointment.of officers of

the Corporation, epening and maintenance of bank accounts and other bank transactions,

approval of projects, investments and land acquisitions, appointment of . proxies and

nominees of the Corporation, designation of authorized signatories and representatives,

- approval of sale transactions of realand personal properties, appointment of legal counsels

for cases arising from the ordinary course of business, approval of agreements relating to
settlement of debt obligations and other corporate activities;

b. Election of the Board of Directors;
c Appointment of external auditor;

d. Other matters as may properly come before the meeting.
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ITEM 19. Voting Procedures

(a)

(b)

Vote required

The required votes for the approval of the matters included in the agenda of the Annual
Shareholders’ Meeting are as follows:

Plurality Vote

The top seven (7) candidates for regular directors with the highest number of votes and the top two (2)
candidates for independent directors with the highest number of votes shall be deemed clected as members
of the Board of Directors of the Corporation.

Majority Vote

For all other matters proposed to be acted upon (i.e, approval of the Minutes of the Annual
Shareholders’ Meeting held on 28 June 2012; approval of the Audited Financial Statements for the
year ended 31 December 2012; general ratification of the Board of Directors and the management;
appointment of external auditors, and other matters as may properly come before the meeting), the
vote of majority of the stockholders entitled to vote and who are either present in person or
represented by proxy, will be required for approval. These matters shall be deemed approved when
the required vote is met, provided a quorum is present. \

Metheod by which votes will be counted

Only owners of shares of common stock at the time of Record Date who are present in person or by
proxy at the Annual Shareholders Meeting shall be entitled to vote on the election of members of the
Board of Directors and.on the other matters in the agenda which will be submitted for shareholders’
approval.

Each shareholder shall be entitled to one (1) vote for each share of stock standing in his name in the
books of the Corporation. Generally, a shareholder may vote his share only by straight voting.
However, in case of election of members of the Board of Directors, all shareholders shall have
cumulative voting which entitles each shareholder to cast the vote to which the number of shares he
owns entitles him for as many persons as the number of directors to be elected multiplied by the
number of his shares shall equal, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many
candidates as he may see fit, provided, that the whole number of votes cast by him shall not exceed
the number of shares owned by him multiplied by the whole number of directors to be elected.

Voting may be done by viva voce or by show of hands of the shareholders unless a shareholder
requests that voting be done by secret ballot. In which case, a Committee shall be created to .

. supervise the same in the presence of the external auditor. However, voting by secret ballot may he

dispensed with upon assent of shareholders owning majority of the outstanding shares, through a
proper motion which should be duly seconded. In case of election of members of the Board of
Directors by secret hallot, the Chairman shall appoint two (2) tellers to supervise the said election as
required in the Corporation’s By-Laws. - ) : .

T PARTIT

The Corporation is not soliciting any proxy -

WE ARENOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY.
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SIGNATURE PAGE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, I certify that the information set forth in this
report is true, complete and correct. This report is signed in the City of Pasig on 24 May 2013.

GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC.

liM/L

ROBERTO S. ROCO
SVP-CFOQ/Corporate Information Officer
Authorized Signatory
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

For the - B
2013 Annual Meeting of the Stockholders
Pursuant to SRC Rule 20 (4} -



Item 8. Finarcial and Other Information

Audited Financial Statements

The consotidated financial statements as of 31 December 2012 are attached hereto including the interim
financial statements as of March 31, 2013. The statement of Management Responsibility, Schedules
Required under Part TV (¢ ) of Rule 48 are included in the Annual Report (Form 17-A}.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these consolidated

financial statements are summarized below. The policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

1.1 Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial statements

@

)

(c)

Statement of Compliance with Philippine Finanuial Reporting Standards

The consolidated financial statemeats of the Group have been prepared in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS are adopted by the Financial
Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) from the pronouncements issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the measurement bases
specified by PFRS for each type of asset, liability, income and expense. The measurement
bases are more fully described in the accounting policies that follow.

Presentation of Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements are presented in  accordance with
Philippine Accounting Standard (PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements. The Group
presents all items of income and expense in a single consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Two comparative periods are presented for the consolidated statement of financial
position when the Group applies an accounting policy retrospectively or makes a
retrospective restatement of items in its consolidated financial statements, or reclassifies items
in the consolidated financial statements.

Functional and Presentation Currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in f"hj]jppiné pesos, ‘the ‘Group’s

presentation and functional currency, and all values represent absolute amounts except when
otherwise indicated.

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using the
Group’s functional currency. Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic
envitonment in which the Group operates.

1.2 Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

(@)

Effective in 2012 that is Relevant to the Gronp

In 2012, the Group adopted the following amendments to PFRS that are relevant to the

A Group and effective for financial statements for the annual petiod beginning on or after July

1, 2011 or January 1, 2012
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PFRS 7 {(Amendment) : Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Transfers of Financial Assets
PAS 12 (Amendment) : Tncome Taxes — Deferred Taxes:
Recovery of Underlying Assets

Discussed below are the relevant information about these amended standards.

(iy PFRS 7 (Amendment), Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers of Finanaal Assets. The
amendment requires additional disclosures that will allow users of financial statements to
understand the relationship between transfezred financial assets that are not derecognized
in their entirety and the associated liabilities; and, to evaluate the nature of, and risk
associated with any continuing involvement of the reporting entity in financial assets that
are derecognized in their entirety. The Group did not transfer any financial asset
involving this type of arrangement; hence, the amendment did not result in any
significant change in the Group’s disciosures in its consolidated financial statements.

(i) PAS 12 (Amendment), [noome Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assess. The
amendment introduces a rebuttable presumption that the measurement of a deferred tax
liability or asset that arises from investment property measured at fair value under PAS
40, Investment Property, should reflect the tax consequence of recovering the carrying
amount of the asset entirely through sale. The presumption is rebutted for depreciable
investment property (e.g., building) that is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the asset over time,
rather than through sale. Moreover, Standing Interpretation Committee (SIC) 21, Income
Tasces — Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets, is accordingly withdrawn and is
incorporated under PAS 12 requiring that deferred tax on non-depreciable assets that are
measured using the revaluation model in PAS 16, Propersy, Plant and Equipment, should
always be measured on 2 sale basis of the asset. The amendment became effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2012 but has no significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as its iavestment property only includes several
properties measuted at cost.

(b} Effective in 2012 that ix not Relevant to the Group

PERS 1, First-time Adoption of PFRS, was amended to provide relief for first-time adopters of

" PERS from having to reconstruct transactions that occurred before the date of transition to
PFRS and to provide guidance for entities emerging from severe hyperinflation either to
resume presenting PFRS financial statements or to present PFRS financtal statements for the
first time. The amendment became effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1,
2011 but is not relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

(¢} Effective Subsequent to 2012 but not Adapted Early

There are new PFRS, amendments, annual improvements and interpretations to existing
standards that are effective for periods subsequent to 2012. Management has initially
determined the following pronouncements, which the Group will apply in accordance with
their transitional provisions, to be relevant to its financial statements:

() PAS 1 (Amendment), Financial Siaterments Presentation — Presentation of Items of Other
Comprebensive Income (effective from July 1, 2012). The amendment requires an entity to
group items presented in other comprehensive income into those that, in accordance
with other PERS: (a) will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and, (b} will
be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. The
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Group's management expects that this amendment will change the current presentation
of items in other comprehensive income [i.e., unrealized fair value gains and losses on
available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets].

(i) PAS 19 (Amendment), Employer Benefiis (effective from January 1, 2013). The
amendment made a number of changes as part of the improvements throughout the
standard. The main changes relate to defined benefit plans as follows:

o climinates the corridor approach under the existing guidance of PAS 19 and
requires an entity to recognize all gains and losses arising in the reporting period;

s streamlines the presentation of changes in plan assets and Hahilities resulting in the
disaggregation of changes into three main components of service costs, net interest
on net defined benefit obligation or asset, and remeasurement; and,

e  enhances disclosure requirements, including information about the charactenistics
of defined benefit plans and the risks that entities are exposed to through
participation in them.

(ify Consolidation Standards

The Group is currently reviewing the impact on its consolidated financial statements of
" the following consolidation standards which- - will be effective from
January 1, 2013: ‘

o  DPFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements. This standard builds on existing
principles of consolidation by identifying the concept of control as the determining
factor in whether an entity should be included within the consolidated financial
statements. The standard also provides additional guidance to assist in determining
control where this is difficult to assess.

e PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements. This standard provides a more realistic reflection of
joint arrangements by focusing on the rights and obligations of the arrangement,
rather than its legal form. This standard replaces the three categories under PAS
31, Interesis in Joint Ventures, mainly, jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled
operations and jointly controlled assets, with two new categories -~ joint operations
and joint ventures.  Moreover, this also ecliminates the option of using
proportionate consolidation for joint ventutes..

‘s PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interest in Other Entitier. This standard integrates and makes
consistent the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other entities,
including joint arrangements, associates, special purpose vehicles and
unconsolidated structured entities,  This also introduces new disclosure
requirements about the risks to which an entity is exposed from its involvement
with structured entities. ‘

»  PAS 27 (Amendment), Separate Financial Statements, This revised standard now
covers the requirements pertaining solely to separate financial statements after the
relevant discussions on control and consolidated financial statements have been
transferred and included in PFRS 10. No new muajor changes relating to separate
financial statements have been introduced as a result of the revision.
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e © PAS 28 (Amendment), Imestments in Asiocdate and Joint Venture. This revised
standard includes the requitements for joint ventures, as well as associates, to be
accounted fot using equity method following the issuance of PFRS 11,

Subsequent to the issuance of the foregoing consolidation standards, the JASB made
some changes to the transitional provisions in International Financial Reporting
Standard (IFRS) 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12, which were also adopted by the FRSC. The
guidance confirms that an entity is not required to apply PTFRS 10 retrospectively in
certain circumstances and clarifies the requirements to present adjusted comparatives.
The guidance aiso made changes to PERS 10 and
PRRS 12 which provide similar relief from the presentation or adjustment of
comparative information for periods prior to the immediately preceding period.
Further, it provides relief by removing the requirement fo present comparatives for
disclosures relating to unconsolidated structured entities for any petiod before the first
annual period for which PFRS 12 is applied.

(iv) PFRS 7 (Amendment), Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities (effective from Jamuary 1, 2013). The amendment requires qualitative
and quantitative disclosures relating to gross and net amounts of recognized financial
instruments that are set-off in accordance with PAS 32, Finandal Instruments: Presentation.
The amendment also requires disclosure of information about recognized financial
instruments subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or similar agreements,
even if they are not set-off in the statement of financial position, including those which
do not meet some or all of the offsetting criteria under PAS 32, and amounts related to
a financial collateral. These disclosures will allow financial statement users to evaluate
the effect or potential effect of netting arrangements, including rights of set-off
associated with recognized financial assets and financial liabilities on the entity’s
financial posiion. The Group does not expect this amendment t6 have a significant
impact on its consolidated financial statements.

(v) PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurerent (effective from January 1, 2013). This standard aims to
improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise definition of fair
value and 2 single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use
across PFRS. The requirements do not extend the use of fair value accounting but
provide guidance on how it should be applied where its use is already required or
permitted by other standards. The Group is yet to assess the impact of this new
standard. S St

' (vi) PAS 32 (Amendment), Financial Instraments: Presentation ~ Offvetting Fintancial Assels and

" Financial Liabilities (effective from January 1, 2014). The amendment provides guidance

to address inconsistencies in applying the criteria for offsetting financial asscts and

financial labilities. It clarifies that a right of set-off is required to be legally enforceable,

in the normal course of business, in the event of default and in'the event of insolvency
* or bankruptcy of the entity and all of the counterparties. The amendment also clarifies

the principle behind net setttement and includes an example of a gross settlement
~ system with characteristics that would satisfy the criterion for net settlement. The
" Group does not expect this amendment to have a significant impact on its consolidated
" financial statements. :

(viiy PFRS 9, Financial Insiruments:  Clarfication and  Measurement  {effective from
© January 1, 2015). This is the first part of a new standard on classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities that will replace
PAS 39, Finandal Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, in its entirety. This chapter
deals with two measurement categories for financial assets: amortized cost and fair
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* value. All equity instruments will be measured at fair value while debt instraments will

be measured at amortized cost only if the entity is holding it to collect contractual cash
flows which represent payment of principal and interest. The accounting for embedded
detivatives in host contracts that are financial assets is simplified by removing the
requiremnent to consider whether or not they are closely related, and, in most
arrangement, does not require separation from the host contract.

For liabilities, the standard retains most of the PAS 39 requirements which include
amortized-cost accounting for most financial labilities, with bifurcation of embedded
derivatives. ‘The main change is that, in case where the fair value option is taken for
financial liabilities, the part of a fair value change due to an entity’s own credit sk is
recorded in other comprehensive income rather than in profit or loss, unless this creates
an accounting mismatch. '

To date, other chapters of PFRS 9 dealing with impairment methodology and hedge
accounting are still being completed.

Further, in November 2011, the [ASB tentatively decided to consider making limited
modifications to IFRS ¥s financial asset classification model to address certain
application issues. '

The Group does not expect to implement and adopt PFRS 9 until its effective date or
until all chapters of this new standard have been published. In addition, management is
corrently assessing the impact of PFRS 9 on the Group’s consolidated financial
statemnents and is committed to conduct a comprehensive study of the potential impact
of this standard in the last quarter of 2014 before its adaption in 2015 to-assess the
impact of all changes. '

(viii) Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for Construction of Real Estate. This

Philippine interpretation is based on TFRIC interpretation issued by the IASB in July
2008 effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009. The adoption
of this interpretation in the Philippines, however, was deferred by the FRSC and
Philippine SEC after giving due considerations on various application issues and the
implication on this interpretation of the JASB's on-going revision of the Revenue
Recognition standard. This’ interpretation provides guidance on how to determine
whether an agreement for the construction of real estate is within the scope of PAS 11,
Construction Contrastr, or PAS 18, Revenue, and accordingly, when revenue from the
construction should be recognized. The main expected change in practice is a shift
from recognizing revenue using the. percentage of completion method (ie., as a

" construction progresses, by reference to the stage of completion of the development) to

recognizing tevenue at completion upon ot after delivery. The Group is cutrently
evaluating the impact of this interpretation on its consolidated financial statements in
preparation for its adoption when this becomes mandatorily effective in the Philippines.

(ix) 2009-2011 Annual Improvements to PFRS. Annual .iinproveme.rlts to PERS (2009—2011
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Cycle) made minor amendments to 2 number of PFRS, which are effective for annual
period beginning on or after January 1, 2013. Among those improvements, the
following amendments are relevant to the Group but management does not expect a
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements:

(@) PAS 1 (Amendment), Presentation of Financial Statements — Clarification of the

Reguirements for Comparative luformation. The amendment clatifies the requirements
for presenting comparative information for the following:
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e Requirements for opening staternent of financial position

If an entity applies an accounting policy retrospectively, or makes a
retrospective restatement or reclassification of items that has a material effect
on the information in the statement of financial position at the beginning of
the preceding period (Le., opening statement of financial position), it shall
present such third statement of financial position.

Other than disclosute of certain specified information in accordance with
PAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, related
notes to the opening statement of financial position as at the beginning of the
preceding period are not required to be presented.

s Requirements for additional comparative information beyond mnmum
requirements

If an entity presented comparative information in the financial statements
beyond the minimum comparative information requirements, the additional
financial statements information should be presented in accordance with
PERS including disclosure of comparative information in the related notes for
that additional information. Presenting additional comparative information
voluntarily would not trigger a tequirement to provide a complete set of
financial statements. o -

(b)y PAS 16 (Amendment), Propersy, Plant and Equipment — Classification of Servicing

©

Eguipment.  The amendment addresses 2 perceived inconsistency in the
classification requirements for servicing equipment which resulted in classifying
servicing equipment as part of inventory when it is used for more than one period.
1t clarifies that items such as spare-parts, stand-by equipment and servicing
equipment shall be recognized as property, plant and equipment when they meet
the definition of property, plant and equipment, otherwise, these are classified as
inventory. -

PAS 32 (Amendment), Financial Instruments — Presentation — Tax Effect of Distributions
to Holders of Equity Instruments. The amendment clarifies that the consequences of
income tax relating to distributions to holders of an equity instrument and to
transaction costs of an equity transaction shall be accounted for in accordance with
PAS 12, Accordingly, income tax relating to distributions to holders of an equty
instrument is recognized in profit or loss.while income tax related to the
transaction costs of an equity transaction is recognized in equity.

1.3 Basis of Consolidation

" The Company obtains and exercises control through voting rights. The Group’s consolidated
financial statemeénts comprise the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries as enumerated in
Note 1, after the elimination of material intercompany transactions. All intercompany balances
and transactions with subsidiaries, including income, expenses and dividends, are eliminated in
full. Unrealized profits and losses from intercompany transactions that are recognized in assets
are also eliminaced in full. In addition, shares of stock of the Company, if any, held by the
subsidiardies are recognized as treasury stock and these are presented as deduction in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Any changes in the market values of such shares as
recognized separately by the subsidiaries are likewise eliminated in full. Intercompany losses that
indicate impairment are recognized in the consolidated financial statements.
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Financial statements of entities in the Group that are prepared as of a date different from that of
the date of these consolidated Fnancial statements were adjusted to recognize the effects of
significant transactions or events that occur between that date of their reporting period and the
date of these consolidated financial statements. Adjustments are also made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Company accounts for its investments in subsidianes, associates, interests in jointly
controlled operations and transactions with Non-Controlling Intetests (NCI) as follows:

(a) Investments in Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to control the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of potential voting tights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity.
Subsidiaties are consolidated from the date the Group obtains control, direct or indirect, until
such time that such control ceases.

The acquisition method is applied to account for acquired subsidiades. This requires
recognizing and measuring the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and any
NCI in the acquiree. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the. assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by
the Group, if any. The consideration transferred also includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred and subsequent change in the fair value of contingent consideration is
recognized directly in profit or loss. :

. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognizes any NCI in the acquiree either at fair
value or at the NCI's proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any NCI in the acquiree and the
acquisition date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognized as goodwill. If this 1s
less than the' fair value of thé net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognized directly in profit or loss as gain.

(b) Investments in Associates

Associates are those entities over which the Group is able to exert significant influence but
not control and which are neither subsidiaries nor interests in 2 joint venture, Investments in
associates are initially recognized at cost and subsequently accounted for using the equity
method. : s ‘ : :

Acquired investments in associates are also subject to purchase accounting. However, any
goodwill or fair value adjustment attributable to the share in the assoctates is included in the
amount recognized as investment in associates. All subsequent changes to the share of
interest in the equity of the associate are recognized in the carrying amount of the Group’s
investment. Changes resulting from the profit or loss generated by the associate are shown as
Equity Share in Net Profits Losses of Associates in the Group’s consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and therefore affect the net results of operations of the Group.
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These changes include subsequent depreciation, amortization of impairment of the fair value
adjustments of the associate’s assets and liabilities.

Changes resulting from other comprehensive income of the associates or items that have
been directly recognized in the associate’s equity, for example, resulting from the associate’s
accounting for AFS financial assets, are recognized in consolidated other comprehensive
income or equity of the Group, as appiicable. Any non-income related equity movements of
the associate that arise, for example, from the distribution of dividends or other transactions
with the associate’s shareholders, are charged against the proceeds received or granted. No
effect on the Group’s net result or equity is recognized in the course of these transactions.
However, when the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognize
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments in behalf of the associate.
If the associate subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognizing its share of
those profits only after its share of the profits exceeded the accumulated share of losses that
has previously not been recognized.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

{c) Interests in Jointly Controlled Operations

For interest in jointy controlled operations, the Group recognizes in its consolidated
financial statements its share of the assets that it controls, the liabilities and the expenses that
it incurs and its share in the income from the sale of goods or services by the joint venture.
No adjustment or other consolidation procedures are required since the assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of the joint venture are recognized in the separate fihancial statements
of the venturers.

(@) Transactions with NCI

The Group’s transactions with NCI that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as. transaction with the owners of the Group in their capacity as
owners. The difference between. thé fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of the net assets of the substdiary is recognized in equity.
Disposals of equity investments to NCI result in gains and losses for the Group that are also
recognized in equity. : :

When the Group ceases to have control over a subsidiary, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognized in profit or loss. The fair value is the initiat carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
telated assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

1.4 Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognized when the Group becomes a pasty to the contractual terms of the
financial instrumeént. Financial assets other than those designated and effective as hedging
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instruments are classified into the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit
ot joss (FVTPL), loans and receivables, heid-to-maturity investments and AFS financial assets.
Financial assets are assigned to the different categories by managemest on initial recognition,
depending on the purpose for which the investments were acquired.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on their trade date. All financial
assets that are not classified as at FVTPL are initially recognized at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs. Financial assets carried at FVTPL are initially recorded at fair value
and transaction costs related to it are recognized in profit or loss.

The financial asset categories currently relevant to the Group are as follows:
(@) Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Group provides
money, goods or setvices directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the recervables.
They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the
teporting period which are classified as non-current assets.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less impairment loss, if any. Impairment loss is provided when there is

- - .= - Objective evidence that.the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due to it in
accordance with the original terms of the receivables. The amount of the impairment loss
is determined as the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.

The Group’s financial assets categorized as loans and receivables are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position as Cash and Cash Equivalents, Trade and
Other Receivables (except Advances to Contractors and Suppliers) and Advances to
Related Parties. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits and
short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less,
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value.

(6)  AES Financial Assets

This category includes non-derivative financial assets that are either designated to this
category ot do not qualify for inclusion in any of the other categories of financial assets.
They are classified as non-current assets in the consolidated statement of financial position
unless management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months from the
reporting period. The Group’s AFS financial assets include proprietary golf club

" ‘membership shares and are presented as part of the Other Non-current Assets account in
the consolidated statement of financial position. : -

All financial assets within this category are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains and
losses from changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income, net of any
income tax effects, and are reported as part of the Unrealized Losses on: AFS Financial
Assets account in equity. When the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative fair value gains or losses recognized in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and is presented as reclassification
adjustment within other comprehensive income,
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Reversal of impairment losses are recognized in other comprehenslve income, except for
financial assets that are debt securities which are recogmzed in profit or loss only if the
reversal can be objectively related to an event occutring after the impairment loss was
recognized.

‘All income and expenses, if any, including impairment losses, relating to financial assets that are
recognized in profit or loss are presented as part of Finance Costs or Finance Income in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

For investments that are actively traded in organized financial markets, if any, fair value is
determined by reference to exchange-quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the
reporting period. For investments where there is no quoted market price, fair value is determined
by reference to the current market value of another instrument which is substantiatly the same or
is calculated based on the expected cash flows of the underlying net asset base of the investment.

- Non-compounding interest, dividend income and other cash flows resulting from holding
financial assets are recognized in profit or loss when earned, regardless of how the related
carrying amount of financial assets is measured.

The financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
financial instruments expire, or when the financial assets and all substantial risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred.

1.5 Real Estate Transactions

Acquisition costs of raw land intended for future development, including other costs and
expenses incurred to effect the transfer of title of the property to the Group, are charged to the
Tand for Future Development account, These costs are reclassified to Property Development
Costs account when the development of the-property starts. Related property development costs
are then accumulated in this account. Borrowing costs on certain loans, if any, incurred during
the development of the real estate properues are also capitalized by the Group as part of Property
Development Costs.

The cost of real estate property sold before completion of the development, if any, is determined
based on the actual costs incutred to date plus estimated costs to complete the development of
.the property. The estimated expenditures for the development of sold real estate property, as
determined by the project engineers, are charged to the cost of residential and condominium units
- sold presented in the consolidated statement of comprehenstve income with a correspondmg
credit to the liability account, Rcaerve for Property Development account. '

Costs of properties and projeéts accounted for as Land for Future Development, Property
Development Costs and Real Estate. and- Resort Shares for Sale are assigned using specific
. identification of their individual costs. These properties and projects are valued at the lower of
cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary

course of business, less estimated costs to complete and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

The Group recognizes the -effect of revisions in the total project cost estimates in the year in
which these changes become known., Any impairment loss from a real estate project is charged to
operations duting the period in which the loss is determined.

Revenue and cost relative to forfeited or back-out sales are reversed in the current year as they
occut.
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1.6 Prepayments and Other Assets

Prepayments and other assets pertain to other resousces controlled by the Group as a result of
past events. They are recognized in the consolidated financial statements when it is probable that
the Future economic benefits will flow to the entity and the asset has a cost or value that can be
measured reliably.

Other recognized assets of similar nature, where future economic benefits are expected to flow to
the Group beyond one year after the end of the reporting period (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business, if longer), are classified as non-current assets.

1.7 Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, except land, are carried at acquisition or construction cost less
subsequent depreciation, amortization and any impairment losses. As no finite useful life for land
can be determined, related carrying amount are not depreciated. Land is stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for additions, major improvements

_ and renewals are capitalized; expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to expenses as
incurred. :

Depreciation and amortization is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Building -. . ‘ . 50 years,

Building and office improvements ' - 5-10 years
Office furniture, fixtures and equipment  3-5years
Transportation and other equipment 5 years

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount

“'The residual values and estimated useful' lives of ‘pfoperty and equipment are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting petiod. '

© An itém of property and equipmeént, including the related accumulated depreciation, amortization

- and impairment losses, is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss atising on derecognition

~of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal- proceeds and the carrying.
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the year the item is dérecognized.

Fully depreciated and amortized assets arc retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use
and no further charge for depreciation is made in respect of those assets.

1.8 Investment Property

Investment property consists of parcels of land and buildings held for lease. Buildings are carried
at cost less accurnulated depreciation and any impairment losses. Land is stated at cost less any
impairment losses. '
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The cost of an asset comprises its putchase price and any directly attributable expenditure.
Expenditures for additions, major improvements and renewals are capitalized; expenditures for
repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred.

Amortization is computed on 4 straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the assets as
follows:

Land development and improvements 20 years
Building and improvements 10-50 years

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its recoverable amount.

Transfers to, or from, investment property shall be made when and only when there is a change
in use.

An item of investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss anising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the profit or loss in the year the item is derecognized.

1.9 Financial Liabilities

Financial Habiiities, which include Trade and Other Payables (except tax-related liabilities, if any),
Advances from Related Parties, Due to Joint Venture Partners and Redeemable Preferred Shares,
are recognized when the Group becomes a pasty to the contractual terms of the instrument. All
interest-related charges, if any, incurred on financial liability are recognized as an expense in profit
or loss under the caption Finance Costs in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Financial labilities are recognized initially at their fair values and subsequently measured at
amortized cost less settlement payments,

Preferred shares, which carry a mandatory coupon ot atre redeemable on specific date or at the
" option of the shareholder, are classified as financial liabilities and presented as a separate line item
in the consolidated statement of financial position as Redeemable Preferred Shares.

Dividend distributions to shareholders, if any, are recognized as financial liabilities when the
dividends are approved by the BOD. The dividends on the redeemable preferred shares of a

*‘subsidiary are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as interest
expense on an amortized cost basis using the effective interest method. :

Financial liabilities are classified as current lLiabilities if payment is due to be settled within one

- year or less after the reporting period (of in'the normal operating cycle of the business, if longer),
or the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlernent of the liability for at least
twelve months after the teporting period. Otherwise, these are presented as non-current
liabilities. :

Financial liabilities are derecognized from the consolidated statement of financial position only
when the obligations are extinguished either through discharge, cancellation or expiration.

1,10 Business Combination

Business acquisitions are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting .
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Goodwill, if any, represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition.
Subsequent to initial recognition, goodwill, if any, is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and cartied at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Impairment Josses on goodwill are not reversed.

Negative goodwill, which is the excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of net
identifiable assets acquired over acquisition cost, is charged directly to income.

For the purpose of impairment testng, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefic from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose. The cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units are identified
according to operating segment.

Gains and losses on the disposal of an interest in a subsidiary include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to it.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquiter is required to remeasure its
previously held equity interest in the acquiree at its acquisition-date fair value and recognize the
resulting gain or loss, if any, in the profit or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate.

“Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognized. at fair value at the

acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognized in accordance with PAS 37, Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured,
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

171 Segment Reporting

‘Operating segments ate reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the Group’s BOD; its chief operating decision-maker. The BOD is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.

In identifying its operating segment_s,,manégement generally follows the Group’s products and
service lines, which represent the main products and services provided by the Group. -

Each -of these operating segments .is managed separately as each-of these service lines tequires
different resources as well as. marketing approaches. All inter-segment fransfers are carried out at
arm’s Jength prices, e L B

The measurement policies the Group uses for segment reporting is. the same as those used in-its
- consolidated financial statements. In addition, corporate assets which are not ditectly attributable

to the business activities of any operating segment are not allocated to a segment.

Theze have been no changes from prior petiods in the measurement methods used to determine
reported segment profit or loss.

112 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of economic
resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the outflow may still
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be uncertain; A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or constructive
commitment that has resulted from past events.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation,
based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting period, including the
risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Where there are a number of
similar obligations, the likelihood that ac outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. When time value of money is material, long-term
provisions are discounted to their present values using a pretax rate that reflects market
assessments and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage
of time is recognized as interest expense. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present obligations
is considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for cannot be measured

- reliably, no liability is recognized in the consolidated financial statements. Simdarly, possible
inflows of economic benefits to the Group that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of an
asset are considered contingent assets, hence, are not recognized in the consolidated financial
statements. On the other hand, any reimbursement that the Group can be virtually certain to
collect from a third party with respect to the obligation is recognized as a separate asset not
exceeding the amount of the related provision.

- - 113- Offsetting of Financial Instruments . ... : e e

Financial assets and Habilities, particularly advances to and from related parties, are set-off and the
resulting net amount 15 reported in the consolidated statements of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.- -

114 Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenue is measured by reference io the fair value of consideration received or receivable by the
Group for goods sold and services rendered, excluding value-added tax (VAT).

Revenue is recognized to the extent that the revenue can be reliabiy measured; it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the Group; and the costs incurred or to be incurred can be
measured reliably. In addition, the following specific recognition criteria must also be met before
revenue is recognized:

(4)" -'Real estate sales - For financial feporting purposes, revenuiés from transactions covering sales
of tedl estate are recognized under thé percentage-of-completion method. Under this
method, realization of gross profit is recognized by reference to the stage of development
of the properties, Le., revenue is récognized in the period in which the work is performed.
“The unrealized gross profit 'on a period’s sales is presented as Deferred Gross Profit on
Real Estate Sales in the consolidated statement of comprehezisi{re income; the cumulative
unrealized gross profit as of the end of the year is shown as Deferred Income on Real
Estate Sales in the consolidated statement of financial position, '

The sale is recognized when a certain percentage of the total contract price has already been
collected. If the transaction does not yet qualify as sale, the deposit method is applied uaul
all conditions for recording the sale are met. Pending the recognition of sale, payments
received from buyer are initially recorded as part of Customers’ Deposits account in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Revenues on sales of undeveloped land and golf and resort shares for sale, on the other
hand, are recognized using the full accrual method. Under the full accrual method, revenue
is recognized when the risks and rewards of ownership in the undeveloped land and golf
and resort shares have passed to the buyer and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably. Revenues and costs relative to forfeted or back out sales are reversed in the
current yeat as they occur.

Any adjustments relative to previous periods’ sales are recorded in the current period as
they occur.

For tax reporting purposes, a modified basis of computing the taxable income for the
period based on collections from sales is used by the Group.

(b)  Maintenance incomre — Revenue is recognized when performance of mutually agreed tasks has
been rendered. ' ‘ ‘

(:)  Rental income and hotel operations - Revenue is recognized when the performance of

* contractually agreed tasks has been substantially rendered. Rental income s recognized on

a straight-line basis over the lease term. Advance rentals received are recorded as deferred

rental income. For tax purposes, rental income is recognized based on the contractual
terms of the lease. : Ce e e

(d)  Interest — Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues taking into account the effective yield
on the asset.

(¢)  Dividends — Revenue is recorded when the stockholders’ right to receive the payment s
established.

Cost of real estate sales before completion of the projects include the acquisition
cost of the land, development costs incurred to date, applicable borrowing costs
and estimated costs to complete the project, determined based on estimates made by the project
engineers on the stage of completion of the real estate project.

Cost and expenses and other costs (other than costs of real estate sold) are ;ecogtiized in profit or
loss upon utilization of the services ot goods or at the dafe they are inicurred. All finance costs
are reported in profit or loss on an accrual basis, except capitalized borrowing costs which are

" included as part . of | the = cost of  the related qualifying ;asset.

1.15 Operating Leases
‘The Group accounts for its leases as follows:
(@) Group ar Lesser

Leases which do not transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments (net of
any incentive received from the lessor) are recognized as expense in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Associated costs, such as repairs and maintenance
and insurance, are expensed as incurred.
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(b)  Group as Lessor

Leases which do not transfer to the lessee substandally all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease income from operating
leases is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group determines whether an arrangement is, ot contains, a lease based on the substance of
the arrangement. It makes an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the
asset.

1.16 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

The accounting records of the Group are maintained in Philippine pesos. Foreign currency
transactions during the year are translated into the functional currency at exchange rates which
approximate those prevailing on transaction dates.

Foreign currency gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as part of
income or loss from operations.

1.77 Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Group’s Investments in Associates, Investment Property, Property and Equipment and other

" non-financial assets are subject to impairment testing whenever ecvents or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result, assets are tested for impairment either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level.

Impaument loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount which is the higher of its fair value less costs to
sell and its value in use. In determining value in use, management estimates the expected future
cash flows from each cash-generating unit and determines the suitable interest rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data used for impairment testing procedures
are directly linked to the Group’s latest approved budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude the

- effects of asset enhancements. DlSCOUﬂt factors are determined individually for each cash-
generating unit and reflect management’s assessment of respective risk profiles, such as market
and asset-specific nisk factors.

All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously
' recognized may no longer exist and the carrying amount of the asset is adjusted to the recoverable

amount resulting in the reversal of impairment loss.

118 Employee Benefits

(a)  Defined Benefit Plan

The Group has an unfunded, non-contributory defined benefit plan covering all regular

employees.
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A defined” benefit plan is a post-employment ptan that defines an amount of
post-employment benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on
one or more factors such as age, years of service and salary. The legal obligation for any
benefits from this kind of post-employment plan remains with the entity, even if plan assets
for funding the defined benefit plan have been acquited. Plan assets may include assets
specifically designated to a long-term benefit fund, as well as qualifying insurance policies.
The Group’s defined benefit post-employment plan covers all regular full-time empioyees.

The liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position for defined
benefit post-employment plaas is the present value of the defined beaefit obligation (IDBO)
at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets, together with
adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The DBO s
calculated annually by independent actuaties using the projected unit credit method. The
present value of the DBO is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows
using interest rates derived from the interest rates of a zero coupon government bonds as
published by the Philippine Dealing and Exchange Corporation that are denominated in the
curtency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating to
the terms of the related post-employment liability.

Actuarial gains and losses are not recognized as an income or expense unless the total
untecognized gain or loss exceeds 10% of the greater of the obligation and related plan
assets. The amount exceeding this 10% corridor is charged or credited to profit or loss over
the employees’ expected average remaining working lives. Actuarial gains and losses within
the 10% corridor are disclosed separately. Past-service costs ace recognized immediately in
profit or loss, unless the changes to the post-employment plan are conditional on the
employees remaining in service for 2 specified period of time (the vesting period). In this
case, the past-service costs are amortized ona straight-line basis over the vesting period.

(b} Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before the
normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
“exchange for these benefits. The Company recognizes termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to either: () terminating the employment of cutrent employees
‘according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal;-or (i) providing
"*  termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the reporting period are discounted to their ..
present value.

(z) ' C"ompenmred Absences

" Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days (including holiday
entitlemnent) remaining at the end of the reporting petiod. They are included in the Trade
and Other Payables account of the consolidated statement of financial position at the
undiscounted amount that the Group expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlernent.

1.79 Share-based Employee Remuneration

The Company grants share options (o key executive officers eligible under a stock option plan.
The services received in exchange for the grant, and the corresponding share options, are valued
by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted at grant date. This fair value
excludes the impact of non-market vesting conditions (for example profitability and sales growth
targets and performance conditions), if any. The share-based remuneration is recognized as an
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expense in profit or loss and the corresponding share option is presented as Share Options
Outstanding account in the equity section of the consolidated statement of financial position.

The expense is recognized during the vesting period based on the best available estimate of the
number of share options expected to vest. The estimate is subsequently revised, if necessary,
such that it equals the number that ultimarely vest on vesting date. No subsequent adjustment 1s
made to expense after vesting date, even if share options are ultimately not exercised.

Upon exescise of share option, the proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs up to the nominal value of the shares issued are ailocated to capital stock with any excess
being recorded as additional paid-in capital (APIC), and the cost of the stock option under Share
Options Outstanding account is reclassified to APIC.

120 Borrowing Costs

For financial reporting purposes, bosrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the perod in
which they are incurred, except to the extent that they are capitalized. Borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset {.e., an
asset that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale) are capitalized
as part of cost of such asset. The capitalization of borrowing costs commences when
expenditures for the asset and borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalization ceases when
substantially all such activities are complete.. For income fax purposes,. interest and other
borrowing costs are charged to expense as incurred.

1.21 Related Party Relationships and Transactions

Related party transactions are transfers of resources, services or obligations between the Group
and its related parties, regardless whether a price is charged.

"Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
These parties include: (a) individuals owning, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, control ot are controlled by, or under common control with the Group; (b)
associates; and, (c) individuals owning, direcdy or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the
Group that gives them significant influence over the Group and close members of the family of
any.such individual. , T T '

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of
the relationship and not merely on the legal form. '

122 Equity

Capital stock represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

APIC represents premium received on the initial issuance of capital stock. Any transaction costs
associated with the issuance of shares are deducted from APIC, net of any related income tax

benefits. .

Share options outstanding sepresents the corresponding credit upon recognition of
share-based remuneration expense in profit or loss.

Unrealized losses on AFS financial assets represent fosses recognized due to changes in fair values
of these assets.
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Retained earnings represent all current and prior pericd resuits of operations as reported in the
profic or loss section of the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, reduced by the
amounts of dividends declared, if any.

123 Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is determined by dividing the consolidated net profit by the weighted
average number of common shares subscribed and issued during the year, after giving retroactive
effect to any stock dividends, stock split or reverse stock split declared in the current year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed in the same manner as the basic earnings per share and
assuming further that at the beginning of the year or at the time of issuance during the year, all
outstanding convertible instruments were converted to common stock and the conversion would
result to a decrease in the basic earnings per share or increase in the basic loss per share.

1.24 Income Taxes

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and cutrent tax not
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, if any.

Current tax assets or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal authorities

. relating to the.current or prot reporting period, that are uncollected or unpaid at the reporting
period. These are calculated using the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods 0
which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets of
liabilities are recognized as a component of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the lability method on temporary differences at the end of

- the reporting period between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their catrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes. Under the liabilicy method, with certain exceptions, deferred tax
liabilities are recognized for "all taxable temporary differences and deferted tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences and the carryforward of unused tax losses and
uaused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewcd, at the chd of each reporting period and
' reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow ail
ot part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

* Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at_the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled provided such tax rates have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting petiod.

"Most changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax expense in
profit or loss. Only changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities that relate to items recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity are recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the Group has a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same entity and the same taxation authority.
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125 Events After the Reporting Period

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Group’s consolidated
financial position at the end of the reporting perod (adjusting event) is reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events, if any, are
disclosed when material to the consolidated financial statements.

External Auditor

The Group has engaged the services of Punongbayan & Araullo during the most recent calendar year.
There were no disagreements with Punongbayan & Araulio on any matter of accounting and financial
disclosure.

Attendance of Accountants at the Meeting

Representatives of the Corporation's external accountants, Punongbayan & Araullo, for the Calendar Year
2012, are expected to be present at the Annual Stockholders' Meeting scheduled oa 27 June 2013, Said
accountants will be given the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and will be available
to respond to appropriate questions on the Corporation's financial statements.

BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION
Form and Date of Otganization

Global-Estate Resozts, Inc. (“GERI” or the “Company”) formerly Fil-Estate Land, Inc. was incotporated
on May 18, 1994 to consolidate the real estate interests and development activities of the Fil-Estate Group
of Companies. GERI is also tasked to engage in land acquisitions and to maintain an inventory of raw
land for future development by the Company and its subsidiaries. GERI.went public in November 1995
when its common shares were listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

GERI is one of the leading property development companies in the Philippines and has operated through
predecessor companies since 1981, The Company engages primarily in the horizontal development of
residential subdivision lots, integrated residential, golf and other leisure-related properﬁes integrated
tourism estates development and vertical deve[opment of mixed-use towers.

- The Company reduces its capital exposure _substantially by 'acquiring its land bank through joint ventutes
- with landowners. These agreements generally provide that the Company will undertake the development
and marketing of the project. -

GERI has seven (7) subsidiaries:

Fil-Estate Properties, Inc. (“FEPI”), was incorporated and organized under the laws of the Philippines
on February 13, 1990. FEPI is involved in the development/construction and sale of residential
subdivisions and commercial lots, condomintum buildings and townhouses and sale of golf and resort
shares.

Fil-Estate Golf and Development, Inc. (“FEGDI”), was registered with the Securittes and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on March 6, 1990 to engage primarily in golf and leisure development. Among the
notable projects undertaken/completed by FEGDI are The Manila Southwoods Golf Course in Carmona,
Cavite, and Forest Hills Golf Course in Antipolo City .

Fil-Estate Urban Development Corporation (“FEUDC”) was incorporated and organized under the
laws of the Philippines on March 6, 2000. FEUDC's primary purpose is to acquire by purchase, lease,

21|fage
MANAGEMENT REPORT



donation, or otherwise or to own, use, improve, develop, subdivide, sell, exchange, lease, hold for
investment or otherwise, real estate of all kinds, including building, houses, apartments and other
structures and to construct, improve, manage or otherwise dispose of buildings, condominiums and other
structures of whatever kinds, together with their appurtenances; and to perform all and everything
necessary and proper for the attainment of or in furtherance of this purpose, either alone or with other
corporations ot individuals. In 2011, FEUDC amended its Articles of [ncorporation to include, as part of
its primary purpose, operation of buildings, condomintums and other structures such as hotels, including
but not limited to the operation of dining, function, and lodging facilities. Its development projects
include townhouses and hotels.

Novo Sierra Holdings Corporation (*Novo Sietra™) was incorporated and organized under the laws of
the Philippines on March 4, 2010. Novo Sierra’s primary purpose is to invest in, purchase or otherwise
acquire and hold, use, sell, assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange, or otherwise dispose of personal
property of every kind and description, including shares of stocks, bonds, debentures, notes, evidence of
indebtedness, contracts and other securities and obligations of any corporation, partnership, company or
association, whether domestic or foreign for whatever lawful purpose or purposes the same way have
been organized; and to pay therefore in moaey or by exchanging therefore in stocks, bonds, debentures,
notes or other evidences of indebtedness or securities, and while the owner or holder of such notes,
evidence of indebtedness, contracts and other securities and obligations of any corporation; to receive,
collect and dispose of the interest, dividends and income adsing from such property and investments and
to possess and exercise in respect thereof, all nights and powers and prvileges of ownership to the extent
authorized by law, without however engaging in any banking or quasi-banking activities, nor shall the
. corporation engage in the business of an investment company as defined in the Investment.Company Act
R.A. 2629) without complying with the provisions of the said act; provided it shall not engage in stock
brokerage and dealer in securitres.

Twin Lakes Cotporation (“Twin Lakes™) was incorporated and organized under the laws of the
Philippines on March 2, 2011. Twin Lakes primary purpose is to acquire by purchase, lease, donation or
otherwise and to own, use, improve, develop and hold for investment or otherwise, real estate of all kinds,
and to construct, improve, manage or otherwise deal in or dispose lots, buiidings, house and lots, as weil
as condominium units, townhouses, shopping malls, commercial centers, retirement communities, schools
and dormitories, mixed-use property projects and other structures of whatever kind and description,
together with any and all of their appurtenances, with the end in view of building and establishing new
communities, towns, cities and urban centets.

Megawotld Global-Estate, Inc. (“MGEI") was incorporated and organized under the laws of the

- Philippines on March14, 2011. MGEI primary purpose is to-market, acquire, hold, operate, dispose of by
putchase, sale, exchange, mortgage, barter, lease or in any other manner, conditionally or absolutely, real
estate and/or improvements thereon.or other properties for residential, commercial or recreational
purposes, or any interest therein, and to own, hold, improve, develop and manage any real estate, golf
course, buildings, structures or other properties or interest therein so acquired, as well as erect or cause to
be erected on any real estate or other properties, held or occupied by the corporation buddings, plants,
factories, recreation facilities, or other similar structures with their appurtemnces It acts as the marketing
arm of the Company and its subsidiaries, : :

Oceanfront Properties, Inc. {“OPI”) was incorporated on October 12, 2010 and started commercial
operations on August 9, 2012. OPI was incorporated primarily to own, use, improve, develop, subdivide,
sell, exchange, lease and hold for investment ot otherwise, real estate of all kinds, including buildings,
houses, apartments and other structures.

GERI also owns 20% of the equity of four (4) marketing companies namely Fil-Tstate Realty Corporation
(“FERC™), Fil-Estate Network, Inc. (“FENI"), Fil-Estate Sales, Inc. (“FEST") and Fil-Estate Realty Sales
Associates, Inc, (“FERSAI”) which formerly marketed the old projects of GERI prior to the formation of
MGEL
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PLAN OF OPERATION

On January 20, 2011, Alliance Global Group, Inc. (AGI) acquired a 60% majority stake in the company. It
was envisioned by AGI that the company would be the vehicle for the Group for the development of
master planned integrated tourism estates in the country’s prime tourist destinations.

In line with this primary objective of becoming a leading developer of master planned integrated tourism
estates in the country, on March 29, 2011 the company was renamed Global-Estate Resorts, Inc.

The company intends to focus on the development of master planned integrated tourism estates in
Boracay, Laurel, Batangas, and Nasugbu, Batangas which shall provide the bulk of the company’s
reverues i the long term.

For the year 2012, the company launched four new projects within these major tourism estates and one in
Hollo. These are Oceanway Residences 1 & 2 and Boracay Savoy Hotel in Newcoast Boracay, Domaine
Le Jardin in Twin Lakes, Laurel, Batangas, and Sta. Barbara Heights Phase 2 in TloIlo.

The company intends to launch in 2013 other components of these major tourism estates such as the
Vineyard in Twin Lakes, a 177-hectare development, Sta. Barbara Heights Phase 3 in Tloilo, and Belmont
Hotel and Oceanway Residences 3, 4 & 5 in Newcoast Boracay.

While focus will be on_integrated toutism estates, the company, also_plans to continue completion of
- ongoing residential subdivisions and high-rise developments as well as Jaunch other subdivision projects.

The company intends to utilize equity and internally generated funds to meet the development
requirements for these projects. ‘

The company shall be open to co- development atrangements and other sources of financing should
additional funds be required.

The company also intends to build up its recusring income by increasing its rental income and income
from hotel operations. In 2012, the company increased the number of available rooms for hotel
operations from 192 to 29, With the upbeat tourist arrivals projected by the Department of Toursm,
hotel revenues are expected to contribure substantia].ly to the company’s recurring income.

Marketing of the, company 8 products shall be- e‘{cluswely handled by its subsldlary Megaworld Global:

Estate, Inc.
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

LIQUIDITY RATIOS
December 31, December 31,
March 31, 2013 2012 2011
Cusrent Ratio 3.22 3.33 341
Quick Ratio 0.38 0.40 0.83

Curvent Ratio (Current Assets) Current Lzabz!zizef)

Liquidity ratio measures a company’s ability to pay short-term obligations.

Quick Ratio (Cash and cash egﬂz'y_a,;/mti + Current Trade receivables Citrrent Liabilitier)

[t measures a company’s ability to meet its short-term obligations with its most ltquid assets.

LEVERAGE OR LONG-RANGE SOLVENCY RATIOS -

March 31, 2013 | December 31, | December 31,

_ 2012 2011
Debt to Total Assets 30% 20% 24%
Equity to Total 70% 71% 76%
Assets
Debt to Equity 42% 40% 32%
Asset To Equity 1.42 1.40 132

Debt to Total Assets

It shows the creditors’ contribution to the total resources of the organization.

Eguity to Total Assets :
It shows the extent of owners’ contrlbutton to the total resources of the organization.

Debt to Equity

Tt retates the exposure of the creditors to that of the owners.

Asset To Equity (Total Assets/ Total Owner's Equity)

It measures the company’s leverage.
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PROFITABILITY RATIOS

Decembet December 31,
March 31,2013 31,2012 2011
Return on Equity 0.58% 2.1% 1.7%
Return on Assets 0.33% 1.2% 1.1%
Earnings per Share 8(.0098 £0.035 B 0.029

Return on Eguity (Net Income/ FEquity Attributable to Parent Company’s shareholders)
It tests the productivity of the owners’ investments.

Return on Assets (Net Income/ Total Assets) ,
"T'his ratio indicates how profitable a company is relative to its total assets.

Earnings per Share (EPS)

It indicates the earnings for each of the common shares held.

ACTIVITY RATIOS

December 31, December 31,
March 31, 2013 2012 2011

Asset Turnover ‘ 0.91% 3% 2%

Asset Turnover (Sales/ Total Assets)
It measures the level of capital investment relative to sales volume.

Management Discussion and Analysis

Review of Intetim petiod March 31, 2013

Results of Operations

Consolidated revenues for the three-month period ended March 31, 2013 amounted to B 436.4 million
with an increase of 15% compared to B 378.9 million in March 31, 2012. The Company’s real estate sale
-of P 229.5 million came mainly from sale of lots in Newcoast Shophouse District and Newcoast Village in

.. Malay, Aklan,. Sta:. Barbara Heights in Ilo-Ilo City, and Twin Lakes Domaine le Jardin in Laurel,

Batangas. Income from rentals and golf course maintenance contracts amounted to 2 48.5 million.
Realized gross profit on prior yvears’ real estate sales amounted to 2 27.2 million. Hotel revenues as of
March 31, 2013 amounted to 2 72.6 million, an increase of 168% from P 27.0 million as of March 31,
2012 due to expansion of hotel operations in Boracay. Balance of revenues was conttibuted by interest
and other income of 258.7 million.

Cost and expenses posted an increase of R 27.3 million or 8% from B 328.1 million in Matrch 31, 2012 to
P 355.4 million as of March 31, 2013 mainly due to deferred gross profit on real estate sales and cost of
hotel operations.
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The company posted a £80.9 million Net Income or 59% increase for the three-month period ended
Masch 31, 2013, as compared to a Php50.8 million net ncome realized as of March 31, 2012, mainly due
to increase in real estate sales and hotel revenue,

As a result, Barnings per shase increased to Php 0.0098 from the previous year’s level of Php 0.0068.

Major Movements of Income Statement Accounts are as follows:

e  20% Increase in Real Estate Sales - mainly due to increase in sales generated from new projects.

e 57% Dectease in Reaiized gross profit on prior years’ real estate sales — due to majotity of the
deferred income from old projects were realized in 2012,

e  23% Decrease in Service and Rental Income — Due to decrease in revenue from golf course
maintenance
168% Increase in Hotel Operations — due to expansion of hotel operations

e 68% Increase in Equity in Net Earnings of Associates, interest and other income — Primarily due
to increase in interest and other income.

o 7% Decrease in Cost of Real Estate Sales - due to majority of the sales realized for the period
came from sale of lots.

e  49% Increase in Deferred Gross Profit on Real Estate Sales— mainly due to sales realized for the
period came from newly launched projects. '

e 240% Increase in Cost of Hotel Operations — mainly due to increase in hotel revenue.

e 31% Decrease in Cost of Services — mainly due to decrease in service revenue. o

e 12% Decrease in Operating Expenses — mainly due to decrease in registration fee and tax

~ expense. :

e * 14% Decrease in Interest and other charges — mainly due to decrease in other charges

e 68% Increase in Income Tax expense — due to increase in taxable income -

Financial Condition

The Group’s financial position remained stable. Total assets as of March 31, 2013, Php25.2 billion
compared to Php24.6 billion as of December 31, 2012, posted an increase of Php623 million or 3%.

Teade and other receivabies increased by 7% due to the increase in installment sales booked for the
petiod, from Php1.99 billion in December 2012 to Php2.13 billion in March 2013, Advances to related
parties increased from Php930.2 million in December 2012 by 5% to Php973.6 million in March 2013.
Real estate and resort shares for sale increased by 7% from Php 7.8 billion in December 2012 to Php8.3 "
billion in March 2013 due to increase in percentage of completion of on-going projects. Property
Development Cost increased by 6% due to development of new projects. ‘ o

Advances from related parties increased by 25% mainly due to additional advances from parent company.
Reserve for property development cost increased by 6% due to increase in accrual of development cost
incurred for the period. Deferred Income on real estate sales increased by 6% due to deferred gross profit
from sales recognized for the period. Deferred Tax Liability also increased from Php125.2 million in
December 2012 to Phpl53.3 million in March 2013. The 22% increase is due to increase int taxable
temporary difference.

Major movements of Balance Sheet Accounts are as follows:
e 7% Increase in Trade and other receivables — due to increase in installment sales booked during

the period.
o 5% increase in Advances to Related Parties — mainly due to additional advances.
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o 7% Increase in Real estate and resorts share for sale — due to increase in percentage of completion
of on-going project.

e (% Increase in Property development cost — due to increase in development of new projects

e 25% Increase in Advances from related parties — mainly due to additional advances from parent
company

o % Increase in Reserve for Property Development Cost — due to increase in accrual of
development cost for the period

e 6% Increase in Deferred Income — due to deferred gross profit from real estate sales recognized
for the period. .

e 22% Increase in Deferred Tax Liability — due to increase in taxable temporary difference.

o 16% Increase in Other non-current liability — mainly due to non-curtent portion of customer’s
deposit from sales reservation for the penod.

Qthers

As of the quarter ended March 31, 2013, there are no material events and uncertainties known to

management that would have an impact on the future operations such as:

a. Known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that would have an impact on the
Company;

b. Material commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such commitment and the
expected sources of funds for such expenditures;

¢:--Known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or -that.are reasonably .expected to have a .
material favorable or unfavorable impact on the net sales/revenues/income from continuing
operations;

d. Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’s continuing operations;
e. Causes for any material changes from period to period in one or more line item of the Company’s
financial operations; ‘
f. Seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of the operations;

g Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the company,
including any default or acceleration of an obiigation;

h. All material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent
obligations), and other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities of other persons
created during the reporting period. _

Review for the year ended December 31, 2012

On January 15, 2011, the Compaﬁy’s Board bf Directors BOD) éi;prd%red the changé in dccounting
petiod of the Company from fiscal year ending September 30 to calendar vear ending December 31. The
" changg in accounting period was approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC} on March
29, 2011. |

In line with the change in accounting period approved by SEC on March 29, 2011, for the year 2012, SEC

required the Group to file comprehensive income staternent with three comparative periods, for the year

ended December 31, 2012, short period three months ended December 31, 2011 and for the year ended
. September 30, 2011 ' '

Results of Operations
For the year ended December 31, 2012 the Group consolidated net income amounted to Php265.1million.
Consolidated total revenues amounted to Php1.39 billion. The bulk of revenues came from real estate

sales, realized profit on prior years’ sales, hotel operations, rental and finance and other income. Real
estate sales came from the sale of residential subdivision lots amounting to Php684.9 million. The Group’s
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registered sales came from sale of lots in Newcoast Shophouse District and Boutique Hotel in Malay,
Aklan, Sta. Barbara Heights in Tloilo City, and Twia Lakes Domaine Le Jatdin in Laurel, Batangas.

Total cost and expenses amounted to Php1.07 billion, mainly from cost of real estate sales and operating
expenses resulting from aggressive marketing activities as well as other administrative and corporate
overhead.

Financial Condition

The Group’s financial position remained stable. Total Assets of Php24.6 billion as of December 31, 2012
compared to Php21.0 billion as of December 31, 2011 posted an increase of Php3.6 billion or 17%.

Cash and cash equivalents decreased by 53% from Php993 million in December 2011 to Php466 million
as of December 31, 2012 as result of project development. Trade and other receivables increased by 16%
mainly due to real estate sale of new projects. Other current and non-cusrent assets increased by 50% due
input tax. Land for future development increased by 51%, mainly due to land acquisition and land
investment of stockholders in Twin Lakes Corporation. Real estate and resotts shates for sale increased by
8%, from Php7.2 billion as of December 31, 2011 to Php7.8 billion as of December 31, 2012, mainfy due
to development of vatrious projects. Investment properties increased by Php27.8 million due to project
development. Property and equipment increased by Php163.6 million due to construction of additional
buildings used for hotel operations.

“Trade and other payables increased-by 23% mainly due.to. payable to contractors and suppliers. Reserve
for property development decreased by 14% due to increase in development of various projects.
Advances from related parties increased by 46% due to additional advances. Redeemable preferred shartes
increased by 100% due to redeemable preferred shares issued to stockholders of Twin Lakes Corporation.

Shareholders’ Equity increased by 11% from Php15.9 billion to Php17.6 billion mainly due to increase in
minority equity in T'win Lakes Corporation.

Matetial Changes in the year December 2012 Financial Statements
(Increase/decrease of 5% or more versus December 31, 2011)
Financial Position

e Cash and cash equivalents decreased by Php526.9 million (53%) to Php466.0 milkion from the
end of December 2011 level of Php993 million as a result of project development.
‘. 16% increase in Trade and other receivable mainly due to increase in real estate sale
» 8% increase in Real estate for sale due to increase in project developmment
" e 15% increase in Advances to related party mainly due to additonal advaaces
e 50% increase on other current and non-current assets mainly due to input tax

e  51% increase in Land for future development due to land acquisition and land investment in one
of the subsidiaries : _ o '

s 8% increase in Investmeiit Property mainly due to project development

e 33%increase in Property and équibment due to construction of additional buildings used for
hotel operations

e  46% increase in Advances from Related Party due to additional advances

e 23% increase in Trade Payables mainly due to increase in payable to contractors and suppliers

e 12% decrease in Customers’ deposits due to sales recognized for the period

e 14% decrease in Reserve for property development due to increase in development of various
projects

e  100% increase in Redeemable preferred shares due to redeemable preferred shares issued to

stockholders of Twin Lakes Corporation.
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e 56% increase in Deferred tax Labilities due to increase in temporary tax difference

e 8% increase in Retirement benefit obligation due to accrual of retirement benefit

e 143% increase in Other non-current liabitity mainly due to reclassification of account

e 11% increase in equity mainly due to increase in investment in Twin Lakes Cotporation

QOthers

As of the year ended December 31, 2012, there ate no material events and uncertainties known to

management that would have an impact on the future operations such as:

a. Known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that would have an impact on the
Company;

b. Matedal commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such commitment and the
expected sources of funds for such expenditures;

¢. Kaown trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a
material favorable or unfavorable impact on the net sales/revenues/income from continuing
operations;

d. Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’s continuing operations;

e. Causes for any material changes from petiod to period in one or more line item of the Company’s
financial operations; ‘

f  Seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of the operations;

g, Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the company,

- including any default or acceleration of an obligation; o S

h. All material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent
obligations), and other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities of other persons
created during the reporting period.

Review of the short petiod_covering the three months ended December 31, 2011

Results of Operations

For the three months ended December 31, 2011 the Group consolidated net income amounted to
Php33.3 million. Consolidated total revenues composed of real estate sales, rental income, and other
income amounted to P252.4 million.

Total cost and expenses amounted to P205.6 million, mainly from operating expenses resulting from
aggressive marketing activities as well as other administrative and corpotate overhead., '

The bulk of consolidated revenues came from real estaté sales and finance and other income. .

- 'Real estate sales came from the sale of horizontal residesitial subdivision lots and condominium units
amounting to Php167.1 million. The Group’s registered sales came from sale of horizontal residential
subdivision lots in Riverina in San Pablo Laguna, Sta. Barbara Heights in Ilo-Tlo City and Newcoast
Boracay. ' : RS o '

Review for the vear ended December 31, 2011

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Group consolidated net income amounted to Php220.1
million. Consolidated total revenues composed of real estate sales, rental income, maintenance income
and other income amounted to Php1.05 billion.

Total cost and expenses amounted to Php783 million, mainly from operating expenses resulting from
aggressive marketing activities as well as other administrative and corporate overhead'and from cost of
real estate sales.
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The bulk of consolidated revenues came from real estate sales and finance and other income.

Real estate sales came from the sale of horizontal residential subdivision lots and condominium units
amounting to Php470.7 million. The Group’s registered sales came from sale of condominium units in
Eight Sto Domingo Place in Quezon City, residential lots in Magnificat Exec. Village in Lipa Batangas,
Riverina in San Pablo Laguna, Monte Cielo De Naga in Naga City, Sta. Barbara Heights in Tlo-Ilo City,
Boracay Newcoast in Malay Aklan and sale of commercial lots in Carmona Cavite.

As of December 31, 2011

Financial Condition

The Group’s stable financial position has improved further. Total assets as of December 31, 2011 of
Php21.0 billion compared to Php18.6 billion as of September 30, 2011 posted an increase of Php2.4
billion or 13% primarily due to increase in land held for future development..

Cash and cash equivalents decreased by 44.36% from Phpl.78 billion in September 2011 to Php993
million as of December 31, 2011 as a result of land acquisition and project development. Land for future
development increased by 92%. Real estate and resosts share for sale increased by 5% from Php6.9 billion
as of September 30, 2011 to Php7.2 billion as of December 31, 2011 mainly due to development of
various projects. Investment property increased by Php126.0 million due to project development. Other
- —-- current and non-current assets increased by.46% due to input tax. . . .

Shareholders’ equity increased by 15% from Php13.8 billion to Php15.9 biilion

Material Changes in the year December 2011 Financial Statements
(Increase/decrease of 5% or more versus September 30, 2011)

Financial Position .

e Cash and cash equivalents decreased by Php791.6 million (44%) to Php993 million from the end
of September 2011 level of Phpl.78 billion as a result of land acquisition and project
development. -

e 5% Increase in Real Estate for Sales due to additional project development

e 9% Increase in Advances to Related parties mainly due to reclassification of accounts
46% Increase in Other Current and non-current assets mainly due to pre-payments
92% Increase in Land for future developmeént due to land investment in a subsidiaty
61% Increase in Investment property mainly due to project development .

111% Increase in Advances from related party due to additional advances

11% Decrease in Trade payables mainly due to payment and reclassification of account
- 19% Increase in Reserve for property development cost due to reclassification of account
s 15% Increase in Equity due to investment to Twin Lakes Corporation - -

Others

As of the year ended December 31, 2011, there are no material events and uncertainties known to

management that would have an impact on the future operations such as:

a. Known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that would have an impact on the
Company;

b. Material commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such commitment and the
expected sources of funds for such expenditures;
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¢. Known treads, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a
material favorable or unfavorable impact on the net sales/revenues/income from continuing
operations;

Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’s continuing operations;

e. Causes for any material changes from period to period in one or more line item of the Company’s
financial operations;

f. Seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of the operations;

g, Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the company,
including any default or acceleration of an obligation;

h. All material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent
obligations), and other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities of other persons
created during the reporting period.

Review of 2011 versus 2010 (for the year ended September)

Results of Operations

Durng the fiscal year 2011, the Group consolidated net income amounted to Phpl9.4 million, a
significant improvement from the previous year net loss of Php153.3 mullion. Consolidated total revenues
composed of real estate sales, rental income, service income and other income increased by 12% from
Php776.3 million to Php867.5 million.

Cost and expenses decreased By 16% from Php957.1 millicn in 2010 to Php802.5 million in 2011, ‘mainly -
due to decrease in finance cost and operating expenses. :

The bulk of consolidated revenues came from real estate sales and finance and other income.

'Rea] estate sales came from the sale of horizontal residential subdivision lots and condominium units
amounting to Php326.0 million in 2011 compared to Php381.8 million in 2010, a slight decrease of 15%.
The Group’s fegistered sales came from sale of condominium units in Eight Sto Domingo Place in

" Quezon City, residential lots in Magnificat Exec. Village in Lipa Batangas, Riverina in San Pablo Laguna,
Monte Cielo De Naga in Naga City, Sta. Barbara Heights in llo-Tlo City and sale of commercial lots in
Carmona Cavite.

Financial Condition

" Thé ‘Group’s stable financial position has improved further with the Php5.0 billioti equity infusion by -
Alliance Global Group, Inc. (AGT) Total assets as of September 30, 2011 Php18.6 billion compared to
Php15.3 billion as of September 30,2010 posted an increase of Php3.3 billion of 22%. S ‘

Cash and cash equivalents increased by 2,078% to Php1.78 billion as a result of the equity infused by AGL
Trade and other receivables increased by 7% mainly due to revenue recognized for the period. TLand for
future development increased by 50% due to additional land acquisition for the period. Bank loan and- -
bonds payable were fully paid duting the period. '

Shareholders’ equity increased by 62% from Php8.5 billion to Php13.8 billion

Jl|rPage
MANAGEMENT REPORT



Material Changes in the year 2011 Financial Statements
(Increase/decrease of 5% or more versus September 30, 2010)

Financial Position

Cash and cash equivalents increased by Php1.80 billion (2,078%) to Php1.78 billion from the end
of September 2010 level of Php81.96 miilion as a result of the subscriptions received from
Alliance Global Group Inc.(AGI).

704 Increase in Trade and other receivables mainly due to revenue recognized for the period.
10% Increase in Real Estate for Sale due to additional project development

41% Dectease in Advances to Related parties mainly due to collection and proper classification of
accounts. :

9% Decrease in Other Current and non-current asset mainly due to pre-payments

17% Increase in Property development cost as a result of project development

50% Increase in Land for future development due to additional land acquisition during the
period.

19% Decrease in Investment property mainly due to reclassification of account.

37% Increase in Property Plant and Equipment due to reclassificadon of account and additional
propetty acquisition for the period.

8% Increase in Customers’ deposit as a result of new project launched during the year.
7% Increase in Reserve for Property Development Cost due to additional accrual.

6% Increase in Deferred Income in relation to sales recognized during the period.
60% Dectease in Advances from related party due to payment and reclassification of account.
Loans payable and Bonds payable were fully paid duting the perdod.

14% Decrease in Deferred tax liability pertains to tax effects of taxable deductible temporary
difference.

Results of Operations

Qthers

15% Decrease in Sale of Real Estate due to lower sales recognized for the period.

100% Increase in Income from assignment of development rights due to agreements with related
partles.

388% Increase in Realized Gross Profit in prior years sale mainly due to revenue recognition in
prior years sales. : ‘

14% Increase in Rental Incéme due to esealation and additionl tenant for the petiod. -

17% Decrease in Finance and other income mainly. due to previous year recognition of forex gain.

10% Increase in Cost of Sales due to costs adjustment during the period

- 52% Increase in Cost of Services mainly due to increase in prices of materials for the maintenance

of golf course.

153% Increase in Deferred Gross profit in relation to uncompleted portion of sales recognized
during the period. ' ' ' S ' ' '

50% Decrease in Finance Cost mainly due to full settlement of loans and bonds payable

As of the year ended September 30, 2011, there are no material events and uncertainties known to
management that would have an impact on the future operations such as:

a.

Known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that would have an impact on the
Company; ‘
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b. Material commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such commitment and the
expected sources of funds for such expenditures;

c. Known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a
material favorable or unfavorable impact on the net sales/revenues/income from continuing
operations; '

d. Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’s continuing
operations;

e. Causes for any material changes from petiod to period in one or more line item of the Company’s
financial operations;

f.  Seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the firancial condition or results of the operations;

There are no events that will trigger direct or contingent financial ebligation that is material to the
company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH
ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

In complidnce with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 8, Series of 2003, and the Company's Manual of
Cotporate Governance, which require that the Company's external auditor be rotated or the handling
partner changed every five (5) years or earlier, the Company's Board of Directors approved, on 30
June 2011, the designation of Punongbayan & Araullo for the audit of the financial statements of the
Company starting the year ending 30 September 2011, The haadling partner then designated was Mr.
Leonardo D. Cuaresma Jr. who is one of the Audit & Assurance partners of Punongbayan &
Araullo.

For the year 2012, the partner designated is Mr. Nelson J. Dinio who is one of the Audit and Assurance
partnets of Punongbayan and Araullo.

Thete ate no disagreements with the auditors on any matter of accounting principles or practices,
financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which, if not resolved to their
satisfaction, would have caused the auditors to make reference thereto in their reports on the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

AUDIT AND AUDIT- RELATED FEES

For the audit of the registrant's financial statements provided by the external auditors in connection with

* statutory and regulatory filings for the calendar and fiscal year report of 2012, 2011 and 2010, audit fee

' was approximately=R 0.85 million for the year 2012, £0.75 million for the calendar year report and 8 1.2
million for the fiscal year report in 2011 and £ 1.0 million in 2010 - ..~ - B AR ORI

No other assurance and related services have been rendered by the external auditors to the Corporation
. other than the items discussed above. ' L :

Item 9. Market for Registrant's Common .Equi(ty and Related Stockholder Matters
(1) Stock Prices
‘Global-Estate Resorts, Inc. common shares are listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange. Share prices have

been retroactively adjusted to reflect the effects of stock dividends paid by the Company up to 31
December 2012,
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Philippine Stock Exchange
Average Closing Price per Share ()

High
2012
First Quarter 219
Second Quatter 1.89
Third Quarter 1.99
Fourth Quarter 1.91
March 31, 2013 232
2011
First Quarter ' 1.98
Second Quarter : 2.04
Third Quarter 2.58
Fourth Quarter 2.19

Low

211
1.83
1.93
1.87
2.26

1.85
1.97
2.46
211

The market capitalization of GERI as of 14 May 2013 based on the closing price at P2.50 per share of
GERI's shares at that date, was approximately P21.22 billion.

(2) Holders

GERI has a total of about 4,442 common shateholders as of May 14, 2013.
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TOP 20 STOCKHOLDERS AS OF MAY 14, 2013

Stockholder

Alliance Global Group, Inc.

_ PCD Nominee Corporation(Filipino)

Fil-Estate Management, Inc.

- PCD Nominee Cogporation(Foreign)

CAP Pension Trust Fund
Greenfield Development, Corporation

" JohnT. Lao
‘Lucio W. Yan

Romeo G. Roxas

Avesco Marketing Corp. -

RBL Finishing Corporation

Wilbur L. Chan =~ :
Jennifer C. Lee or Josephine C. Lim

Gilmore Property Marketing Associates, Inc.

Federal Homes, Inc.

Philippine Veterans Bank FAQ
Comprehensive Annuity Plans & Pension
Corp

Fritz L. Dy

Dynaland Properties & Developers, Inc.

No. of Shares

5,405,000,000
1,396,661,058
1,112,774,606
457,878,360
9,263,280
8,640,000

7035100 -

. 5,755,000
3,716,000
3,512,106
2,924,998
2,611,825
2,000,000
1,083,000
1,939,860
1,837,428

1,813,500
1,700,001

% of
Ownership

63.69%
16.46%
13.11%

5.40%
0.11%
. 0.10%
- 0.08%
0.07%
0.04%
0.04%
0.03%
0.03%
0.02%
0.02%
0.02%
0.02%
0.00%

0.02%
0.02%
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Robert John L. Sobrepena 1,617,485 0.02%
20 Mazxime S. Uy &/or Lim Hue Hua 1,478,400 0.02%

Total 8,430,142,007 99.34%
Dividends

The retained earnings account as of December 31, 2012 is restricted from being declared as dividends to
the extent of the undistributed net earnings of subsidiaries associates and joint ventures amounting (o
B 3,97 billion in December 2012,2 3.67 billion in December 2011 and 2 3.63 hillion in September 2011 .
No declaration of cash dividends was made in the last three (3) years.

(4) Recent Sale of Untegistered or Exempt Securities including Recent Issuance of Securities
Constituting an Exempt Transaction

On August 28, 2010, the Company’s stockholders approved the increase in the Company’s authorized
capital stock from P5 billion to P10 billion. The Company’s application for increase in authorized capital
stock was approved by the SEC on January 20, 2011. Thereafter, the Company issued 5.0 billion fully-paid
shares to AGI representing sixty-percent (60%) of the outstanding capital stock of the Company.

The issuance to AGI is an exempt transaction under Sec. 10.1 (). Nonetheless, the Company filed on
December 5, 2011 a Notice of Exempt ‘Transaction in connection with the issuance of shares to AGI,
citing Sec. 10.1 (i) of SEC.

On September 2011, Lim Asia Multi-Strategy Fund, Inc. (LAMSFI) a holder of the Company’s warrants,
converted six million (6,000,000) warrants into six million (6,000,000) common shares of the Company at
an exercise price of P1.00 per share.

On 18 May 2012, LAMSFI converted another sixty-two million (62,000,000) warrants into sixty-two
million (62,000,000) common shares of the Company at an exercise price of P1.00 per share.

On July 30, 2012, Lim Asia Alternative Real Estate Fund SPC (LAAREF), also a holder of GERI
warrants, converted sixty-eight million (68,000,000) warrants into sixty-eight million {68,000,000) common
shares of the Company at an exercise price of P1.00 per share.

" The LAMSFI and LAAREF warrants comprise the one hundred thirty-six million (136,000,000) warrants
‘that were issued by the Company for which an exemptive relief was sought. The Commission issued a
Resolution dated February 16, 2007 confirming that issuance of thé one hundred thirty-six (136) million

wattants is exempt from registration requirements of the Securities Regulation Code. *
No underwriters were involved in the sales of the above unregistered of exempt securities.
Discussion on Compliance with Leading Practice on Corporate Governance -

~ The Cotporation had adopted the Self-Rating System on Corporate Governance being implemented by

the Securities and Exchange Commission through SEC Memorandum Circular No. 5, Series of 2003 to
assess compliance with leading practices on corporate governance. The Compliance Officer meets with

the directors and top-level management from time to time to evaluate compliance with the Corporation's

Manual on Corporate Governance.

In order to comply fully with the adopted leading practice on good corporate governance, the Compliance
Officer is present at all meetings of the Board of Directors and closely coordinates with the Chairman and
the President to ensure full compliance with the adopted leading practices on good corporate governance.
The Compliance Officer furnishes the Board of Directors and top-level management with copies of new
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rules, regulations, circulars and orders of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Philippine
Stock Exchange to continuously update its Directors and top-level management with new requirements
for compliance with leading practices on corporate governance. In addition, the Compliance Officer
requires and encourages its Directors and top-level management to attend seminars on good corporate
governance.

There are ao material deviations to date from the Cotporation's Maaual of Corporate Governance. The
Board has no immediate plans to adopt new policies for corporate governance.

Undertaking to Provide Annual Report

The Corporation undertakes to provide each stockholder without charge a cop.y of its Annual Report on
SEC Form 17-A upon written request addressed to either of:

Mr. Roberto S. Roco Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc.

Corporate Information Officer Stock Transfer Department

56 Floor Renaissance Tower Makati Ave. Cor. H.V. dela Costa St.
" Meralco Ave., Pasig City Makati City
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GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC.

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Global-Estate Resorts, Inc. and Subsidiaries is respoasible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements for the years ended December 2012
and 2011 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS), including the.
following additional supplemental information filed separately from the basic financial
statements: ‘

a. Supplementary Schedules Required under Annex 68-E of the Securities Regulation Code
Rule 68 ' o : :
Reconciliation of Retained Barnings Available for Dividend Declaration.
* Schedule of PFRS Effective as of December 31, 2012
Schedule of Financial Indicators for December 31, 2012 and 2011. L
Map showing the Relationship Between and Among the Company and its Related
Entities
£, Schedule of Proceeds and Expenditures for the Recent Public Offering
g. Details of Transactions with I2OSRI

o oe o

Managernent responsibility on Gnancial statements includes designing znd implementing internal
controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board of Directors teviews and apptroves the fimancial statements, and the addinonal
supplementary information, and submits the same to the stockholdezs.

Punongbayan & Araullo, the independent auditors and appointed by the stockholders, has examined
the financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing and, in
its report to the Board of Directors and stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of
presentation upon completion of such exarmnination.

Andi:v L. Tan

Chairman of the Board

Fg}?aé;T. Santos
President
éoberto 4000

Id
Chief Finance Officer Kbn]‘/
4 6lh

Floor, Renaissunce Tower, Meralco Avenue, Pasig City 1600
Telerhope No. (632) 6370100
BURE AU OF INTERNAL REVENUE
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SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this z 1da§A%f2mB at

P , Philippines, affiants ‘exhibited to me their respective Identification Cards, as
follows: - :
NAMES " Identification Card No:
Andrew L. Tan B - Philippine Passp‘or.f'No. EB1964603
Ferdinand T. Santos . Philippine Passport No. X¥X4696095

Roberto S. Roco - Social Security System ID No. 03-3359076-6

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal on the .
date and place above written.

Paciz, Spn Juan, Tapuig
APPt.NO. 75 uniil D 31, 2014
Doc. No. _{#1 . 6F Renaissance Towers, Marslco Avw Pasiz Gity
Page No. .'2.9 ‘ ' ~ - ATTORMNEY'S ROLL NO. 35468 '
Book No. IBP HR7147 FF'I"‘ 1-2-12
Serits of Z 19 PTR Nq. 82410445, Paziz 1-2-2013 ¢
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Global-Estate Resorts, Inc. and Subsidiacics
(A Subsidiary of Allianc Global Group, fnc)

Schedule of Philippine Financial Reponing Standirdzs and Interpretations

Adopied by the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
Finuncial Reporting Standards Council s aof Dceember 34, 2012

, — - T - T -
i . - N Not
PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS Adopted o .
& i o ' o] Adopied | Applicable
) e . . :
|Framework for the Preparation and Prescamtion of Financinl Statemeats =8
Conecprual Framework Phase A: Dhbijcetives and Qualitaive Charcteristics 5
Practice Statement Management Commentary x3
Phiiippine Fipancin! Reporting Sr:rnra’nrds‘(l’FRS)
First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards r
Amendments o PFRS 1: Additional Exempicns for Fiest-lime Adoprers 95
1PFRS1 Amendment 0 PERS 1: Limited Exemption from Comparative PRRS 7 Disclosures for Firsi- o
(Revised) tisme Adopters )
' ~ [Amendments 10 PERS 12 Seveee 1yperinfation and Remeval of Fised Date for Figzi-time %
Adopiers
Amendments to IR 1: Government Loans” (effectire Jannery 1. 2013) R
Share-based Payment o]
'FRS 2 Amendments 10 PERS 2 Vesiing Conditinas and Cancellations g3
Amendments 1o PIRS 2: Group Cash-seuted Share-based Payment ‘Cransacions 5
PFRS3 . .
businesy Combiaations for
(Revised) Businesg Combinations 25
Insuraace Conieacts [r]
PFRS 4
Amendments 1o PAS 32 and PFRS 4: Financial Guasaniee Contaacis s
FFRS § Non-current Assers Fleld-for $ale and Discontinued Operdons &
PFRS 6 Iixplaeatinn (or and Faahsation nf Minceal Resaurces 95
Financial Fostruments: Disclosures )
Amendments 1o PERS 7 Umnsidan -]
Amendments o PAS 39 and PIRS 7: Rechssilication of Financial Assets g5
Amendments 0 PAS 30 and PFRS 7 Reclassificaiion of Financial Assets - Effective Dare and o
Transiiton =
PFRS7 N . . - = - -
Amendments 10 RS 70 Improvisy Disclosures about Financial Instuments 95
Amendments 1o PIFRS 7: Disclosures - Translers of Financial Asseis 9%
Amendments to PIFRS T Disclasuees — Ofseoing Finaneal Asscts and Financial Linbilides® .
(effective faanary 1, 201)) =
Amendments 1o PFRS 7 Mandncory [lfecive Date of PFRS 9 and “Prnsiinn Disclosures” &
(ffective Junmary 1, 2013) =
PFRS 8 Operating Sepmeats a5
Ifinancial {astruments fefedine fanuney £, 20135) %
FFRS0 Amendments W BERS 9 Mandaony LiTecrive Dace of FIRE 9 aad ‘Fransison Disclosures o=
(effectise Jansmery 1. 2013) =
PFRS 10 Consohidawd Financial Statanems® (fecsive famary £, 2013) 5
Amendimenis ¢ PIFRS 10: Lrnsinon Guidance® (effectirr funiary 1. 201 3) X
Amendments s PERS 10: Tovesunent Enrivies® {effetire January 1, 2013) 95
PIFRS 1 [oine Arrangemenis’ (offectine Jansagy 1. 201 3) b3
Ameadments 1o PFIRS 11: Tmnsivon Guidance® feffviie Janaun 1, 2013)
PFRS 12 Pischosere of Interests in Qubee Lnities® (effective jaauary {, 201 3) 5
Amendments o PERE 12 Ueasinens Guidanct® fefferdfee Junnary 1. 201 3) h
Amendments to PERS 12 [ovestment Roiies” (efedite fannary 1, 20403) 5
PFRS 13 Frir Valuc deasurement* {effcsive fanwag: 1, 2013) %5




N 3 - TET i -

PHILIFPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS. Adopred | ﬂ::c ; Am:‘;;blc
E f e e n I IR ! i R - - )
Philippine Accovaving Standards (PAS)
Preseatation of Financiat Stalements <%
PAS1 Amendments @@ PAS 32 and PAS 1: Pusiable Financial lnsiruments ang Obligations Anising oa a5
{Revised) Liguidation :
Amendmenis 1 PAS 11 Preseniadon af Tiems of Chiher Comprehensive bncome 9%
PAS2 Inventories 5
PAS7T Statemnent of Cash Flows oo
PASE Accounting Policies, Changes i Accouadng Lstimates and lirrors g5
PAS 10 Evenig after the Reportiag Penod %
PASH  (Consiruction Contmets g5
PAS 12 lacome ‘Faxes : o5
Armendment to PAS 12 - Delersed Taxi Recovery of Underling, Assets g5
PAS16 Propeey, Plans and Liquipment ‘ o <
PAS1T Leases ' ' : . o
PAS 8 Revenue <5
PAS 19 Emgloyee Beachis ‘ ) [-r
Ameadrnents o PAS 19: Actuarial Gaing and Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures @
:l.:\csvilf_cd} Eemployee Wenelus® (effeciiee Janwary 1, 2013) €5
PAS 20 Accounting for Goversunent Granis and Disclosure of Goveenment Assisrance %
‘The Effeets of Changes in Foreign Bxchange Hates o5
PAS 21
Amendmena Net lovesimen in a Foreign Operaiion 5
Z?cs:.?:cd) Boerowing Cosis g5
:;?ci'idcd) Relawed Parry Dhsciosures - 5
PAS 26 Accouniing and Reporting by Redeescat lenelis Plans &
PAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Finaneml Smements 1
Amendmenis to PEIS 1 and PAS 2%: Coal of an bavestment i Subsidiary, Joinily Controlled -
Ennw of Asecmie = - = -
FI\Ati::dcd) Separmte Vinancial Stements* fefecsire fonwary 1, 204 3f + %
Amendments 10 PAS 27 {Amended): Tnvestmens Enivies® foffeiire fawnary 1, 2013) g5
PAS 28 Investiments in Assnciaies o]
PAS 28 Investmenis in Associnles and Joing Ventures™ (effedire jammry 1, 2013) o
{Amcnded)
PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hypeanationary Economies T
PAS 31 Inierests in Joint Venmees ds
Ifinangial Insteumenis: Presenation <r:]
.'\.m:‘.ndn“\cn(s o PAS 32 and PAS 1 Punalile Fisnancial lnscraments and Oblipatons Arising on o
PAS 32 Laguidatinn
Amendment o PAS 32 Classification of Righes issues j-r
.:On:j;dmcn::: 6 PAS 32 Offsetiing Pinancial Assess and Financial Liabiliaes” {ffective Junnary 1. %




3 4 | . ' o ) ) ' .
:}’H!Ll PPINE FIN;?EN(‘ZI: AL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS Adapeed |, dl::::c ‘ .r\p;fiz:tblc
L o n I . e - - - . -
PAS 33 Zaenimgs per Share 95
PAS M Inicrm Fisancial Reponing jor-]
PAS 36 impairment of Assers &5
PAS 37 Brovisinns, Connngent Finbilities and Contingent Assets T
PAS 38 Intangible Assels =
T Financial Inscromenist Hecognision and Measurement =F3) -
Amendments 10 PAS 3% Tansiton and sitial Recognition of Financial Asscts and Financial 5 -
Linbilitics
Amendments o VAS 3% Cash Flow Hedge Accauanting of Foreeast inteagroup Fransactions o
Amendments 10 PAS 39; e Fair Value Option @
PA_S » [Amendmenis to PAS 30 and PFRE 4: J5inancial Guaranuee Comecis s
© | Amendments to-PAS 30 and PERS T2 Rechssification of Finandial Asscrs ) g9
Ameadments 0 PAS 32 and |‘I_7RSl?:_]lcc]nssiﬁéqni_nn of Finn_ncinl Assris — 12ffecrive Date and &5
‘I'mnsitioa
Amentments o Philippine Inierpresation LERIC 9 aad PAR 3: Embedded Dedvatives 95
Amendment 16 PAS 39 Gligibk Hedged liems a5 °
PAS 40 Invesumens Prapeny ' 95
PAS 41 Agriculiure 93
Philippine faterpretiations « bateennrionid Financinl Reporting [nteqpremtions Commirtee (1FRIC)
IFRIC] Charnges in Existing ecommissioning, lestaration and Similar Liabilisies %5
IFRIC 2 Membiers' Share in Co-opeeative Entites and Similar [R—— =3
IFRIC 4 Descemining Whether an Acraagement Coniins a | ease ]
ERIC S :iﬁ:li:l;:‘!l:::ﬁr:\:;if::ﬁg {mm Du:nmmissii)ning. Restoration and [Environmental o
IFRIC § l:inl)‘ilillus Adsing [rem Paricipaning in a Specific Marker - Wasie Blectaenl and Hiccuwranic S
Equtpmeni : .
VERIC 7 f}ppl)‘ing he Resratemen: Approach uader I'AS 29, Financial 1lcpnr|}ng i Myperinflatonary %
Econamics
. Henssessmeal of Kmbedded Denvatives'” a5
1FRIC Y .
Amendenents 1o Philippine Toeepretation 1FRIC-9 and PAS 3% Embedded Dedvatives* ! 95
IFRIC 10 Inierm Financial Reporing and Impairment 95
IFRIC12 Service Concession Armnguments -]
LFRIC 1] Cusiomer }oyahy DMeoprmancs a5
PAS 19 - The Limi on s Delined Benelin Asset, SMinimum (funding Reguiremenss and their
IFRICH  jaection
J\mm'\dmcn:s 0 l‘h_ili.ppinc inu':rpn:mlioru TERIC - 14, Preepaymenss of 2 Minimam Funding o5
Keguircment and their Tnwcractiom
IFRIC 16 Hedpes of a Ner Investment in a Foecign Operanon B
ITHRIC 17 Distcihutinas ol Non-cash Assers to Owners™® 95
IFRRIC 18 Fransfers nf Asseix from Cusiomers=* 3
IFRIC 19 tixtinguishing Financial Liabilities with Bguity Insiasments® 5
IFRIC 20 Strpping Costs i the Production Phase of a Sueface Mine” (effective Jomeary 1, 201 3 T

.




! lhcsc \t'\|1d1ldk will be effec

tivie for perious subsequent to 2012 a0d ae oot encly adopred by she Campany.

“er Vst standards ave been sdopicl in he peeparation of foancal saremeacs I;nu e (3 Sempany has no sigeificant ransactions €o vured

i bach yeacs pruscenced.
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I’HIL]PI’ENL FINANCIAL REPOEU lNG S'I ANDARDS AND IN il'lRl’RE TAT ICINS ‘"”*F!l’u‘ Adopred h : N
e i i im“I |" . ML Adopred Applicable
= ' ot jf(\er s i iy M [ : ' S TR
Philippine Interpretatians - Saanding Interpremaons Commitier {SIC)
SEC-7 Intraduerion of the Buso a5
ASICA0 Crovernment Assislance - Na Specific Relation ro Operating Activitics go
Cansalidation - Special Pummse 1 ntines 95
S1C-12
Armcadment 1 81C - 12 Senpe of SIC 12 5
—— N .
SiC-13 Jowrdy Controliud Lnities - Non-Manctary Conuributions by Venwrers 9o
S1C-15 Operatng | eases - Incentives 5
SIC-25 Income Taxcs - Changes m the Tax Satus of an Barry or irs Shargholders™™ a5
S1C-27 Eraluaring the Substance of ‘Pzansacions Tnvolving the Legal Form of 2 Lease 95
SIC-29 Service Concession Aranpements: Disclesures fer J
SEC-31 Revenue - Darier Transactions lovolving Advernsing Services T T
$1C-32 Intamygble Asscls - Web Sie Cosrs*? 5




GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of Alliance Global Group, Inc.)
7th Floor, Renaissance Towers, Meralco Avenue, Pasig City

Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Unappropriated Retained Earnings at Beginning of Year P 389,384,344

Net Profit Realized during the Year A T
Net profit-per audited financial statements ' ' _ IR '8,523,70'3_
Non-actual/unrealized income, net of tax : R .
Income tax benefit arising from recognition of . : o S
* deferred tax assets o A (O U G42TL048)

Unappropriated Retained Earnings Available for ‘ . e cl e
Dividend Declaration at End of Year | : P 1 333,637,004
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GLOBAL-E.STATE RESORTS, INC.

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

‘The management of Global-Estate Resorts, Inc. and Subsidiaries is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements for the years ended December 2012
and 2011 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS), including the
following additional supplemental information filed separately from the basic financial
statements:

a. Supplementaty Schedules Required under Annex 68-E of the Securities Regulation Code
Rule 68

b. Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration.

¢.  Schedule of PFRS Effective as of December 31, 2012
Schedule of Financial Indicators for December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Map showing the Relationship Between and Arnong the Company and its Related
Enuties

£, Schedule of Proceeds and Expenditures for the Recent Public Offering
g. Details of Transactions with IDOSRI

Management responsibility on financial statements includes designing and implementing internal
controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board of Ditectors reviews and approves the financial statements, and the additional
supplementary information, and submits the same to the stockholders.

Punongbayan & Araullo, the independent auditors and appointed by the stockholders, has examined
the financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing and, in
its report to the Board of Directors and stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of
presentation upon completion of such examination,

Chairman of the Board

Fgf?dg"r. Santos
President

Krhc:m 4. Roco

J
Chiel Finance Officer m#/

6™ Iloos, Renaissance Tower, Meralco Avenue, Pasig City 1600

Teleplnng No. (632) 6370 100

SUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE }
. Riw1q3p WEST PASIG CITY

LOLCLEE TR TS,
‘}‘HAPRZO‘H i
oyl L

PSS Co Nk o .1




&Y Punongbayan & Araullo

An instinct for growth’

Consolidated Financial Statements and
Independent Auditors’ Report

Global-Estate Resorts, Inc. and Subsidiaties
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012,

For the Three Months Ended December 31, 2011
and for the Year Fnded September 30, 2011

Mamber of Grant Thornton International Ltd



Punongbayan & Araullo

An instinct for growth’

Repotrt of Independent Auditors

19th and 20th Fioors, Tower 1
The Enterprise Center

6766 Ayala Avenue

1200 Makati City

Philippines

T +63 2 886 55611
F +63 2 B85 5506
www.punongbayan-araullo.corm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Global-Estate Resorts, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(A Subsidiary of Alliance Global Group, Inc.)
7" Floor, Renaissance Towers

Meraleo Avenue

asig City

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of
Global-Estate Resorts, Inc. and Subsidiaties, which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as at December 31, 2012 and 2011 and the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of
changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for the year ended
December 31, 2012, for the three months ended December 31, 2011 and for the year
ended September 30, 2011, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consoliduted Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that ate free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud ox errot.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements

based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine

Standards on Auditing. Those standards ‘require that we comply with ethical

requirements and plan and petform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the consolidated Jwyige: m material misstatement.
FUREX VP INTERNAL REVENUE

KDL 431 WEST PASIG CITY

i 1T APR 2013
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Babance at Januare 1L 202
vdudiinans

Total compreheasive ncime for the period
Balunce at Llecember 3, 2012
Balance at Owtoher 12041

Adldinions

Toral comprehensive income e the period

Ralance i December 31,201

Balanee at Ooteber B 2001
Adbelingons

Totat compreheasive e for the pericad

Bulance a1 Septembor 34,2011

Note

GLOBAL-LNTATT
(A Subsidia
CONSOLIDATHED S
FORTEIL YL

FOR THE THREE
AND VOR THE
{Am

Adtributable 1o Pare)

Additional Shure Options
Cupital Stock Paidin Capital Questanding
i 350000000 P 1307759274 P -
[ROTD.LSELE ) - 3R.15271
I R, 484,(0¢),(KH) 1 1,597,739,274 1 3K,505,27
P 8336 INKRNN g 1.597.759.274 P -
[ B.330MKLIN0 ' 1.597,739.27+4 I -
n 3,350 80000800 P 1,397.759.2714 P .
S NG - ;
I’ 8,350,044 I L3030 274 1 -

See Notes



GLOBAL ESTATE RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Subsidiar of Alfiance Global Group, Inc.)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012,
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011,
AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
{Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

December 31,

December 31, 2011 Seprember 30,
2012 {U'hree Months- 2011
Notes {One Year) see Note 1.2) {One Year)
REVENUES AND INCOME
Real estale sales 2 r 684,883,471 P 167,108,367 r 326,066,713
Rental income 11 64,292,041 8,693,959 37,029,922
| fotel operations 2 131,330,139 4,791,033 -
Realied gross profit on prior yeurs”
real estate sales 2 287,942,717 - 38,989,311
Aaintenance income 2 22,315,085 - 99,530,252
Tncome from assignment of
developmenal pglis 7,20 - - 153,872,321
linance and other income 165 199,455,739 71,361,585 212,013,305
1,390,219,792 252 457 944 867,501,824
COSTS AND EXPENSES .
(ot ol real estate sales 17 264,521,139 23,865,733 142,739,219
Cost of services 17 30,155,257 2,898,334 75,528,892
Cost of hotel opesations 17 42,217,660 3,647,360 -
Dclerred gross profit on real estae sales 2 283,778,041 8,015,524 37,114,660
Lipurating expenses 17 340,734,904 132,333,590 335,019,369
fiquity share in net losses of associales In 5,890,949 2,068,991 8,621,107
Finance costs and other charges 16 103,181,682 25,137,896 203,511,939
1,070,479,492 205,617,754 302,535,186
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 319,740,100 46,840,190 44,966,638
TAX EXPENSE 19 54,688,188 . 13,575,002 45,607,606
NET PROFIT 265,051,912 33,204,588 19,359,032
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Unrealized Gite vaiue losses on
avadabile-for-sale Anancial asseis - - 208,974
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P 265,051,912 K 33,264,588 P 19,150,058
Net profit (loss) attributable to:
Parcut company’s sharchalders P 294,859,072 1P 42,978,060 1 19,968 543
Non-controlling interest ( 20,807,160y ( 9,713472)  { 609511)
P 265051912 P 33,264,589 P 19,359,032
Total comprehensive income (loss) attributable w:
Pacent company’s sharcholders r 294,859,072 P 42,978,060 r 19,759,569
Mon-controlling interest ( 29,807,160) 0713472)  ( 609511 )
r 265,051,912 K 33,264,588 1Y 19,150,058
EARNINGS PER SHARIZ
Hasic 0.005 P 0.003
rilued 0.005 & 0.003

Sec Notes oy Ch



GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Subsidian of Allfance Global Group, fnc.}
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012,
FOR'THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011,
AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 3¢, 2011
(Amaounts in Philippine Pesos)

December 31,

December 31, Ri{Th Seprember 300
2042 (1hree Months- 2001
Noles {Ome Year) see Note 1.2) (One Year)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

ot bl 1 r 319,740, 100 P 16840190 it 64,966,038

Lehpsnnenns for
Pavaner micome 16 { 118, 17,108 ) { 31663077 { 133,635,281
Iance cols o 74,060,080 20725973 183,517,312
Peprecmton and amortzanion 17 44,550,406 TIT5TF45 2303400
Share I employes compensation et | 38,515,271 - -
lpa o I 29,121,602 . . 1LM9.736
Py share innet losses ol associages [ 5,800,949 2668401 j621.007
G oo senlement of advanees 6 - ({ A1t -

Oyperaring (et be fore worksyr capual ehanpes 359,164,300 7344032 121733518
L2eceease (inc s tede and atlien ieeenwables { 317,748,543) 5 ( 238919.510)
Liwrease i veabeseare, golland resaet shaes tor sale ( 567,021,482} { { [AYATAFEYS]

in preaperry development costs { 585,431) { 17653808 ) ( 2TRIZTIEA)
s prepayents and other euneat wsers 4 331,709,757 ) { 212570254 { 4.307.339)
Preciease {merease) moadyanees wo real
CSIAIC Properhy pwners 4,789,254 { al6a32ty 330341943
Iner {be wreaede el oilier mahles 378,225,775 { HI2006,152) { DRALE2NY
T (e el in cusiomue:” degnsis . { 75,427,574) 324800600 43637934
Taercase (o i resenve for property development { 118,108,032) | LAlR303 ) 4173 M5
Tnaenee (e wi el income o real extate sales ( 13,118,312 } 24317 47 848,038
Tnevease (lecrease) m maent benefit ablygian 4,438,860 8843 { 5047329
Ingeease in other nonscerreal iabiines 106,229,702 74,153,261
Cask used Boperations ( 540,878,246 ) { a0delosn} 1009593737 3
: 17,307,316 18,398,501 73.138.286
ltevest panl { 17,528,908)  ( 13384428) 1630660304 )
Cash paid For meome tases { 3,449,357} { 201069237 { 16, 201L7501)
et Cash E et me Operatingg Servities - 544,048,995 { 531648703 { 1.116,325323 )
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTENG ACTIVITIES

Adbibibwns e
Peapetty dnd cympment 12 { 198,857,734 ) { §.3313008) { 121000
Ly estment ey 1 { 83,150,811y  { 1273020613 3.512539)
Lanel for turnre desclopmient ( 4,064,800  { HosR2024) B33 J8H280 )

Driscerds fron disposals of:

Prosperty and equipinent 12 1,773,745 - 266438
Try estmeit propurtys 1 - - 32000100

Carh advanees ranted o velied parties 0 ( 303,648,993) ( 2600368183 ( 37h915.211)

Callee s of advances e relared parhes elf] 179,154,985 IRFGIRNE]] BESO4351

Tncrense i other non-current issets { 13,326,968 } ( 6.R88.017) ( 2.860L833 )

Yuldiimal invessmess iy associates - - LEIATTT

St Cash Usedd i lnvesting vobvitses { 432,220,656)  { G330LA0TY | 3626112013

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash advanees oliamed Fram relaed partics 24 623,165,970 662,617 889 83145090
Repayinents of advantes from relicd pavies 0 ( 303,746,694 ( 27000y | SRENEDIATY
rogecds rom rsunnce of shares of steck 7N 136,000,000 - 40600000
Praceeds T eguny call - 3T .
Payment ol besids pavable - . { 1T ALY
Faviserts o oaes and mosypage pyable - - { AR 0T A45T )
Colleenons ol subseoptioms recewalle 21 - - 283,132,036
Nt Cash Foom Flaancing Activitivs 449,419,276 415081 940 3A81,670.028
NET INCREASE (DECRLEASL) IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS { 526,850,375 61T22TY 1702341204
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF PEREOLY 993,080,142 178607309 1057163

CASYIAND CASIE EQHIVALENTS

1. 783,697,309

AT END QU PERIOD /A’\ 466,229,767 1 A4 I
R '
el F‘“‘ M \G CXN

Supplemental [nfarmation an Noa-casl lmgumﬁq’(1 ﬂ:\‘m l%egl\l 1
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GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(A Subsidiaty of Alliance Global Group, Inc.}
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012, DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND
SEPTEMBER 30 2011
(Amoumts in Philippine Pesos)

GENERAL INFORMATION
1.1 Corporate Information

Global-Estate Resorts, Inc. (the Company or GERI) was incorporated in the Philippines
on May 18, 1994, primarily to engage in the horizontal development of residental
subdivision lots, integrated residendal, golf and other leisure-related propertics, and
vertical development of mixed-use towers in Metro Manila. The Company also engages in
land acquisiions and maintains an inventory of raw land for future development.

The Company’s shates of stock are listed at the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

Ihe registered office of the Company, which is also its principal place of business, is
located at the 7" Floor, Renaissance Towers, Meralco Avenue, Pasig City.

In January 20, 2011, Alliance Global Group, Inc. (AGI), also a publicly listed company in
the Philippines, became the Company’s parent company with its acquisition of 60% of the
Company’s shares of stock. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, AGI owns 64% and
61%, respectively, of the Company’s shares. AGI is a holding company with diversified
investments in real estate, food and beverage, manufacturing, quick service restaurants and
tourism-oriented businesses. AGTs registered office, which is also its primary place of
business, is located at the 7th Floor, 1880 Fastwood Avenue, Eastwood City CyberPark,
188 L. Rodriguez Jr. Avenue, Quezon City.

The Company holds interests in the following subsidiaries and associates

(collectively, together with the Company, heremafter referred to as the Group):

Percenrage of Owoership

Lixplanatory December 31, Decomber 31, Seprember 30,

sSubsidigrics/ A ssociates MNoles 2012 2011 20051
Subsidiaries:
19l-Estate Properies, Ine (F1PL) 100% 100" 0.
Al Holdlings bne. (A () 100% T {00
Hlu Sky Ateways, Tne (BRA) (1) 100% 100" e 100" 4
Fil-lstue Subie Devalopment Com. (THS1C) () 100% L0 o SO0
1ik-Power Construction Fguipment
easing Conp. (£PC11.0) (@ 100% 1007 n 10N°
Giolden Sun Adrwavs, Ine {GRAD (m} 100% 100" o 1K e
La Compana Do S Barbary, Tne. (LESBT (a) 100% LOUM " a
MON Corperation (AICN) () 100% 100% W,
Pionger 1.5 Realty ©om. (11.R0C) ) 100% " 100w
Prime Mieways, Tne (AT () 100% 10 5 100"
Sto. Lomingo Place Prevelopmunt Comp. (SIT1C) (6] 100% O o 100"
Fil-fower Conerete Blocks Comp (1FPCRC) (m) 100% HM o TH
Borteay Nowcoas! | olel Gronp, Tne. (BNTGT) () 100% -
Fil-Bstate Tndustrial Dk, Ine, (FLAPT () %% 79" 79"

Sherwond |l Development. ine. (81HID) {n) 55% 55" 55%



Pergentage of Ownershin

l5xplanatery December 31, December 3L Septomber 30,
Subsidiaries/ Associates Noes 2012 2011 011
Subsidiaries:
1il-Listare Golf and Developmont, Ine. (FEEGIT) 100%a 1000 100"
Golforee, Inc. (CGolfored) {13 100" 1000 10 e
Pil-bstate Yeocentrm Com (FEEC) (1 56% 56« 56"
Philippine Aquatic Teisure Corp, (PALC) (c} 56% 5670 56" 0
Iil-listare Urban Development Corp. {FELHDC) 100% 00 My
Nova Sierra | Toldings Corp. (NSHC) 100% 1" 1007
Megaworld Global-Fstates, Ine. (MG () l 60%s G G e
Twin Lakes Conp. (17100 (v} 50% 530 Lo,
Occanlront Properiies, Tne (OP1} n 50% - -
Associates:
Filstate Network, Ine, (FENT) 20% 20M 2N
ll-Esate Sales, Ine. {71581) 20% 200y 200
Fil-¥istate Realty and Sales Associates ne (FERSAT 20% e 200w
Fik-Fsrate Realey Conp (FIRC) 20% 200 20
Nasugbu Fropeeties, bne (NP1 14% 14%a 14"
o 0] - 50 500,

MNan-conteolling interests (Nl’-'.lj i 2002 anel 2001 eepresent the interests not hield by the Groupr  FEIPL ST, PR, PALC, MGHL

T and DAL

Explanatory notes:

(@ Subsidiarivs of FEPL percenlage ownership sepresents elfeetive ownershin ol GERI

) Subsidiarics of FEGD: percentage ownership cepresents eficetive ownership of GERT

fe)  Subsidiary of FEEC.

() Subsilinry acquived m 2001 prioarily 1o market the Group’s projeets.

(&) Subsidiary seguired in 2011 engagad in the real estate business. On June 6, 2011, 114 approved the additional issuanee of
its comman shares through exehange of cergun parcels of land owned by seveeal pastics, including the Company and 1HPL
Tlns transaction resulted ta the decrease of the Company’s offective owneeship over TLE from 1% 537, On
September 4, 2002, T wsued additional shares to third partics which further duereased the Company’s offeenve
o ershp over TLO from 53%e 10 50%6.

(M In 2012, the Company gained control over O s Bnancial and reporting policics, henee, considered as a subsudiasy starting

2012; engaged in the ceal estate bosiness,

Al subsidiarmes and associies were wcomporated incthe Philippines, opuerate within the country and are engaged m businesses telated
. faliel

(o the main business of the Company.
1.2 Change in Accounting Petiod

On January 15, 2011, the Company’s Board of Directors (BOD) approved the change in
accounting period of the Company from fiscal year ending September 30 to calendar year
ending December 31. The change in accounting period was approved by the Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC) on March 29, 2011.

1.3 Approval of the Financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2012 (including the comparatives for the three months ended
December 31, 2011 and the year ended September 30, 2011) were authorized for issue by
the Company’s BOD on March 22, 2013.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are summarzed below. The policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial statements -

(@)

(4)

(9

Statement of Compliance with Phifippine Finaniial Reporting Standards

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).  PFRS are adopted by the
Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) from the pronouncements issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the measurement bases
specified by PFRS for each type of asset, lability, income and expense. 'The
measurement bases ate more fully described in the accounting policies that follow.

Presentation of Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements are presented 1in accordance with
Philippine Accounting Standard (PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements. The Group
presents all items of income and expense in a single consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Two comparative periods are presénted for the consolidated
statement of financtal position when the Group applies an accounting policy
retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement of items in its consolidated
financial statements, or reclassifies items in the consolidated financial statements.

Functional and Presentation Currency

These consolidated financial statements ate presented mn Philippine pesos, the Group’s
presentation and functional currency, and all values represent absolute amounts except
when otherwise indicated.

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured
using the Group’s functional currency. Functional cutrency is the currency of the
primary economic envitonment in which the Group operates.
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2.2 Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

(«)

(%)

Eiffective in 2012 that is Relevant to the Group

In 2012, the Group adopted the following amendments to PFRS that are relevant to

the Group and effective for financial statements for the annual period beginning on or
after July 1, 2011 or January 1, 2012:

PFRS 7 (Amendment) : Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Transfers of Financial Assets
PAS 12 (Amendment) : Income Taxes — Deferred Taxes:

Recovery of Underlying Assets
Discussed below are the relevant information about these amended standards.

() PFRS 7 (Amendment), Financial Instraments: 1isclosures — Transfers of Financial .Assets.
The amendment requites addidonal disclosures that will allow users of financial
statements to understand the relationship between transferted financial assets that
are not derecognized in their entirety and the associated habilities; and, to evaluate
the nature of, and tisk associated with any continuing involvement of the repotting
entity in financial assets that are derecognized in their entirety. The Group did not
transfer any financial asset involving this type of arrangement; hence, the
amendment did not result in any significant change in the Group’s disclosutes i
its consolidated financial statements.

(i) PAS 12 (Amendment), Jncome Taxes — Deferred Tas: Recovery of Underlying Assets. The
amendment introduces a rebuttable presumption that the measurement of a
deferred tax liability or asset that arises from investment property measured at fair
value under PAS 40, Invesiment Property, should reflect the tax consequence of
recovering the cartying amount of the asset entirely through sale.  The
presumption is rebutted for depreciable investment property (c.g., building) that s
held within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the asset over time, tather than through sale.
Moreover, Standing [nterpretation Committee (SIC) 21, Income Taxes — Recovery of
Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets, is accordingly withdrawn and is incorporated under
PAS 12 requiring that deferred tax on non—depreéiable assets that are measured
using the revaluation model in PAS 16, Property, Plant and FEguipment, should always
be measured on a sale basis of the asset. The amendment became effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2012 but has no significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements as its investment property only
includes several properties measured at cost.

Eiffective in 2012 that is not Relevant to the Group

PERS 1, Firsr-time Adoption of PFRS, was amended to provide relief for frst-time
adopters of PFRS from having to reconstruct transactions that occurred before the
date of transition to PFRS and to provide guidance for entities emerging from severe
hyperinflation either to resume presenting PFRS financial statements or to present
PFRS financial statements for the first time. The amendment became effecave for
annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2011 but is not relevant to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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(c) Effective Subsequent to 2012 but not Adspted Early

There ate new PFRS, amendments, annual improvements and interpretations to
existing standards that are effective for periods subsequent to 2012. Management has
initially determined the following pronouncements, which the Group will apply in
accordance with their transitional provisions, to be relevant to its financial statements:

@

(i)

Gy

PAS 1 (Amendment), Financial Statements Presentation — Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprebensive Income (effective from July 1, 2012). The amendment requires an
entity to group items presented in other comprehensive income into those that, in
accotdance with other PFRS: (a) will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss; and, (b)) will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met. The Group’s management expects that this amendment will
change the current presentation of items i other comprehensive income
lie., unrealized fair value gains and losses on available-for-sale (AFS) financial
assets|.

PAS 19 (Amendment), Employee Benefits (effective from January 1, 2013). The
amendment made a number of changes as part of the improvements throughout
the standard. The main changes relate to defined benefit plans as follows:

o climinaies the corridor apptoach under the existing guidance of PAS 19 and
requires an entity to recognize all gains and losses arising in the reporting
period;

e  streamlines the presentation of changes in plan assets and liabilities resulting 1n
the disaggregation of changes into three main components of setvice costs, net
interest on net defined benefit obligation or asset, and remeasurement; and,

e enhances disclosure  requirements, including information about the
characteristics of defined benefit plans and the risks that entities are exposed to
through participation in them.

Currently, the Group is using the corridor approach and its unrecognized
actuarial loss as of December 31, 2012 amounted to P27.8 million which will be
retrospectively recognized as loss in other comprehensive income in 2013
(see Note 18.2).

Consolidation Standards

The Group is currently reviewing the impact on its consolidated financtal
statements of the following consolidation standards which will be effective from

January 1, 2013:

e  PEFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements. This standard builds on existing
principles of consolidation by identifying the concept of contro} as the
determining factor in whether an entity should be included within the
consolidated financial statements. The standard also provides additional
guidance to assist in determining control where this is difficult to assess.



(iv)

e PFRS 11, foint Arrangenents. This standard provides a more realistic reflection
of joint arrangements by focusing on the rights and obligations of the
arrangement, rather than its legal form. This standard réplaces the three
categoties under PAS 31, Interests in Jornt Ventures, mainly, jointly controlled
entities, jointly controlled operations and jointly controlled assets, with two
new categories — joint operatons and joint ventures. Moreover, this also
eliminares the option of using proportionate consolidation for joint ventures.

o  PERS 12, Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities. This standard integrates and
makes consistent the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other
entities, including joint arrangements, associates, special purpose vehicles and
unconsolidated structured entides.  This also inttoduces new disclosute
requirements about the risks to which an entity is exposed from its
involvement with structured entites.

o PAS 27 (Amendment), Separate Financial Statements. This revised standard now
covers the requirements pertaining solely to separate financial statements after
the relevant discussions on control and consolidated financial statements have
been transferred and included in PFRS 10. No new major changes relatng to
separate financial statements have been introduced as a result of the revision.

o PAS 28 (Amendment), Investments in Associate and Joint Venture. This revised
standard includes the requirements for joint ventures, as well as associates, to
be accounted for using equity method following the issuance of PFRS 11.

Subsequent to the issuance of the foregoing consohdation standards, the TASB
made some changes to the transitional provisions in International Financial
Reporting Standard (IFRS) 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12, which were also adopted by
the FRSC. The guidance confirms that an entity is not required to apply PFRS 10
retrospectively in certain circumstances and clatifies the requirements to present
adjusted comparatives. The guidance also made changes to PFRS 10 and
PFRS 12 which provide similar relief from the presentation or adjustment of
comparative information for periods prior to the immediately preceding period.
Further, it provides relief by removing the requirement to present comparatives
for disclosures relating to unconsolidated structured entities for any period before
the first annual period for which PFRS 12 is applied.

PYRS 7 (Amendment), Financial 1nstruments: Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assels
and Financial 1_iabilities (effective from January 1, 2013). The amendment requires
qualitative and quandtative disclosutes relating to gross and net amounts of
recognized financial instruments  that  are set-off in accordance with
PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation. The amendment also requires disclosure
of information about recognized financial instruments subject to enforceable
master netting atrangements or similar agreements, even if they are not set-off in
the statement of financial position, including those which do not meet some or all
of the offsetting criteria under PAS 32, and amounts related to a financial
collateral. These disclosures will allow financial statement users to evaluate the
effect or potential effect of netting arrangements, including rights of set-off
associated with recognized financial assets and financial liabilities on the entity’s
financial position. The Group does not expect this amendment to have a
significant impact on its consolidated financial statements. '
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PFRS 13, Fair VValue Measurement (effective from January 1, 2013). This standard
aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise
definition of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and
disclosure requirements for use across PFRS. The requirements do not extend
the use of fair value accounting but provide guidance on how it should be applied
where its use is already required or penﬁitted by other standards. The Group is
yet to assess the impact of this new standard.

PAS 32 (Amendment), Financial Instruments: Presentation — Offfsetting Financial Assels
and Financial Liabilities (effective from January 1, 2014). The amendment provides
guidance to address inconsistencies in applying the criteria for offsetting financtal
assets and financial liabilities. It clarifies that a right of set-off is required to be
legally enforceable, in the normal course of business, in the event of default and
in the cvent of insolvency or bankruptcy of the entity and all of the
counterparties. The amendment also clatifies the principle behind net settlement
and includes an example of a gross settlement system with characteristics that
would satisfy the criterion for net settlement. The Group does not expect this
amendment to have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.

PFRS 9. Financial Instruments: Clarification and Measurement (effective from
January 1, 2015). This is the first part of a new standard on classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilides that will replace
PAS 39, Financial Tnstruments: Recognition and Measurement, 1n its entirety. This
chapter ‘deals with two measurement categories for financial assets: amortized
cost and fair value. All equity instruments will be measured at fair value while
debt instruments will be measured at amortized cost only if the entity is holding it
to collect contractual cash flows which represent payment of principal and
interest. The accounting for embedded derivatives in host contracts that are
financial assets is simplified by removing the requirement to consider whether or
not they are closely related, and, in most arrangement, does not require separation
from the host contract.

For liabilities, the standatd retains most of the PAS 39 requirements which
include amortized-cost accounting for most financial liabilities, with bifurcation of -
embedded derivatives. The main change is that, in case where the fair value
option is taken for financial liabilities, the patt of a fair value change due to an
entity’s own credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive income rather than in
profit or loss, unless this creates an accounting mismatch.

To date, other chapters of PFRS 9 dealing with impairment methodology and
hedge accounting are still being completed.

Further, in November 2011, the IASB tentatively decided to consider making
limited modifications to 1FRS 9’s financial asset classification model to address
certain application issues.

The Group does not expect to implement and adopt PFRS 9 until its effective
date or until all chapters of this new standard have been published. In addition,
management 1s currently assessing the impact of PFRS 9 on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and is committed to conduct a comprehensive
study of the potential impact of this standard in the last quarter of 2014 before its
adoption in 2015 to assess the impact of all changes.



viil) Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for Construction of Real Estate. This -
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(i)

Philippine interpretation is based on IFRIC interpretation issued by the TASB
in july 2008 effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009.
The adoption of this interpretation in the Philippines, however, was defetred by
the FRSC and Philippine SEC after giving due constderations on various
application issues and the implication on this interpretation of the IASB's
on-going revision of the Revenue Recognition standard. This intetpretation
provides guidance on how to determine whether an agreement for the
construction of real estate is within the scope of PAS 11, Construction Contracts, or
PAS 18, Revenue, and accordingly, when revenue from the construction should be
recognized. The main expected change in practice is a shift from recognizing
revenue using the percentage of completion method (Le, as a construction
progresses, by reference to the stage of completion of the development) to
recognizing revenue at completon upon or after delivery. The Group is currently
evaluating the impact of this interpretation on its consolidated financial

statements in preparation for its adoption when this becomes mandatorily
effective in the Philippines.

2009-2011 Annual Improvements to PFRS.  Annual improvements to PFRS
(2009-2011 Cycle) made minor amendments to a number of PFRS, which ate
effective for annual period beginning on or after Janvary 1, 2013. Among those
improvements, the following amendments are relevant to the Group but

management does not expect a material impact on the Group’s consohdated
financial statements:

(a) PAS 1 (Amendment), Presentation of Financial Statements — Clarification of the
Reguirements for Comparative  Information.  'The amendment clarifies the
requirements for presenting comparative information for the following:

¢  Requitements for opening statement of financial position

If an entity applies an accounting policy retrospectively, or makes a
retrospective restatement or reclassification of items that has a material
effect on the information in the statement of financial position at the
beginning of the preceding period (i.e., opening statement of financial
position), it shall present such third statement of financial position.

Other than disclosure of certain specified information in accordance with
PAS 8, Acconnting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, related
notes to the opening statement of financial position as at the beginning of
the preceding period are not required to be presented.

e  Requirements for additonal comparative information beyond minimum
requirements

Tf an entity presented comparative information in the financial statements
beyond the minimum comparative information requirements, the
addidonal financial statements informadon should be presented in
accotdance with PFRS including disclosure of comparative information
in the related notes for that additional information. Presenting additional
comparative informadon - voluntarily would not trigger a requirement
to provide a complete set of financial statements.



-9.

(b) PAS 16 (Amendment), Property, Plant and Equipment — Classification of Servicing
Eguipment. The amendment addresses a perceived inconsistency in the
classification requirements for servicing equipment which resulted in
classifying servicing equipment as part of inventory when it is used for more
than one petiod. 1t clarifies that items such as spare parts, stand-by
equipment and setvicing equipment shall be recognized as property, plant
and equipment when they meet the definiion of property, plant and
equipment, otherwise, these are classified as mventory.

(©) PAS 32 (Amendment), Financial Instruments — Presentation — Tax Effest of
Distributions to Folders of Equity Instruments. The amendment clarifies that the
consequences of income tax relating to distributions to holders of an equity
instrument and to transacton costs of an equity transaction shall be
accounted for in accordance with PAS 12, Accotdingly, income tax relating
to distributions to holders of an equity instrument is tecognized in profit ot
loss while income tax related to the transaction costs of an equity transaction
1s recognized in equity. '

2.3 Basis of Consolidation

The Company obtains and exercises control through voting rights. The Group’s
consolidated financial statements comptise the accounts of the Company and 1ts
subsidiaties as enumerated in Note 1, after the elimination of material intercompany
transactions.  All intercompany balances and transactions with subsidiaties, including
income, expenses and dividends, are eliminated in full. Unrealized profits and losses from
intercompany transactions that are recognized in assets are also eliminated m full. In
addition, shares of stock of the Company, if any, held by the subsidiaries are recognized as
treasury stock and these are presented as deduction in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. Any changes in the market values of such shares as recognized
separately by the subsidiaries are likewise eliminated in full. Intercompany losses that
indicate impairment are recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

Financial statements of entities in the Group that ate prepared as of a date different from
that of the date of these consolidated financial statements were adjusted to recognize the
effects of significant transactions or events that occur between that date of their reporting
petiod and the date of these consolidated financial statements. Adjustments are also made
to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Company accounts for its investments in subsidiaries, associates, interests in jointly
controlled operations and transactions with NCI as follows:

(a) Investments in Subsidiaries

Subsidiaties are all entities over which the Group has the power to control the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that
are currently exescisable or convertible ate considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date the Group
obtains control, ditect or indirect, undl such time that such control ceases.
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The acquision method 1 applied to account for acquired subsiciaries. This reguires
recognizing and measuring the identfiable assets acquired, the lighilifies assumed and
any NCI in the acquiree. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the
equity inferests issued by the Group, if any. The consideration transferred also
includes the fair value of any asset or Liability resulting from 2 contingent consideration
Arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and subsegquent
change in the fair value of contngent consideration is recognized directly n profr or

ioss.

Tdentifiable assets acquired and liabilittes and conungent liabilides assumed in a
business combmation are measured imdally at their fair values at the acquisition date.
On an acquisigon-by-acquisiiion basis, the Group recognizes any NCI in the acquirze
either at fair value or at the NCI's proporfionate share of the acquiree’s nec assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any NCI m the acquiree
and the acquisiton date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of the group’s shate of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognized
as goodwill If this is less than the fair value of the ner assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognized directly in
profit or loss as gain (see also Note 2.1 0).

Tnvestments in Assoctates

Associates are those entities over which the Group is able to exert significant influence
but not conirol and which are neither .subsidiaries nor interests in a jolnt venture.
Investments in assOCIates are irugally recognized at cost and subseguently accounted
for using the equity method.

Acquired mvestments in associates are also subject to purchase accounting. However,
any goodwill or far value adjustment attibutable to the shate in the associates is
included in the amount recogn.ized a5 ipvestment in associates. All subsequent
changes to the share of interest in the equity of the associate are recognized in the
cartying amount of the Group’s investment. Changes resulting from the profit or loss
generated by the issociate . aré shown as Equity .Share in Net Profits Losses of
Associates in the Group’s consolidated statement of comprehensive income and
therefore affect the net results of operations of the Group., -These changes include
subsequent depreciagon, amortization or impairment of the fair value adjustments of
the associate’s assers and Habiliges.

(Changes resulting from other comprehensive mcome of the associates or items that
have been directly recognized in the associate’s equity, for exarnple, resulting from the
associate’s accounung for AFS fpancial assets, are recognized in consolidated other
comptehensive ncome or equity of the Group, as applicabie. Any non-ncome related
equity MOVEmMEnts of the associate that atise, for example, from the distribution of
dividends or other transactions with the associate’s shareholders, are charged against
the proceeds received or granted.' No effect on the Group’s net result or equity is

recopnized In the course of these fransactions. However, when the Group’s share of

losses i an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments in behalf of the associate. Lf the associate
subsequently reports profits, the (Group resumes recopnizing its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits exceeded the accumulated share of losses that has

previously not been recognized.
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Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealized losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impatrment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

(c) Interesis in Jointly Controlled Operations

For interest in jointly controlled opetations, the Group recognizes in its consolidated
financial statements its sharc of the assets that it controls, the liabilities and the
expenses that it incurs and its share in the income from the sale of goods ot services
by the joint venture. No adjustment ot other consolidation procedures are required
since the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the joint venture are recognized In
the separate financial statements of the venturers.

(d) Transactions with NCI

The Group’s transactions with NCI that do not result in loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions — that is, as transaction with the owners of the Group in their
capacity as ownets. The difference between the fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of the net assets of the subsidiary
is recognized in equity. Disposals of equity investments to NCI tesult in gains and
losses for the Group that are also recognized in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control over a subsidiary, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognized in profit or loss. The fair value 1s the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addiion, any amounts previously
recognized in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or labilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

2.4 Financial Assers

Financial assets are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual terms of
the financial instrument. Financial assets other than those designated and effective as

hedging instruments are classified into the following categoties: financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss (FVTPL), loans and receivables, held-to-matutity investments and

AFS financial assets. Financial assets are assigned to the different categories by management

on initial recognition, depending on the purpose for which the investments were acquired.

Regulat purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on their trade date. All
financial assets that are not classified as at FVTPL ate initially recognized at fair value plus
any directly artributable transaction costs. Financial assets carried at FVIPL are initially
recorded at fair value and transaction costs related to it are recognized in profit or loss.
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The financial asset categories currently relevant to the Group are as follows:

(@) Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables ate non-detivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active matket. They afise when the Group
provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading
the receivables. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the reporting period which are dlassified as non-cutrent assets.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amoriized cost using the effective
interest method, less impairment loss, if any. Impairment loss is provided when there
i§ objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due to it
in accordance with the original terms of the receivables. The amount of the
impairment loss is determined as the difference between the assets’ catrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective
infetesl rate.

The Group’s financial assets categorized as loans and receivables are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position as Cash and Cash Equivalents, Trade and
Other Receivables (except Advances to Contractors and Suppliers) and Advances to
Related Parties. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits
and short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less, readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value. ,

(b))  ARS Financial Assets

This category includes non-detivative financial assets that ate either designated to this
category or do not qualify for inclusion in any of the other categories of financial
assets. They are classified as non-current assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position unless management intends to dispose of the investment within
12 months from the reporting petiod. The Group’s AFS financial assets include
proptietary polf club membership shares and are presented as part of the Other
Non-current Assets account in the consolidated statement of financial position.

All financial assets within this category ate subsequently imeasured at fair value. Gains
and losses from changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income,
net of any income tax effects, and are reported as part of the Unrealized Losses on
AFS Financial Assets account in equity. When the financial asset is disposed of or is
determined to he impaired, the cumulatdve fair value gains or losses recognized mn
other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and is
presented as reclassification adjustment within other comprehensive income.

Reversal of impairment losses are recognized in other comptrehensive income, except
for financial assets that are debt securities which are recognized in profit or loss only 1f
the reversal can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognized.

All income and expenses, if any, including impairment losses, telating to financial assets that
are recognized in profit or loss are presented as part of Finance Costs or Finance Income in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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For investments that ate actively traded in organized financial markets, if any, fair value is
determined by reference to exchange-quoted matket bid prices at the close of business on
the reporting period. For investments where there is no quoted market price, fair value is
determined by reference to the current market value of another instrument which is
substantially the same or is calculated based on the expected cash flows of the underlying net
asset base of the investment.

Non-compounding interest, dividend income and other cash flows resulting from holding
financial assets are recognized in profit or loss when eamed, regardless of how the related
carrying amount of financial assets 1s measured. ‘

The financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to recetve cash flows from
the financial instruments expite, or when the financial assets and all substantial risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred.

2.8 Real Estate Transactions

Acquisition costs of taw land intended for future development, including other costs and
expenses incurred to effect the transfer of tile of the property to the Group, are charged to
the Land for Future Development account. These costs are reclassified to Property
Development Costs account when the development of the property starts. Related property
development costs are then accumulated in this account. Borrowing costs on certain loans,
if any, incutred during the development of the real estate propertes are also capitalized by
the Group as part of Property Development Costs (see Note 2.20).

‘The cost of real estate property sold before completion of the development, if any, is
determined based on the actual costs incurred to date plus estimated costs to complete the
development of the property. The estimated expenditures for the development of sold teal
estate property, as determined by the project engineets, are charged to the cost of residential
and condominium units sold presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income with a corresponding credit to the liability account, Reserve for Property
Development accountt.

Costs of properties and projects accounted for as Land for Future Development, Property
Development Costs and Real Estate, Golf and Resort Shares for Sale ate assigned using
specific identification of their individual costs. These properties and projects are valued at
the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs to complete and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

The Group recognizes the effect of revisions in the total project cost estimates in the year in
which these changes become known. Any impairment loss from a real estate project is
chatged to operations during the period in which the loss is determined.

Revenue and cost relative to forfeited or back-out sales are reversed in the current year as
they occut.

2.6 Prepayments and Other Assets

Prepayments and other assets pertain to other resources controlled by the Group as a result
of past events. They are recognized in the consolidated financial statements when 1t 1s
probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the entity and the asset has a cost ot
value that can be measured reliably.
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Other recognized assets of similar nature, where future economic benefits are expected to
flow to the Group beyond one year after the end of the reporting pedod {(or in the normal
operating cycle of the business, if longer), are classified as non-current assets.

2 7 Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, except land, are carried at acquisition or construction cost less
subsequent depreciation, amortization and any impairment losses. As no finite useful life for
land can be determined, related carrying amount are not depreciated. Land is stated at cost
less any inpairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for additions, major
mprovemernts and renewals are capitalized; expenditures for repairs and maintenance are
charged to expenses as incurred.

Depreciation and amoztization is computed on the straight-line hasis over the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Building 50 years
Building and office improvements 5-10 years
Office furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-5 years
Transportation and other equipment ' 5 years

An asset’s cattying amount is written down immediately to 1ts recoverable amount
if the asset’s carrying amount is preater than its estimated recoverable amount
(see also Note 2.17).

The tesidual values and estimated useful lives of property and equipment ate reviewed and
adjusted, 1f appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An item of propetty and equipment, including the related accumulated depreciation,
amottization and impairment losses, is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss atising on derecognifion of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the cartying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss i the
yeat the item 1s derecognized.

Fully depreciated and amortized assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer
in use and no further charge for depreciation is made in respect of those assets.

2.8 Investment Property

lnvestment property consists of parcels of land and buildings held for lease. Buildings are
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. Land is stated at
cost less any impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises 1ts purchase price and any directly attributable expenditute.
Fxpenditures for additions, major improvements and renewals are capitalized; expenditures
for repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred.
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Agnordzaron 1 computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the
assets as folows:

Land development and Improvements 20 years
Building and improvements 10-50 years

An assef’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its recoverable amount (see Note 2.17).

Transfers to, or from, nvestment property shall be made when and only when there is a
change in use.

An item of invesunent property is derccognized upon disposal or when no furure
economic benefits aze expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss ansing on derecognition of the asser {calculared as the difference berween the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included i the profit or loss
the year the item Is derecogrnized.

2.9 Financial Liabilities

Financial labilites, which include Trade and Other Payables (except tax-relared Habiiites,
if any), Advances from Related Parties, Due to Joint Venture Partners and Redeemabie
Preferred Shares, are recogru'zed when the. Group. becomes a party o the contractual
cerms of the instrument. All interest related charges, if any, incurred on fnancial liability
are recognized as an expense il profit or loss under the caption Finance Costs 1 the
consclidated statement of comprehensive income.

Financial Rabilidies are recognized initally at their fair values and subsequently measured at
amortized cost less settlement payments.

Preferred shares, which cazry a mandatory couporn of afe redeemable on specific date or at
the opaon of the sharebolder, are classified as financial lishiliies and presented as a
separate line item n the consolidated statement of fAnancial positicn as Redezmable

- Preferred Shares.

' Dividend distibudons to sharé.hoilders, if any, are teédgﬁized as Bnancial Jiabilifies when

the dividends are approved by the BOD. The dividends on the redeemable preferred
shares of a2 subsidiary are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income s interest expense on an amortized cost basis using the effective interest method.

Financial kabilities are classified as current labilities if payment is due to be setded within
one year or less after the reporting period (or in the normal operating cvele of the
businiess, if longez), or the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least twelve months after the reportdng period. Otherwise, these are
presented as non-cutrent liabilites.

Financial liabilides are derecoguized from the consolidated statement of financial positon
only when the obligations are extnguished either through discharge, cancellation or
expiration.

2 10 Business Combination

Business acquisifons are accounted for using the acquisiton method of accounting
(see Note 2.3}
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Goodwill, if any, represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of
the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Subsequent to initial tecognition, goodwill, if any, is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.

Negative goodwill, which is the excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of net
identifiable assets acquired over acquisition cost, is charged directly to income.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units or
groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units are identified according to operating segment.

Gains and losses on the disposal of an interest in a subsidiary include the carrying amount
of goadwill relating to 1t.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquiter is required to remeasure its
previously held equity interest in the acquiree at its acquisition-date fair value and
recognize the resulting gain or loss, if any, in the profit or loss ot other comprehensive
income, as appropriate. '

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is tecognized at fair value at
the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration
that is deemed to be an asset ot liability is recognized in accordance with
PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, either in profit ot loss or as a
change to other comptehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

2.11 Sepment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the Group’s BOD; its chief operating decision-maker. The BOD is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.

In identifying its operating segments, management generally follows the Group’s products
and service lines as disclosed in Note 4, which represent the main products and services
provided by the Group.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each of these setvice lines
requires different resources as well as matketing approaches. All nter-segment transfers are
carried out at atm’s length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for segment reporting 1s the same as those used
in its consolidated financial statements. In addition, corporate assets which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating segment are not allocated to a
segment.

There have been no changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to
determine reported segment profit or loss.
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2.12 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions ate tecognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of
economic tesources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the
outflow may stll be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or
constructive commitment that has resulted from past events.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting petiod,
including the tisks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Where there are
a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. When time value of money
is material, long-term provisions are discounted to their present values using a prefax rate
that reflects matket assessments and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense. Provisions are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

In those cases where the possible outflow of economic tesource as a result of present
obligations is considered improbable or remote, ot the amount to be provided for cannot be
measured reliably, no liability is recognized in the consolidated financial statements.
Similarly, possible inflows of economic benefits to the Group that do not yet meet the
recognition criteria of an asset are considered contingent assets, hence, ate not recognized in
the consolidated financial statements. On the other hand, any reimbursement that the
Group can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect to the obligation s
recognized as a separate asset not exceeding the amount of the related provision.

2.13 Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities, particulatly advances to and from related parties, are set-off
and the resulting net amount is reported in the consolidated statements of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.14 Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenue is measured by reference fo the fair value of consideration received or receivable by
the Group for goods sold and services rendered, excluding value-added tax (VAT).

Revenue is recognized to the extent that the revenue can be reliably measured; it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the Group; and the costs incurred or to be
incurred can be measured reliably. 1n addition, the following specific recognition criteria
must also be met before tevenue is recognized:

(¢) Real estate sales — For financial reporting purposes, revenues from transactions
covering sales of real estate are recognized under the percentage-of-completion
method. Under this method, realization of gross profit is recognized by reference to
the stage of development of the properties, i.e., revenue is recognized in the period in
which the work is petformed. The untealized gross profit on a period’s sales is
presented as Deferred Gross Profit on Real Hstate Sales in the consoldated
statement of comprehensive income; the comulative unrealized gross profit as of the
end of the year is shown as Deferred Income on Real Estate Sales in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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The sale s recognized when a cermin percentage of the total conmact price has
already been collected. 1If the wansaction does not yvet qualify as sale, the deposit
method is applied until all conditions for recording the sale are met. Pending the
recognition of sale, payments received from buyer are imitially recorded as part of
Customers’ Deposits account i the consolidated statement of financial posidosn.

Revenues on sales of undeveloped land and golf and resort shares for sale, on the
other hand, are recognized using the full accmal method. Under the full accrual
method, revenue is recognized. when the risks and rewards of ownership in the
undeveloped land and golf and resost shares have passed to the buyer and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Revenues and costs relagve to forfsited
or hack out sales are zeversed in the current year as they occur.

Anv adjustments relative 10 previous perlods’ sales are recorded In the current pesod
as they occur.

For tax reporong purposes, 2 modified basis of computing the taxable income for the
perod based on collecdons from sales 15 used by the Group.

(b)  Maintenance income — Revenue is recognized when performance of mutually agreed
rasks has been rendered.
(c)  Rental income and hotel operations — Revenue is. recognized when the performance of
' contractually agreed tasks has been substantially rehdered. Renial 1mcome is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Advance rentals received are
recorded as deferred rental income. For tax purposes, rental income is recogmized
based on the contractual texms of the lease.

(d) Interest — Revenue 1s recognized as the inferest accrues taking 1nto.account the
effective yield on the asset. ‘ '

(e} Divdends — Revenue is recorded when the stockholders’ right torreceive the payment

1s estabhshed.

Cost of real estate sales before completon of the projects include the acquisition
cost of the land, development costs incurred to date, applicable borrowing costs
(see Note 2.20) and estimated costs to complete the project, determined based on
estimates made by the project epgineers. on the stage of completion of the real estate
project (see Note 2.5). B

Cost and expenses and other costs (other than costs of real estate sold) are recognized in
profit or logs upon atilizaton of the services or goods or at the date they are incurred. All
finance costs are reported In. profit or loss on an accrual basis, except capitalized
botrowing costs which are included as part of the cost of the related gualifying asset
(see Note 2.20). S

2.15 Operatng Leases

The Group accounts for its leases as follows: |

(a) Group as Lessee
Leases which do not transfer to the Group substangally all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the assel are classified as operating leases. Operating lease pavments

(net of any incentve ceceived from the lessor) are recognized as expense in profit ot
loss on a swaight-line basis over the lease term. Associated costs, such as repairs and
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(b))  Group as Lessor

Leases which do not transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset ate classified as operating leases. Lease income from
operating leases is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
ferm.

The Group determines whether an artangement 1is, or contains, a lease based on the
substance of the arrangement. It makes an assessment of whethet the fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys # right to use the asset.

2,16 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

The accounting records of the Group are maintained in Philippine pesos. Foreign currency
transactions during the year are translated into the functional currency at exchange rates
which approximate those prevailing on transaction dates.

Foreign currency gains and losses resulung from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at yearend exchange rates of monetaty assets and liabilies
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of income or loss from operations.

2.17 Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Group’s Tnvestments in Assaociates, Investment Property, Property and Equipment and
other non-financial assets are subject to impairment testing whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their catrying amounts may not be recoverable. For purposes of
assessing Impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there ate separately
identfiable cash flows (cash-generating anits). As a result, assets are tested for impairment
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level.

Impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount which is the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and its value in vse. In determining value in use, management estimates the
expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and determines the suitable
interest rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The darta used for
impairment testing procedutes are directly linked to the Group’s latest approved: budget,
adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects of asset enhancements. Discount factors are
determined individually for each cash-generating unit and reflect management’s assessment
of respective risk profiles, such as market and asset-specific risk factots.

All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impatrment loss previously
recognized may no longer exist and the carrylng amount of the asset is adjusted to the
recoverable amount resulting in the reversal of impairment loss.

2.18 Employee Bencfits

(a)  Defined Benefit Pian

The Group has an unfunded, non-contributory defined benefit plan covering ali
regular employces.
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A defined benefif plan is a post-employment plan that defines an amount of
post-employment benefit that an employee will receive on retiretnent, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, yeats of service and salary. The legal
obligation fot any benefits from this kind of post-employment plan remains with the
entity, even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have been acquired.
Plan assets may include assets specifically designated to a long-term benefit fund, as
well as qualifying insurance policies. The Group’s defined benefit post-employment
plan covers all regular full-time employees.

The liability tecognmized in the consolidated statement of financial positon for
defined benefit post-employment plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation (DBO) at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets,
together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service
costs. The DBO is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected
unit credit method. The present value of the DBO is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using interest rates derived from the interest rates ofa
zero coupon government bonds as published by the Philippine Dealing and
Exchange Corporation that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits
will be paid and that have texms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related
post-employment liability.

Actuarial gains and losses ate not recognized as an income or expense unless the total
unrecognized gain or loss exceeds 10% of the greater of the obligation and related
plan assets. The amount exceeding this 10% corridor is charged or credited to profit
or loss over the employees’ expected average remaining wortking lives. Actuarial
gains and losses within the 10% cortidor are disclosed separately. Past-service costs
ate recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the changes to the post-
employment plan ate conditional on the employees remaining in service for a
specified period of time (the vesting period). In this case, the past-service costs are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting petiod.

ermination Benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group
before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Company recognizes termination
benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either: (i) terminating the employment
of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of
withdrawal; or (ii) providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due mote than 12 months after the
reporting petiod are discounted to their present value.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days (including
holiday entitlement) remaining at the end of the reporting period. They are included
in the Trade and Other Payables account of the consolidated statement of financial
position at the undiscounted amount that the Group expects to pay as 2 result of the
unused entitlement.
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2.19 Share-based Employee Remuneration

The Company grants share options to key executive officers eligible under 2 stock option
plan. The services received in exchange for the grant, and the corresponding share
options, are valued by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted at grant
date. This fair value excludes the impact of non-market vesting conditions (for example
profitability and sales growth targets and performance conditions), if any. The share-based
remuneration is recognized as an expense in profit or loss and the corresponding share
option is presented as Share Options Outstanding account in the equity section of the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The expense is recognized during the vesting period based on the best available estimate
of the number of share options expected to vest. The estimate is subsequently revised, if
necessary, such that it equals the number that ultimately vest on vesting date. No
subsequent adjustment is made to expense after vesting date, even if share options are
ultimately not exercised.

Upon exercise. of share option, the proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs up to the nominal value of the shares issued are allocated to capital stock
with any excess being recorded as additional paid-in capital (APIC), and the cost of the
stock option under Share Options Outstanding account Is reclassified to APIC.

2.20 Borrowing Costs

For financial reporting purposes, botrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the petiod
in which they are incurred, except to the extent that they are capitalized. Borrowing costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction ot production of a qualifying
asset (Le., an asset that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
ot sale) are capitalized as part of cost of such asset. The capitalization of botrowing costs
commences when expenditures for the asset and borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepate the asset for its intended use ot sale are in progress.
Capitalization ceases when substautially all such activities are complete. For income tax
putposes, interest and other borrowing costs ate charged to expense as mcurred.

2.21 Related Party Relationships and Transactions

Related party transactions are transfers of resources, services or obligations between the
Group and iis related parties, regatdless whether a price 1s charged.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the abi]ity to conttol the other party ot
exercise significant mfluence over the other patty in making financial and operating
decisions. These pardes include: (a) individuals owning, directly or inditectly through one ot
more intermediaries, contral or are controlled by, or under common control with the
Group; (b) associates; and, (¢) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the
voting power of the Group that gives them significant influence over the Group and close
members of the family of any such individual.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance
of the reladonship and not merely on the legal form.
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2.22 Equity

Capital stock represents the nominal walue of shares that have been issued.

APIC represents premium received on the initial issnance of capital stock. Any transacton
costs associated with the issuance of shares are deducted from APIC, pet of any related

iricome tax benefits.

Share options outstanding represents the corresponding credit upon recogninon of
share-based remuneradon expense in profit or loss (see Note 2.19).

{Tarealized losses on AFS fnancial assers represent losses recognized due to changes n
fair values of these assets.

Retained earnings represent all current and prior period results of operations as reporied in
the profit or loss section of the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, reduced
by the amounts of dividends declared, if any.

2.23 Basic and Dilured Eamings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is determined by dividing the consolidated net profit by the
weighted average number of common shatres subscribed and issued during the year, after

' giving rewcactive effect ro any stock dividends, steck split or reverse stock split declared in

the current year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed in the sarne manner as the basic earnings per share
and assuming further thar at the begnming of the yeat or at the time of issuance during the
year, all ourstanding convertible nstruments were converted to common stock and the
conversion would result to a decrease in the basic earnings per share or increase in the
basic loss per share. S ‘

2.24 Income Taxes

Tax expense recognized in proefit or loss compuses the sum of deferred max and current tax
not recognized in other comprehensive income ot directly m equity, if any.

Current tax assets or. Habilides comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fscal
authoutes reliting to thé current o prioi' reporting period, that ﬂ;t- uncollected, or unpaid at
the reportng period. These are calculated using the tax rates and tax laws applicable o the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes to
current rx assets or Habilities are recognized 2s a component of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the lability method on temporary differences at the end
of the reportng pedod berween the tax base of assets and liabiliies and their carrying
amounts for fmancial reporing purposes. Under the liability method, with certain
exceptons, deferved tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable remporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductble temporary differences and the
carryforiwvard of unused tax losses and umnused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be umilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporing pedod and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable rhat funare taxable profit will be
available to allow such deferred rax assets to be recovered. :

The carrving amount of deferred mx assers is reviewed at the end of each reporting penod
and reduced to the extent that it 1s probable that sufficient taxable profir will be avaiable to
allow a1l eor nart of the deferred tax asset to be udlized,
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Deferred tax assets and labilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled provided such tax rates have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the repotting period.

Most changes in deferred fax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax
expense in profit or loss. Only changes in defetred tax assets or liabilities that relate to itetns
recognized in other comprehensive income of directly in equity are tecognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabiliies are offset if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set-off cutrent tax assets against curtent tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same entity and the same taxation authority.

225 Events After the Reporting Period

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Group’s
consolidated financial position at the end of the reporting period (adjusting event) is
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Postyear-end events that are ot
adjusting events, if any, arc disclosed when material to the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The Group’s consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with PFRS require
management to make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and related notes. Judgments and estimates are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may
ultimately vary from these estimates.

3.1 Critical Management Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgments, apart from those involving estimation, which have the most sigmificant
effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

(aj Distinction between Investment Property, Ouwner-occupied  Properties and Land for Future
Development

The Group determines whether an asset qualifies as an item of investment property,
owner-occupied propetty or land for future development. In making its jadgment, the
Group considers whether the property generates cash flows largely independently of
the othet assets held by an entity. Ownet-occupied properties generate cash flows
that are atrributable not only to property but also to other assets used in the
operations of the Group or for administrative purposes while Land for Future
Development are propetties intended solely for future development.

Some propetties comprise a portion that is held to earn rental or for capital
appreciation and another portion thal is held for administrative purposes. If these
portions can be sold sepatately (or leased out separately under finance lease), the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions cannot be sold separately,
the property is accounted for as investment property only if an insignificant postion s
held for administrative purposes. Judgment is applied in determining whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not qualify as 1nvestment
property. The Group considers each property separately in making its judgment.
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(6) Distinction between Operating and Finance Ieases

The Group has entered into various lease agreements. Critical judgment was exercised
by management to distinguish each lease agreement as either an operating or a finance
lease by looking at the transfer or tetention of significant risk and rewards of
ownership of the properties covered by the agreements. Failure to make the right
judgment will result in either overstatement or understatement of assets and habilities.

Recagnition of Provisions and Contingencies
Judgment is excrcised by management to distinguish between provisions and

contingencies. Policies on recognitton and disclosure of provision and contingencies
are discussed in Note 2.12 and relevant disclosures are prescnted in Note 23,

3.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following ate the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a matetial adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilides within the
next financial year:

()

)

Determining Net Realizable Value of Real Estate, Goif and Resort Shares For Sale, Property
Development Costs and 1and For Future Development

In determining the net realizable value of real estate and resort shares for sale,
property development costs and land for future development, management takes into
account the most reliable evidence available at the times the estimates are made. The
future realization of the carrying amounts of these assets is affected by price changes
in the different market segments as well as the trends in the real estate industry. These
are considered key sources of estimation and uncertainty and may cause significant
adjustments to the Group’s Real Distate and Resort Shares for Sale, Property
D'evelopment Costs and Land For Future Development within the next financial
period.

Considering the Group’s pricing policy, the net realizable values of real estate and
resort shates for sale, property development costs and land for future development ate
higher than their related catrying values as of the end of the reporting periods.

Fair Value of Stock Option

The Company estimates the fair value of the executive stock option by applying an
option valuation model, taking into account the terms and conditions on which the
executive stock option were granted. The estimates and assumptions used are
presented in Note 21.2 which include, among other things, the option’s time of
expiration, applicable risk-free interest rate, expected dividend yield, volatility of the
Company’s share price and fair value of the Company’s common shares. Changes in
these factors can affect the fair value of stock options at grant date.

The fair value of the executive stock option recognized as part of salaries and
employee benefits shown under Operating Expenses in the 2012 consohdated
statement of comprehensive income amounted to P38.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012. A corresponding credit to Share Options Outstanding of the
same amount is presented in the equity portion of the 2012 consolidated statement of
financial position (sec Notes 17 and 21.2).
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Fair Value of Measurement of Investment Property

Investment Propetty ate measuted using the cost model. The fair value disclosed
Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements is estimated by the Group using the
fair value of similar properties in the same location and condition. The Group uses
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each
reporting period.

Bstimating Useful Lives of Tnvestment Property and Property and Equipment

The Group estimates the useful lives of investment property and property and
equipment based on the period over which the assets are expected to be available for
use. The estimated useful lives of investment propetty and property and equipment
ate reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous
estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and
legal or other limits on the use of the assets. The carrying amounts of investment
property and property and equipment are analyzed in Notes 11 and 12, respectively.
Based on management’s assessment as at December 31, 2012 and 2011, there are no
changes in the estimated useful lives of those assets as of the end of the reporting
periods. Actual results, however, may vary due to changes in estimates brought about
by changes in factors mentioned above.

3

Impairment of Trade and Other Receivables

Adequate amount of allowance is made and provided for specific and groups of
accounts, where objective evidence of impairment exists. The Group evaluates the
amount of allowance for impairment based on available facts and circumstances
affecting the collectibility of the accounts, including, but not limited to, the length of
the Group’s relationship with the customers, the customers’ current credit status
based on known market forces, average age of accounts, collection experience and
historical loss experience. :

No impaitment losses on irade and other receivables were recognized for the petiods
ended December 31, 2012, December 31, 2011 and Septembet 30, 2011,

Determining the Realizable Amonnt of Deferred Tax Assets

The Group reviews its deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period and
reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilized.  Management assessed that the defetred tax assets recognized as at
December 31, 2012 and 2011 will be fully utilized within the next two to three years.
The carrying value of deferred tax assets as of those dates is disclosed 1n
Note 19.
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Impairment of Non-financial Assets

PFRS requites that an impairment review be performed when certain impairment
indicators are present. The Group’s policy on estimating the impairment of
non-financial assets is discussed in detail in Note 2.17. Though management believes
that the assumptions used in the estimation of fair values reflected in the consolidated
financial statements are appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in these
assumptions may materially affect the assessment of recoverable values and any
resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse effect on the results of
operagons.

No impairment losses were recognized on investments in assoclates, mvestment
property and property and equipment for the periods ended December 31, 2012,
December 31, 2011 and September 30, 2011{see Notes 10, 11 and 12}.

V alnation of Past-employment Benefit

The determination of the Group’s obligation and cost of post-employment defined
benefit is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaties in
calculating such amounts. Those assumptions include, among others, discount rates,
expecied rate of return on plan assets, salary rate increase, and employee turnover. In
accordance with PFRS, actual results that differ from the assumptions are accumulated
and amortized over future periods and therefore, generally affect the recognized
expense and recorded obligation in such future periods.

The amounts of retirement benefit obligation and expense and an analysis of the
movements in the estimated present value of retitement benefit obligation are
prescnted in Note 18.2,

Revenue Recognition Using the Percentage-of- Completion Method

The Group uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for its realized
gross profit on real estate sales. The use of the percentage—of—completion method
requires the Group to estimate the portion completed using relevant information such
as costs incurred to date as a proportion of the total budgeted cost of the project and
estimates by engineers and other experts. Should the proportion of the percentage of
completed projects differ by 5.0% from management’s estimates, the amount of
revenue recognized in 7012 would have incteased or decreased by P117.1 million.

There were no changes in the assumptions or basis for estimation during the period.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION
4.1 Business Segments

The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed sepatately according to the
nature of products and services provided, with each segment tepresenting a strategic
business unit that offers different products and serves different markets. The Group is
engaged in the development of residential and office units including urban centers
integrating office, residential and commercial components. The Real Estate segment
pertains to the development and sale of residential and office projects. The Rental
segment includes leasing of office and commercial spaces. The Maintenance Services
segment relates to maintenance of golf courses. The Cosporate and Others segment
includes marketing services, general and corporate income and expense items. Segment
accounting policies are the same as the policies described in Note 2.11. The Group
generally accounts fot intersegment sales and transfers as if the sales or transfers were to
third parties at current market prices.

4.2 Segment Assets and Liabilities

Segment assets are allocated based on their physical location and use ot direct association
with a specific segment and they include all operating assets used by a segment and consist
principally of operatng cash, receivables, real estate inventories, property and equipment,
and investment propesty, net of allowances and provisions. Similar to segment assets,
segment labilities are also allocated based on their use or direct association with a specific
segment.  Segment liabilities include all operating liabiliies and consist principally of
accounts, wages, taxes carrently payable and accrued liabilities.

4.3 Intersegment Transactions

Segment tevenues, expenses and performance include sales and putrchases between
business segments. Such sales and purchases are eliminated in consolidation.

4.4 Analysis of Segment Informa tion

The tables in the succeeding pages present revenue and profit information regarding
industry segments for the periods ended December 31, 2012, December 31, 2011 and
September 30, 2011 and certain asset and liability informaton regarding segments at
December 31, 2012, December 31, 2011 and September 30, 2011.
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As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2012
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As of and for the Three Months Ended December 31, 2011
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As of and for the Year Ended Septembet, 30, 2011
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include the following components as of end of reporting
period:

2012 2011
Cash on hand and in banks P 277,984,102 P 247,683,104
Short-term placements 188,245,665 745,397,038

P_466,229,767 P_993,080,142

Cash in banks generally earn interest at rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term
placements are made between 15 to 42 days at prevailing martket rates and eamn effective
intetest of up to 3.75% and 5.00% per annum for 2012 and 2011, respectively.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

This account is composed of the following as of December 31:

Notes 2012 2011
Current:

Installment contract

receivables P1,071,291,616 P 1,369,588,478
Advances to contractors :

and suppliers 399,012,499 258,826,353
Advances to officers and

employees 20.4 . 66,306,978 44 403,440
Advances to raw landowners ' 27,264,155 40,784,250
Others 20.1 114,108,467 151,628,444

1,677,983,715 1,865,230,965

Allowance for impairment (___550,522,607) (__521,401.003)

1,127.,461,108 1,343,829 960

Non-current:
Installment contract

receivables 887,852,321 399,105,492
Unearned discount and o
interest (___28,392.239) { 35,102,713)
859,460,082 364,002,779

21190 = P1.707,832.739

lastallment contract receivables represent receivables from sale of real estate and tesort
shares for sale and are normally collectible monthly within one to five years without
interest. ‘The titles to the real estate and resort shares sold remain with the Group until
such receivables are fully collected. The installment period of sales contracts averages
from three to five years. '
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Installment contract receivables are noninterest beating and ate measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method based on the interest rate of comparable financial
instraments in the market. Interest income from amortization amounted to P6.7 million,
P2.4 million and P44 million for the penods ended December 31, 2012,
December 31, 2011 and September 30, 2011, respectively. These amounts are presented
as part of Finance Income under the Finance and Other Income account in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 16.1).

Advances to contractors and suppliers, which are noninterest-bearing and unsecured,
pettain to amounts advanced to the Group’s contractors and suppliers as downpayment
for services to be rendeted and goods to be delivered to the Group.

Advances to officers and employees are noninterest-bearing, unsecured and settled
through salary deduction or liquidation.

Advances to raw Jandowners are non-interest bearing cash advances pertaining to amounts
paid by the Group to certain raw landowners as downpayment for lots to be acquired.

All of the Group’s teceivables have been reviewed for indicators of impairment. Certain
receivables were found to be impaited; hence, adequate amounts of allowance for
impairment have been recorded. The additional impairment losses recognized for the
periods ended December 31, 2012, December 31, 2011 and September 30, 2011
amounting to P29.1 million, nil and P10.3 million, respectively, are presented as
Impairment Losses on Trade and Other Receivables under Finance Costs and Other

Charges  account in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
(see Note 16.2).

A reconciliation of the allowance fot impairment at beginning and end of the reporting
petiods is shown below.

December 31, December 31,

2012 2011
Note (One Year) (Three Months)

Balance at beginning of period P 521,401,005 P 535,000,577
Impairment losses during

the period 16.2 29,121,602 -
Write-off of trade receivables

previously provided ‘with

allowance - ( 13,599,572)
Balance at end of period P 550,522,607 P_521.401 005

The net carrying value of trade and other receivables is considered a reasonable
approximation of its fair value (see Note 25).
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REAL ESTATE TRANSACTIONS
7.1 Real Estate, Golf and Resort Shares for Sale

The composition of this account as of December 31 is shown below.

2012 2011
Real estate for sale P5,719,268,204  P5,169,534,070
Golf and resort shares for sale 2,171.497.637 2.154.210,289
7,890,765,841 7,323,744 359
Allowance for impairment ( 88,411,502) ( 88.411,502)

P7802,354,339 PZ7.235.332,857

Real estate for sale mainly pertains to the accumulated costs incurred in developing the
Group’s horizontal and condominium projects and certain integtated-tourism projects, .
including capitalized botrowing costs amounting to P9.8 million for the period ended
September 30, 2011. The capitalization rate averaged 3.21% for the period ended
September 30, 2011. No borrowing costs were capitalized for the periods ended
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

Golf and resort shares for sale pertain to proprietary or membership shares (landowner
shares and founders shares) that are of various types and costs. The cost of the landowner
resort shares is based on the acquisition and development costs of the land and the
project. ‘The cost of the founders shares is based on the pat value of the resort shares
which is P100 per share.

There are no additional allowance for impairment recognized for the periods ended
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011. For the period ended September 30,2011, a -
P10.2 million impairment loss was recognized that pertains to the amount of net realizable
value being lower than the cost. This is presented as Impairment Losses on Real Estate
and Resort Shares for Sale under Cost of Real Fstate Sales in the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income (see Note 17).

7.2 Property Development Costs

Property development costs include on-going costs incurred by the Group for its own
projects. In addition, this account also includes the costs incurred by the Group for the
joint development of various projects that are treated as jointly controlled operations; there
wete no separate entities created by these joint ventute agreements. The jointly controlled
operations are undertaken under project agreements with different venture partners. The
costs relating to these joint projects tepresent the amount of investments placed by
the Group as onginal investor/developer or the amount assigned/transferred to the
Group associates ot by related parties who were the original investors/developers in

the project agreement.
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In fune 2011, FEPT agreed to enter into a joint ventute/co-development agreement with
Suntrust Properties, Inc. (SP1), a related party whose ultimate parent is also AGL. Under
the terms of the agreement, FEPL shall transfer the right to complete a
mixed-used, high-rise, commercial and residential condominium located  at Diliman,
Quezon City to SP1 for a consideration. FEPI received from SPI an upfront
non-refundable cash consideration amounting to P93.5 million in 2011, Also, FEPI will
share in the sales proceeds of the project based on agreed terms. The upfront non-
refundable cash consideration is presented as part of Income from Assignment of
Developmental Rights in tevenue and income portion of the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the period ended September 30, 2011.

As of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the Group either has no other
contingent liabilities with regard to these joint ventutes or that the probabﬂity either of
loss that may arise from contingent labilities is remote.

7.3 Land for Future Development

Land for future development pertains to acquisition costs of raw land intended for future
development, including other costs and expenses incutred to effect the transfer of title of
the property to the Group.

On June 6, 2011, the BOD of TLC approved the additional issuance of its common shares
through exchange of certain patcels of land with total fair value of P2.4 billion owned by
several parties, including the Company and FEPL This transaction was approved by the
SEC on November 26, 2012, This transaction resulted to the decrease of the Group’s
effective ownership in TLC from 100% to 53%. The parcels of land exchanged by the
Company and FEP] were previously included as part of Land for Future Development in
the consolidated statements of financial position.

7.4 Reserve for Property Development

The movement of the Reserve fof Property Development account 1s shown below.

2012 2011
Current:

Balance at beginning of year P 223,537,180 P 225,055,543

Additions 26,346,810 27,743,242

Reductions (__199.858,598) ( 29.261,605)

- Balance at end of year P_ 50525392 P_223537,180

Non-curtent:

Balance at beginning of year P 618,493,326 P 618,493,326

Additions 103,151,533 ;

Reductons (____48,247.777) -

, Balance at end of yeat P_673397,082 P 618,493 326
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PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

The composition of this account is shown below.

2012 2011
Input VAT P 644,126,316 P 402,009,225
Creditable withholding tax 187,375,009 - 60,463,257
Deferred commission 59,998,394 62,113,766
Others 17,500,966 59,065,990

P 909,000,685 2._583.052.238

Deferred commission represents commission advanced to the agents of the Group for the
sale of real estate inventory that are to be realized as incutred upon reaching certain
petcentage of collection from customers.

ADVANCES TO REAL ESTATE PROPERTY OWNERS

This account represents advances to real estate propetty owners and charges in connection
with various project agteements entered into by the Group. The terms of the agreements
provide that the Group will undertake the imptovement, subdivision and development of
the properties. The agreements further stipulate that the Group and the property owners
share either in the form of the developed real estate properties or upon collection of sales
proceeds using certain pre-agreed sharing ratios. Collections of the advances from the said
property owners ate generally received upon sale of property owners’ shares in the project.

The outstanding amounts, net of unearned discount and interest, at the end of the
reporting petiods are as follows:

2012 2011
Advances to real estate ,
property owners P1,137,209,419 T 1,125,945,839
Unearned discount and inferest ( 70,796,722y (__ 137.823.470)

P1,066,412,697 L_988,122 369

The net commitment for construction expenditures of the Group amounted to:

2012 2011
Total commitment for
construction expenditures P3,726,938,121  P3,665,062,711
Total expenditures incurred (_3.369,822,021) ( 3.214,289.816}

Net commitment P_357,116,100 P_450.772 895
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The Group’s interests on jointly-controlled operations and projects range from 55% to
78% for both 2012 and 2011, The list of the Company’s jointly controlled projects
(which are not joindy-controlled entities) are as follows:

e (aliraya Spring

e Forest Hills

o Kingsborough

e Monte Cielo de Pefafrancia
e Mountain Meadows

e Newport Hills
s  Parklane Square
e Southwoods Peak

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Group has no other contingent liabilities with
regard to these joint ventures or has assessed that the probability of loss that may arise
from contingent liabilities is remote.

The amortization of unearned discount and interest amounting to P67.0 million,
P10.1 million and P622 million for the petiods ended December 31, 2012,
December 31, 2011 and September 30, 2011, respectively, are presented as part of Finance
lncome under Finance and Other Income account in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income (see Note 16.1).

All of the Group’s advances have been reviewed for indicators of impaitment. Based on -
management’s evaluation, no allowance for impairment loss needs to be recognized for the
periods ended December 31, 2012, December 31, 2011 and September 30, 2011.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

The components of the cartying values of investments in associates accounted for undet
the equity method at the end of the rcporting periods are as follows:

Balance carvied formward

2012 o 2011
Acquisition costs:
NPI P 734,396,528 P 734,396,528
FERC 28,000,000 28,000,000
FENI 10,000,003 10,000,003
FESI 7,808,360 7,808,360
FERSAL 4,000,000 4 000,000
OPl] - 3,125,225

P 784,204,891

P_787.330,116
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2012 2011
Balance bronght formward P 784.204.891 P 787330116
Accumulated equity shage
in net losses:
Balance at beginning of period 37,643,672 34,974,681
Equity shate in net losses {or
the period 5,890,949 2,668,991
Reversal due to the consolidation
of OP1 ( 181,796) -
Balance at end of period 43,352,825 37.643.672

P_740,852,066 D_ 749,686,444

FEPT also has 15% equity investment in MRT Development Cotporation amounting to
1169.9 million but the invesiment was derecognized when it was assessed that it is no longer
recoverable.

The aggregated amounts of assets, liabilitics and net profit (loss) of the associates ate as
follows:

Assets Liabilities Revenues Net Loss
December 31,

2012

NP1 P 1,329,025,655 P 1,319,025,655 P - P -

FERC 341,188,752 285,550,037 4,042 6061 ( 8,469,533)
FERSAT 155,071,351 162,621,484 4 459,850 ( 8,857,655)
IFESI 131,506,514 32,824,108 24,693.264 2,547.617)
FENI 100,222,828 108,257,827 6,887,379 ( 9.579,941)

P_ 2057015100 P__19082791u P 40083134 (B___29.454.746)

Decembet 31,

2011

NP1 D 1325049,848 P 1315149848 P ; P :

OPI 614,462,412 607 853,626 ; 1,511,972
FERC 337,533,457 258,943,926 1,140,231 ( 4,116,162)
FERSAT 149 518,495 154,299,367 4779930 ( 9,927,387}
FESI 141,823,000 40,590,202 5,580,833 ( 1,652,202) .
FENI 102,514,872 100,907,865 4272122 ¢ 1,429,133)

D 2670002084 P 2477744834 P 157731416 (2 15,612.912)
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Net Profit
Assets Liabilities Revenues {Loss)
September 30,
2011
NP1 P 1,325,040,848 P 1,315,149,848 P - P - .
FIERC 373,125,164 427,591,620 4,869,737  ( 9,594,150
FERSAL 155,357,445 149,006,025 5489074 ( 20,748,792)
1251 145,640,573 40,117,440 20,872,124 ( 3,288,191)
OFI 120,720,311 .] 15,735,187 - : { 1,265,326)
FIENI 101,122 956 101,593,862 10,867,204 ( 9.474,402)

P_ 2221016297 P__ 2,149,193 988 & 42008139 (@ 44,370 861)

In January 2012, the Company obtained control over the financial and operating policies
of OP1, hence, was considered as a subsidiary (see Note 1).

On November 30, 2012, the Company subscribed to additional 53.8 million shares out of
the additional 598.6 million common shares issued by TLC at P1 par. Such additional

issuance by TLC resulted in a decrease in the Company’s effective ownership over TLC
from 53% to 50% as of December 31, 2012.

The fair values of the associates’ shares of stock are not available as of the ead of the
reporting periods.

Based on the assessment of the management, the mnvestments In assoclates were not
impaired due to the active efforts of the Group to ratse funds in order to push through
with the associates’ projects.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

The Group’s investment propetty comprises of buildings and several parcels of land which
are owned to earn rental income or for capital appreciation ot for both. The gross
carrying amounts and accumulated depreciation of investment property at the beginning
and end of the reporting periods are shown below.

Land and
Building and Land Development
Improvements apd Improvements Total
December 31, 2012
Cost 12 488,220,155 P - 239,293,047 P 727,513,202
Accumulated depreciation
and atmortization { 235.169,651) ( 132479778 ( 367,649,429)
Net carrying value P 253,050,504 P 106,813,269 P 359,863,773

December 31, 2011
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
and amortization { 230,024,398) ( 130,550,308} { 360,574,706)

=

441 657,190 P 250960932 P 692,618,122

xT . [T

—
-

211632792 P 120410624 P 332,045,410
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Land and
Building and Land Development
Improvements and Improvements Total
COctober 1, 2011
Cost P 314354329 P 250060932 P 565,315,461
Accumulated deprectation
and amoriization { 220 2772 084) { 130,067.940) ( 350340024

Net carrying value P A5.082 445 D 120892992 D 205,975 457

A réconciliation of the carrying amounts of mvestment property at the beginning and end

of the reporrting perieds is shown below.

Land and
Building and Land Development .
_ Lppmvements  ind lmprovements Total
Balance ac January 1, 2012, aet of
accumulated deprecianon ]
and amordzadon P 211,632,792 P 120410624 P 332,043,416
Addinons 46,562,965 36,587,840 83,150,811
Reclassifications - { 4}8,,55,73]} { 48 255751
Deprecdiation and amortizaton ) : "
charges for the period { 5,145.253) { 1,929,470 { TRTAT2S)
Balance at December 31, 2012,
aet of accumulated depreciaton
and amortization Jd 253.050.504 P 106,813,269 P 359.863.772

Balance at October 1, 2011, net of

accumutated depreciation

d

and amortdzaton
Addigons

Depreciagon and amortizaton .

P 85,082,445 P 120,892,992

127,302,661

205,975,457
127,302,661

tharges for the period { 752,314) | _ 482,508 ) 1,234,682}
Balance at December 31, 2011, - ’ o '
net of accurmnulated depreciasion
and amortization ) 211.632.792 P 120410624 P 3320434146
Balance at October 1, 2010, net of
accumulated depreciation
and amortizaton P 28,091,707 P 167,001,157 P 255,152,864
Addidons - 3,512,539 3,512,539
Reclassificavions - { 44 348,600 ( 44 548000
Disposals - { 3.200,000) { 3,200,000}
Depreciagon and amortzation '
& charges for the period _ 3.009,262) ( 1,032.704) ( 4,941,966
" Balance ar September 30, 2011,
net of accumulated depreciation
and amorgzation o B5.082.445 D 120892992 P 205975 437

Renral revenues recognized for the periods ended December 31, 2012, December 31, 2011
and September 30, 2011 amounted to P64.3 million, P8.7 million and P37.0 million,
respectvely, and are presented as Rental Income in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income. Depreciation charges substantially represent the major direct

costs in leasing these properues,
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The fair value of building and improvements amounted to P773.1 million and
P235.0 million, as determined by reference to similar properties within the area where the
building is situated, as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 respectively. On the other hand,
the fair value of land and land improvements amounted to P209.0 million and
P138.0 million, as determined by reference to current prices for similar properties in the
same location and condition as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

1n 2012, certain parcels of land with a total carrying amount of P48.3 million, which wete
pteviously classified as partt of Investment Property, were reclassified to Property
Development Costs. The Group decided to develop these certain parcels of land for
resale. These were initially intended to be developed by the Group as part of Investment
Property for lease to third parties.

In 2011, certain parcels of land with a total carrying amount of P44.5 million, which were
previously classified as part of Investment Property, were reclassified to Land for Future
Development. The Group decided to develop these certain parcels of land for resale.
These werte initially intended to be developed by the Group as patt of Investment
Property for lease to third parties.

For the petiod ended September 30, 2011, certain parcels of land, which wete previousiy‘
intended for leasing and classified as Investment Property, were reclassified to Land for
Future Development.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

‘The gross catrying amounts and accumulated depreciation and amortization of property
and equipment at the beginning and end of the reporting periods are shown below.

Office Fumniture, Transportation Building and
Fixtures and and Other Office
_ Land __ _ Building _Equipment  _Equipment Jgmprovemengs  _ Total

PDecember 31, 20102 )

(ot PLGUOO D OB2S 70U 380 1P T3124828 P 33845034 1 274140635 D 961,753,877
Accumuldaredd

deprecition

and amortiZation - (225201 163) ( 54,464 307) | 16,502,439) { 3.653.229) ( 2M9.071,138)
Nel carnviing

e P_LG0n000 PGUn478217 P 18660521 P 11282505 P 23761406 P.GG1782.739
Decembor 31, 2008
Cost PooL7sG P 679427514 P 55526681 P 23,575,811 P 39808060 1 764,669 8066

Sccumulanad
depreciation
and amortizaon - (20207279 (___4ART6K550) { 12,910673) 2439431 {266,495 453)

Nel carrying
wniounl

oo 7s0000  P7eRS471S I 735813 P 10661038 P 1350429 D 408 174415

Ocrober 1, 2011
Cost PooLFsmn P 679 R27 514 P 53,658,735 1P 17,245 (24 P O3H52,681 P 750,331,958
Accwmualed
depreciation
and amartizaon - (_198.125305) (. 47.5562749) (12483 7583 ( 2300.678) (__2060,554,300)

Net currving
Amonnt

> L7s000)  Podsi 7oz a6 105 ORG Pa750270 P 1462003 493779 568
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A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of propetty and equipment at the beginning and

end the reporting periods is shown below.
Office Fumiture, Transportation Building and
Fixtures and and Other Office

Balance at
Januay 1, 2012,
net of accumulaed
depreciation
PTG P 476854715 P

661138 P 1550429 TP H9RIT4A3
23438596 19RN57.754

7358130 P
11,220,742

and mnortization
Additions 14594 1,860 18,256,550)
Disposals ( 150,000 - ( 6384040 951,519) { 13,822 ( 1.773,745)
l)cl'\l'uci:llicm and
amaorhzation
charges for
- { 223183040 ( 6,305,756) { 3.647.706) | 1213797 { 33.475,683)

the peritad

Balance al
Precember 31, 2002,
et of accumulbited

Jupreeiatuon .
P 1600000 P.600478217 P 18,660,521

and amortixanon

P_17.282,595 P 23761406 P661.782,730

B3alance at

Owerobyer 1, 20104,

met ol pccumulalud

6105986 4750270 1P 1462003 493,779,568
137,179 #,335.908

deprecition
PSP BLTIE0 P
1,867,946 6,330,783

and amarization
.\ddilll)n.‘i -
Deprociation and
amaortization
charges for
- { 4 847,504 ( 615,801 ¢

the penod

428.915) ( 48.753) (__ 5.041.063)

Balance at
December 31, 2011
et of accumulated
deprecation
> SO 1M ands4715 P 238 Pinasl13g P 15501420 P 498174 413

and amortization

Balance at

Octaber 1, 2010,
P 140900 1 363,165,846

net ol accumudated
deprecianon
awd amortization I* 150,000 1 358,706,842 2657340 1P L4764
Additons - SO0 4100 4,214 006 4,108,692 1,435,392 10,219,090
Disposidls - - { 21,833) ( 244,025) - { 2606,458)
: | GHD 00 140,153,132 - - - 141,653,132
Deprogiation and ’
amaortration
charges for
- {__17.517.6065) ( 743.527) | 615.561) __{115289) {___18.002.042)

the period

Balance at
September 30, 2011,
nt of accumulated
deprecnition
and amortization Yo L7500 PAsi7o2a0 P

A1N5.986 P 4750270 P 1462 005 2 495 779 568

amounted to P210.2 million

The Group’s fully depreciated assets that are still being used

and P206.8 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

For the period ended September 30, 2011, the Group decided to operate the
condominium units and parcels of land in Boracay as hotels. These units were initially
intended to be developed by the Group for resale. The Group reclassified these real estate
for sale from Property Development Costs account to Propetty and Equipment under the

line item Building and Land.
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

This account consists of:

2012 2011
Trade payables , P1,325,109,697 P1,134,189,541
Liabilities for land acquisition 575,300,558 375,325,778
Accrued expenses 91,023,187 65,193,504
Others 14,985,375 53,488,219

P2,006,418.817 P1.628.197.042

Liabilities for land acquisition represent the unpaid portion of land for future development
acquired by the Group.

Accrued expenses represent accruals for salaries and wages, utfities, professional fees,
outside services and other expenses incurred in the normal operatons of the Group.

Other payables consist primatily of unearned tentals and pa}fables to government and other
regulatory agencies.

Due to their short dutation, the carrying amounts of current trade and other payables
recognized in the staternents of financial position are considered by management to be a
reasonable approximation of fair value.

DUE TO JOINT VENTURE PARTNERS

This account represents the share of joint ventute (JV) partners in the proceeds from the

sale of certain projects in accordance with various |V agreements entered into by the
Group.

The details of the account are as follows:

2012 2011
Due to golf share partnets and
lot owners P 324,410,959 P 324,410,959
Deferred interest expense (___110,013,583) (__129.861.592)

P_214397,376 194549307

The amortization of deferred interest amounting to P19.8 million, P5.0 million and
P19.8 million for the periods ended December 31, 2012, December 31, 2011 and
September 30, 2011 is presented as part of Finance Costs under Finance Costs and Other
Charges account in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 16.2).
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REDEEMABLE PREFERRED SHARES

On September 4, 2012, the TLC’s BOD approved the additional subscriptions of
1,258.0 million preferred shares out of TLC’s authorized capital stock as partial payment
for certain parcels of land with total fair value of P1,338.2 million. As of
December 31, 2012, the SEC has not yet issued an approval on subscription to these
redeemable preferred shares.

Generally non-voting, these preferred shares earn dividends at a fixed annual rate of 2.5%
subject to the existence of TLCs unrestricted retained earnings. For the petiod ended
December 31, 2012, TLC did not declare any dividends. The accrued dividends on these
preferred shares is presented as part of Other Non-Current Liabilities account in the 2012
consolidated statement of financial position and presented under Finance Costs under the
Finance Costs and Other Charges account in the 2012 consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (see Note 16.2).

The preferred shares shall have a matutity of 10 years and shall be redeemed on every
anniversary date beginning on the sixth anniversary date until expiration of the ten-year
period. Only 1/5 of the aggregate face value of preferred shares may be redeemed per
year during such redempiion period, with all remaining shares to be redeemed on the
10th anniversary date.

The preferred shates are considered as financial labilities. Accordingly, the redeemable
preferred shares are recognized at fair value on the date of issuance and are classified as a
non-curtent liability in the 2012 consolidated statement of financial position. The fair
values of the redeemable preferted shares on the date of issuance approximate their par
value.

FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS

16.1 Finance and Other Income

Presented below are the details of this account.

December 31, December 31, September 30,
2012 2011 2011
Notes {Qne Year) (Three Months) (One Year)

Finance income 6,9 P 118,717,108 P 31,665977 P 139,635,283
Gain on refunds 30,645,216 - -
Foreign currency

gains — net - 832 275,287
Guarantee income 20.2 - - 50,000,000
Miscellaneous 50,093,415 40,197,776 22,102,735

P 199,455,739 P 71,864,085 D 212,013,305

A gain ot loss on refunds arises when the amount to settle a refund claimed by a customet
is lower or higher than the total amount previously collected from the said customer.
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In 2010, FEPI assumed certain habilities of Fil-Fistate Management, Inc. (FEMI) to
Cameron Granville Asset Management, Inc. (CGAMI). In 2011, FEPI and CGAMI
agreed that certain lots in Boracay owned by FEPI shall be sold to settle the advances
amounting to P96.0 million. The proceeds from the sale amounting to P56.0 million were
then used to settle the advances. CGAMI agreed that such payment will be considered as
full settlement of the advances and that CGAMI will no longer collect the balance of
240.0 million, which amount is shown above as part of Miscellaneous income under
Finance and Other Income account in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the period ended Septembet 30, 2011.

16.2  Finance Costs and Other Charges

Presented below are the details of this account.

December 31, December 31, September 30,
2012 2011 2011
Notes {Onc Yeat) {Three Months) {QOne Year)

Finance costs . 14, 20.5,
15 P 74,060,080 P 22725973 I 183,517,312
Impairment loysses on

tiade and other

receivables 6 29,121,602 - 10,349,736
Miscellaneous - 2411923 9,644,891
P 103,181,682 D 25137896 D 203.511.939

For the period ended September 30, 2011, finance costs include interest expense and
additional charges amounting to 1103.9 million from the Company’s convertible bonds
which were fully paid on Febroary 1, 2011 (see Note 20.2) and P27.3 million from the loan
and mottgage payable pertaining to a loan facility which was also paid in full 1n 2011
(see Note 20.5).
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OPERATING EXPENSE BY NATURE

Presented below are the details of this account.

December 31, December 31, September 30,
2012 2011 2011
Naotes (One Year) (Three Months) (One Year)
Cost of real estate sales P .264,521,139 P 23,865,753 F 142,739,219
Cost of hotel operations - 42,217,660 3,647,360 -
Salaries and employee
benefits 18.1, 21 153,072,027 77,669,001 75,835,996
Taxes and licenses 65,763,025 9,987,884 112,554,176
Depreciation and
amortization 11,12 40,550,406 7,175,745 23,934,008
Commission 20,891,492 1,904,048 4,052,570
Professional fees and
outside services 13,934,111 9,567,623 59,656,600
Utilities and supplies 9,269,476 2,859,581 26,285,748
Transportation 7,250,417 2,630,326 10,647 874
T.oss on refund 5,581,395 11,943,889 21,777,361
Rent 4,694,971 1,588,289 13,492,437
(Gas and oil 1,773,756 723,553 2,170,661
Representation 1,732,732 609,241 9,154,063
Repairs and maintenance 1,363,124 1,467,470 3,733,346
Advertising and
promotions 1,351,427 3,985,533 6,894,023
Impairment Josses on
real estate and resort
shares for sale 7 - - 10,203,547
Miscellaneous 43,661,862 10,169,747 30,155,851
P 677,629,020 D 169795043 P 553,287,480
These expenses are classified in the consolidated statements of comprehensive Income as
follows:
December 31, December 31, September 30,
2012 2011 2011
(One Year) _(Three Months)  __(One Year)
Cost of real estate sales P 264,521,139 P 23,865,753 P 142,739,219
Cost of services 30,155,257 0,898,334 75,528,802
Cost of hotel operations 42,217,660 3,647,360 -
Operatng expenses 340,734,964 132,383,596 335,019.369
P___671,62 P 169,795.043 P 553,287 480
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
18.1 Salaries and Employee Benefits

Fxpenses recognized for salaries and employee benefits are presented below {see Note 17).

December 31, December 31, September 30,
2012 2011 2011
Note {One Year) _[(Three Months}  __ {One Year)

Short-term bencfits P 111,165,572 P 27443343 T 56,659,746
Share-based employee

compensation 212 38,515,271 -
Post-employment

henefits 3,391,184 488 435 19,176,250
Termination benefits - 49,737,223 -

P 153,072 L 77669001 L 75,835,996

18.2 Post-employment Benelfits

The Group has an unfunded, non-contrbutory defined benefit plan covering all regular
employees. The plan provides for lump-sum benefits equivalent to 85% to 150% of the
employee’s monthly salary for every yeat of service depending on the number of years of
service. The normal retirement age is 60 years old and applicable upon completion of five
years of faithful and continuous service to the Group. However, an employee who attains
the age of 50 with the completion of no less than 10 years of service or has completed
15 years of service and opts for an early retirement is likewise entitled to the same benefits.
Actuarial valuations are made annually to update the retirement benefit costs.

The amounts of retirement benefit obligation as of the end of the reporting periods,
presented as non-current liability in the consolidated statements of financial position, are
determined as follows:

2012 ' 2011
Present value of the obligation P 35,231,633 P 44 505,135
Unrecognized actuarial loss 27,786,227 14,073,865

P 63,017,860 P 58,579,000

The movements in present value of the retirement benefit obligation are as follows:

2012 2011
Balance at beginning of period P 44,505,135 P 43,982,504
(Current service cost 2,079,073 100,447
Tnterest cost 2,752,111 387,988
Actuarial Joss (gain) ( 14,104,686) 34,196

Balance at end of period P 35,231,633 P 44 505,135
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The amounts of post-employment benefit recognized in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income are as follows:

December 31, December 31, September 30,

2012 2011 2011
{One Year)  _(Three Months) {One Yeat)
Current service cost P 2,079,073 P 100,447 P 1,745,179
Interest cost 2,752,111 387,988 3,372,549
Net actuarial gain
recognized during the period  ( 1,440,000) - ( 404,886)
Tiffects of sertlemene/cuttailment - - 14,463,408

| 3,391,184 P 438435 P 19,176,250

The amounts of post-employment benefit expense are presented as part of Salaries and
employee  benefits under Operating Expenses in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income.

Presented below is the historical information related to the present value of the retirement
benefit obligation.

December 31, December 31, September 3, Seprember 3, Sepremnber 30,
2012 ‘301 2011 2010 2009
Present vilue of
the ebhgation j 35.23L,633 L 44505135 L 43982504 I 50.966.53%5 L SLR30 336

In determining the amount of retitement benefit obligation, the following actuarial
assumptions were used for the reporting periods:

December 31, December 31, September 30,
2012 2011 2011

{One Yeat) {Three Months) {One Year)

Discount rates 6.14% 7.30% C730%
Expected rate of salary increase 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality
tables. The average expected working lives of an individual retiring at the age of 60 is
27 years for both males and females.

The Group 1s currently assessing the amount it will contribute to the plan in 2013.
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19. TAXES

The components of tax expense as repotied in the consolidated statements of
comprehensjve iicome are as follows:

December 31, December 31, Septernber 30,

2012 2011 2011
(One Year) {Three Months) (One Year)
Current tax expense:
Repular corporate
income tax (RCIT) 2t 30% P 9,709,182 P - P -
Minimum corporate
income tax MCTT) at 2% 5,633,157 5,889,369 7,216,886
Final tax at 20% 3,449,357 2,910,923 16,200,750
18,791,696 8,800,292 23,417,636
MCIT applied during the year ( 8,981,029) - -
Deferred tax expense
rr:lat'mg'to origination and
reversal of temporary
differences 44,877,521 4775310 22,189,970

P___ 54,688,088 D 13575602 P___ 45607606

A recondiliation of tax on pretax profit computed at the applicable statutory rates to income
tax expense reported in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income 1s as follows:

December 31, December 31, September 30,
2012 2011 2011
{One_Year) {Three Months) {One Year)

Tax on pretax profit at 30% P 95,922,030 P 14,052,057 P 19,48999
Adjustments for income

subjected to lower

income tax rates ( 1,490,927) ( 1,455,507} ( 6,440,701)
Tax effects of:

Income tax benefit from

previously unrecognized

deferred tax asscts ( 66,083,897) - -
Non-taxable income ( 23,618,111) { 31,678,465) { 3,859,826)
Unrecognized deferred '

tax assets 19,885,418 27,218,298 22,504,523
Non-deductble expenses 15,585,782 370,303 13,118,973
Expired deferred tax assets 13,540,576 4,775,310 791,698
Non-deductible

interest expense 947,317 293,606 2,948

P 54,688,188 L 13,575,602 P 45,607,606
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The Group’s net

Deferred tax Labilities:
Untealized gtoss profit on
real estate sales
Capitalized interest
Deferred commission

Deferred tax assets:
thvopemt'mg loss
carry-over (NOLCO)
Allowance for impairment
Retirement benefit obligaton
Gross profic per tax
MCIT
Share-based employee
compensat:ion

deferred tax liabilities relate to the following as of December 31:

2012 2011
P 327310448 P 227,377,112
167,901,377 167,901,377
17,768.660 18.277.256

512.989.485

( 179,396,467) (
( 145,635,112) (
( 18,905,358) {
( 17,446,954)

( 14,870,526) (

161,050,170)
141,486,275)
17,573,700)

13,142,634)

(___ 11,554.581)

( 387.808,998) (

333.052.779)

P 128180487 D

R0 302,964

The details of NOLCO, which can be claimed as deducaon from the respective entifies’

frture taxable income within three years from the year the loss was incurred, are shown

WMalid TInril

below.
Pertod Original Applied Expired Remaining
I Amount During the Period During the Period Balance

20472 tone veurd P 093538970 . P - P - » 19 589 710
20011 (3 manths 21220631 - 21.226,83
2011 (oo vere) 12221017 - ) - (2221417
20010 (ene vear) Ged 1L 14R.319 126, 107.054 - 514,950,665
2419 {one year) Lt 404 544 - Lt 107 54

P __768.677.418 E

597,988,223

126,197,634

M;ijbrity of the entities within the Group ate sub

P 44491541 P

2015
2014
2114
a3
012

ject to the MCIT which is computed at 2%

of gross income, as defined under the tax regulations. The total of the MCIT paid by certain
subsidiaries, which can be applied as dedoction from their respective future RCIT payable

within three years from the year the MCIT was incurred, are shown below.

Period Original Anpplied 'LExpired Remuining .
Incurred Amour Durine the Perivd - Dunng e Period Balunce Yalick Unisl
202 (ome vewry P Fa4mn8s P P - P 3439088 2015
2001 (3 menths) AU07.208 3997208 2014
2011 {one vears 53480 - 5434170 2014
2000 {one veand BORLN2Y HUBLO - 25
2008 {one veary R I E| 5. 3HR iz
[ 209233780 P 8981028 LI 3,382,234 P 14,870,520

Certain subsidiaries within the Group did not recognize the deferred tax assets on theix
NOLCO and MCIT m accosdance with relevant accounting standards.

Management has assessed chat for other entites within the Group, the net losses incurred
s well as the related NOLCO, can be recovered through their respective furure

operatlons.
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The Group opted to contnue claiming itemized deductions for the petiods ended
December 31, 2012, December 31, 2011 and Septembet 30, 2011 mn computing for its
income tax due.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group’s related parties include its associates, stockholders, the Company’s key
management personnel and others as described below.

Transactions with related parties are also discussed below.

20.1 Lease of Investment Property

The Company leases its investament propetty to certain related parties with rental payments
mutually agreed before commencement of the lease. The revenues earned from these related
parties, which are included as patt of Rental Income i the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, are shown below. ‘

Amount of Transactions

December 31, Decembet 31, September 30,
2012 2011 2011
{(One Yeat) (Three Moaths) {Ope Year)
Associates P 1,174,635 P 1,139,903 P 5,246,590
Other investee companies
of shareholders 17,943 549,261 3,158,725
P 1,252,518 P 16801604 I 8,405,315

The outstanding receivables from these transactions amounting to P0.8 million,
P0.8 million, and P8.4 million as of December 31, 2012, December 31, 2011, and
September 30, 2011, respectively, are presented as part of Others under Trade and Other
Receivables (see Note ). Outstanding receivables from these transactions are short-term,
unsecured and noninterest-bearing. These are also generally settled in cash on a monthly
basis. These receivables have been reviewed for indications of impatrment. Based on
management’s evaluation, no hmpaitment loss needs to be recognized for the petiods .
ended December 31, 2012, December 31, 2011 and September 30, 2011.

20.2 Memorandum of Agreement with CJH Development Corporation

On July 1, 2008, the Company and FEUDC entered into 2 Memorandum of Agreement
(MOA) with Camp John Hay Development Corporaton (CJDEVCO). The MOA was
entered into by the parties for the completion of the development of Camp John Hay
Suites and Forest Cabins. CJDEVCO shall contribute leasehold rights over the projects
and technical data undertaken 1n relation to the projects. FEUDC shall finance the
completion of the projects and shall assume CJDEVCO’s specific development
obligations with tespect 10 the projects while the Company shall guarantee the funding
necessary to complete the projects by drawdowns from the bonds facility (see Note 16.2).
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By virtue of the MOA and in considetation of the guarantee of the Company, CJDEVCO
assigned to the Company the rights to construct the buildings for leisure homes over
certain lots and rights to another development agreement previously entered into - by
CJDEVCO with a landownet including the right to be reimbursed for advances made to
the landowner amounting to P50.0 million. The assigned development agreement with the
landowners did not push through. In 2011, in accordance with the MOA, the landownets
refunded to the Company the P50.0 million advances previously givenl to them by
CJDEVCO. The Company recorded the amount it received as Guarantee Income which
is shown under Finance and Other Income account in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the period ended September 30, 2011 (see Note 16.1).

20.3 Deed of Assignment

In June 2011, FEPI has agreed to assign (o Fimpite Fast Land Holdings, Inc. (EELHI), a
related party under common ownership, the rght to develop the Pioneer lot project
known as the “Ceniral Park Place”. In consideration of the assignment, EELHI shall
pay FEPI a non-refundable  cash consideration amounting to P60.0 milion. The
non-refundable cash consideration 18 ptcsented as part of Income from Assignment of
Development Rights in the consolidated statement of comprehenstve income for the
petiod ended September 30, 2011.

20.4 Advances to Related Parties

The Group grants advances to its associates and other related parties for working capital
purposes. These advances to related parties are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and
repayable upon demand.  Settlement is generally made in cash. The balances of these
advances, shown as Advances to Related Parties account in the consolidated statements of
financial position as of Decembet 31, are as follows:

2012 2011
Assoclates P 246,293,062 P 257,666,033
Other investee companies
of shareholders 683,879,459 548.012,480

P_ 930,172,521 P_805678513

A summary of transactions with these related parties are as follows:

Amount of Transactions
December 31, December 31, September 30,
2012 2011 2011

(One Year) (Three Months) (One Year)

Associates:
Balance at beginaing of period P 257,666,033 P 21 5904,195 P 105,409,663
Cash advapces granted 103,266,123 41,761,838 110,494,532
Collections { 114,639.094) - -

Balance at end ofpcrind P ;3@,22;,5;55; P 257.666.033 B 215,904,195
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Amount of Transactons
December 31, December 31, September 30,
2012 2011 2011

{One Year) (Three Months) {Qne Year)

Orther investee CoMmpanies
of shateholders:

Ralance at beginning of period P 548,012,480 T 525,848,631 P 1,145,471,491

(Cash advances granted 200,382,870 219,174,980 765,420,679
Collections ( 64,515,891) 197.011.131)(___ 885.043,539)
Balance at end of perod P__6838 79,459 P 548012480 B 525,848,651

As at December 31, 2012 and 2011, based on management’s assessment, the outstanding
balances of Advances to Relatred Parties are not impatred, hence, no allowance for
impairment losses were recognized. '

The Group also has short-term unsecured and noninterest-bearing outstanding Advances
to Officers and Employees which are presented under Trade and Other Receivables
account in the consolidated statements of financial position {(sec Note 6). These are settled
through salary deductions or liquidation.

As at December 31, 2012 and 2011, based on management’s assessment, the outstanding
balances of Advances to Officers and Employees are not impaired, hence, no allowance
for impairment losses were recognized.

20.5 Advances from Rela ted Parties

Certain expenses of the entities within the Group ate paid mainly by AGI and
Megaworld Corporation, a company ander common ownesship, and by other related parties
on behalf of the former. These advances are unsecured and repayable generally in cash upon
demand. Also, except for a porton of the advances from: Megaworld Corporation, these
advances are non-interest bearing. The balances of these advances, shown as Advances
from Related Parties account in the consolidated statements of financial position as of end of
the reporting periods, are as follows:

2012 2011
Parent company P 482,414,086 P
Related parties under
common ownership 257,333,256 401,966,163
Other investee companics
of shareholders 306,106,184 _315.153.424

P1,045,853,526 L 717,119,587

The advances from the parent company and a portion of the advances from related parties

under common ownership beat annual interest of 8.5% and 6.0%, respectively. Interest

expense from these advances totaling P9.3 million is presented as part of Finance Costs -
under Finance Costs and Other Charges account in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income for the period ended December 31, 2012 (see Note 16.2).
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A summary of transactions with these related parties are as follows:

Amount of Transactions
December 31, December 31, September 30,
2012 2011 2011
{One Year) {Three Months) (One Year)

Parent company:

Balance at beginning of period P - P - P -
Cash advances obtained 479,765,080 -
Interest expense 2,649,006 - -
Balance at end of period j 482,414,086 D P -
Related parties under common
ownership:
Balance at beginning of pesiod P 401,966,163 P 27715232 P -
Cash advances obtained 83,273,493 374,250,931 27,715,232
Repayments ( 234,572,057) - -
Interest cxpense 6,665,657 - -
Balance at end of period P 257,333,256 L 401,966,163 P 27.715,232
Other investee companies
of shareholders:
Balance at beginning of period P 315,153,424 P 311,724,127 P 244 383,010
Cash advances obtained 60,127,397 288,366,958 55,430,464
Repayments ( 69,174,637 ( 284.937.661) ( 588.089.347)
Balance at end of petiod P__ 306,106,184 P _ 315153424 B 311,724,127

20.6 Key Management Personnel Compensations
The Group’s key management personnel compensation includes the following:

December 31, December 31, - -~ September 30,
2012 2011 2011

{One Year) {Three Months) {One Year)

Share-based employee

compensation P 38,515,271 P - P -
Shott-term benefits 10,351,675 2,885,216 8,823,400
Paost-employment benefits 1,120,651 411,426 1,151,950

P 49,987,597 L 3206642 1 9975350
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EQUITY
21.1 Capital Stock

Capital stock consists of:

Shaggs ] _Apount
December 3, 13ecember 31, September 30, December 31, December 31, September Sl
2042 anil 1] 2012 2011 2011
Common shargs — P par value
Nuthussired 0000906000 . ipow  lugupngn POA0KOM0 Bl P o o0
Lasued sid utstanding:
Ralanee at hugnning,
of puriod §,356,000,000 H.356 100 00 3350000000 8,356,000,000 8 356,000,1i0 3550000,
Jasued durimg the peod _ 130,000,000 . canniuiong . 130000000 - —— 5 puGunnBI
Batance ar eod of perod ___B,486,000.000 R AL _B,356.000 00 __8,486,000,000 B30 I0IMG B350 000
Subseriptions receivabie:
Jalanee at beginnis
of period - - { 83,122,036 )
Celleetions during
the puriod - - 283 122136

Padance at end of period

——— e —————

g;s,ggg,ggg,{m P 4386 UML000 D 835600000

On August 28, 2010, the Company’s stockholders approved the increase in the Company’s
authorized capital stock from P5.0 billion divided into 5.0 billion shares to
P10.0 billion divided into 10.0 billion shates, both with P1 par value. The Company’s
application for increase in authorized capital stock was approved by the SEC on
January 20, 2011. Thereafter, the Company issued 5.0 billion fully paid shares to AGI
representing 60% of the outstanding capital stock of the Company.

On February 8, 2007, as patt of the consideration for the private placement subsctiptions
made by Lim Asta Mulu-Strategy Fund, Inc. (LAMSET) and LIM Asia Alternative Real
Estate Fund (LAAREF) and their agreement to provide a financial facility for ongoing and
future real estate projects, the Company’s BOD authorized the issuance of 136.0 million
warrants resulting to 136.0 million unissued shares of common stock of the Company with
an cxercise price of 1 per share for which an exemptive relicf was sought. The SEC
issued a resolution dated February 16, 2007 confirming that issuance of the 136.0 million
warrants is exempt from registraton requirements of the Secutities Regulation Code.
There is no value assigned to the warrants since the interest rate of the loan granted is
higher than the prevailing market rates at the time the loans were availed.

In September 2011, LAMSFL a holder of the Company’s watrants, converted 6.0 million
of its holdings into 6.0 million common shares of the Company at an exercise price of

11.00 per share.

On May 18, 2012, LAMSFI converted another 62.0 million wartrants into 62.0 million

common shates of the Company at an exercise price of P1.00 per shate.

On july 30, 2012, LAAREF converted 68.0 million watrants into 68.0 million common
shares of the Company at an exercise price of P1.00 pet share.

J— vl wraeeanie ae af Necember 31. 2012,
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On November 23, 1995, the SEC apptoved the listing of the Company’s common shares
totaling 150 million. The shares were initially issued at an offer ptice of P19.50
per common share. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, there are 4,484 and 4,611 holders
of the listed shares, respectively, which closed at P1.96 and P2.12 per share, respectively.

The Company also made additonal listings of 2.2 billion and 5.0 billion shares on
Jamuary 11, 2007 and January 20, 2011, respectively.

21.2 Employee Stock Option Plan

On September 23, 2011, the BOD of the Company approved an Executive Stock Option
Plan (the ESOP) for its key executive officets. This was apptoved on November 8, 2011
by stockholders holding at {east 2/3 of the outstanding capital stock. The purpose of the
ESOP is to enable the key executives and senior officers of the Company, who are largely
responsible for its further growth and development, to obtain an ownetship interest in the
Company, thereby encouraging long-term commitment to the Company. The ESQP is
heing administered by the Jixecutive Compensation Commiitee of the BOD.

Under the ESOP, the Company shall initially reserve for exercise of stock options up to
500.0 million common shates of the Company’s outstanding shares to be issued, in whole
ot in patt, out of the authotized but unissued shares. Stock options may be granted within
ten years from the adoption of the ESOP and may be exercised within seven years from
date of grant. The exercise price shall be at a 15% discount from the volume weighted
average closing price of the Company’s shates for rwelve months immediately preceding
the date of grant. The options shall vest within three years from date of grant and the
holder of an option may exercise only a third of the option at the end of each year of the
three-year petiod. The Company shall receive cash for the stock options.

Pursuant to this ESOP, on February 16, 2012, the Company granted the options to its key
company executives to subscribe to 100.0 million shares of the Company, at an exexcise
price of P1.93. As of December 31, 2012, no options have vested. An option holder may
exercise in whole or in part his vested option provided, that, an option exetcisable but not
actually exercised within a given yeat shall accrue and may be exercised at any time
thereafter but prior to the expiration of said option’s life cycle.

The fair value of the option granted was estimated using a variation of the Black-Scholes
valuation model that takes into account factors specific to the ESOP. The following
principal assumptions were used in the valuation:

Grant date February 16, 2012
Vesting period ends February 15, 2015
Option life Seven yeats
Share price at grant date P 210
Exercise price at grant date P 193
Avetage fair value at grant date P 227
Average standard deviation of

share price retutns 57.10%
Average risk-free investment rate 2.46%

The undetlying expected volatility was determined by reference to historical date of the

Company’s shares overa period of dme consistent with the option life.
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A total of P38.5 million share based employee compensation is included as part of Salaties
and employee benefits under Operating Expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the period ended December 31, 2012 (see Note 17) and
credited to Share Options Outstanding in the equity portion of the 2012 consolidated
statement of financial position.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Farnings per share amounts were computed as follows:

December 31, December 31, September 30,
2012 2011 2011

{(One Year) {Threg Months) One Year)

Basic:
Net profit attributable

to owners of the parent

company P 294,859,072 ¥ 42,978,060 P 19,968,543
Divided by wcighted number
of outstanding common shares 8.420,500,000 8.356,000,000 6,592,959,321
P 0,035 R 0005 P 0.003
Diluted:

Net profit attributable

to ownets of the pazent

company P 294,889,072 T 42978,060 D 19,968,543
Divided by wetghted number

of outstanding common shares 8,420,500,000 8,486,000,000 6,722.959.321

P 003 D 0.005 P 0,003

In 2012, all 130 million outstanding warrants were exercised. Further, in relation to the
approved ESOP for key executve officers during the year, no share options have vested
yet as of December 31, 2012. Hence, there ate no potentially dilutive shares as of
December 31, 2012 (see Notes 21.1 and 21.2).

As of September 30, 2011, the convertible bonds were already settled and 6.0 million
warrants were exetcised out of the 136 million warrants, hence, there are 130 million

remaining warrants that can Dbe considered as potentially dilutive shares as of
December 31, 2011 and September 30, 2011,

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

23.1 Operating Lease Commitments — Group as Lessor

The Group is a lessor under several operating leases covering real estate properties for
commercial use (see Note 11). The leases have terms ranging from 1 to 33 years, with

renewal options, and include annual escalation rates of 5% to 10%. The average annual
rental covering these agreements amounts to P29.5 million.
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Future mmimum lease payments receivable under these agreements are as follows:

December 31, December 31, Seprember 30,
2012 2011 2011
(Ong Year) (Three Mounths) {One Year!
Within one year P 59,245,009 P 44,920399 P 45,329 587
After one year but not
morce than five years . 203,160,436 146,575,27 172,098,897
More than five years 665,007 844 393,188,047 403 04d 278

P 928 316,280 D BRGGRR T4 P 421,372,712
23.2 Operating Lease Commuments = Group as Lessee

The Group is a lessee under several operating leases covering condeminium units for
administrative use. The leases bave terms ranging from 1 to 11 years, with renewal
options, and include a 3% to 10% annual escalation rate. The average annual rental
covering these agreements amounts to P1.2 million. The future minimum rental payables -

under these non-cancelable leases as of the end of the teporiing periods are 2s follows:

December 31, December 31, September 30,
2012 20)1 2011
{One Year) {Three Monthsi {One Year®
Within one vear P 1,029,000 P 1,020,000 P 1,280,125
After one year but not . :
more than five years 617,400 . 376,031 401,100
I - L646,400 P 1396031 P - 1681735

23.3 Others

There are other commirment and contingent liabilities that may arise in the normal course

of the (Group’s operations that are not reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

"As of the end of the reporting period, management is of thé‘(")pﬂﬁon that losses, if any,

from thése items will not have a material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. ‘ '

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AIND POLICIES

The Group has various financial instruments such as cash and cash equivalents, financial
assets at FVIPL, AFS securities, bank loans, bonds, tade receivables and pavables which
arise directly from the Group’s business operadons. The financial habilinies were ssued to
raise funds for the Group’s capital expenditures.

The Group does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative
PUIPOSCS.

24.1 Foreign Currency Risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are carmled out in Philippine pesos, its funcaonal
curtency.  Fxposures to cuirency exchange rates arise mainly from the Group’s

U.S. dollar-denominated cash and cash equivalents which have been used to fund new
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Management assessed  that the foreign CUTLeEncy risks related to these U.S.
dollar_denominated cash and cash equivalents to be not material.

24.2 Interest Rate Risk

The Group has no significant exposure o interest rate risk as financial assets and
liabilities are non-interest beating (trade and other receivables and payables) or are carried
at fixed interest rates (cash i banks).

24.3 Credit Risk

Generally, the Group’s credit risk is attributable to trade receivables, rental receivables and
other financial assets. The Group maintains defined credit policies and continuously
monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties, identified either individually or
by group, and incorporate this information into 1its credit sk controls. Where available at
a reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or reporis on customers and other
counterparties are obtained and used.  The Group’s policy is to deal only with
creditworthy counterparties. 1n addition, for a significant propottion of sales, advance
payments are received to mitigate credit risk.

Generally, the maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is the carrying amount of
the financial assets as shown in the consolidated statements of financial position (or in the
detailed analysis provided in the notes to consolidated  financial statements), as
summatized below.

MNaotes 2012 2011
Cash and cash equivalents 5 P 466,229,767 P 993,080,142
Trade and othet
recelvables — net 6 1,587,908,691 1,449,006,386

Advances to related patties 20.4 930,172,521 805,678,513

P 2.984,310,979  £3.247.765.041
(a) Cashand Cash Equivalents

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible since the
counterparties are reputable hanks with high quality external credit ratings.

(6)  Trade and Other Receivables

All trade and other receivables (excluding advances tO conttactors and suppliers) ate
subject to credit risk exposure. However, the Group does not identify specific
concentrations of credit risk with regard to Trade and Other Receivables as the
amounts recognized resemble a latge number of seceivables from various CUStOMELs.
Certain receivables from trade customers are secured by dtles to the real estate
propem'es sold since these remain to the Group until such receivables are fully
collected.  Certain  past due accounts are 1ot provided with allowance for
impairment to the extent of the expected market value of the property sold to the

customer. The title to the real estate properﬁes remains with the Group untl] the
receivables are fully collected.
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24,4 Liquidity Risk

The Group manages its Bqudity needs by carefully monitoring scheduled debr servicing

payments for long-term financial liabilides as well as cash outflows due in a day-to-day

business.
week-to-week, as  well

Long-term needs for a six-month

on

the Tbasis of a

Liquidity needs are monitored in varous dme bands, on a day-to-day and
rolling
and one-year perod are idenufied monthly.

30-day  projection.

The Group maintans cash to meet its liquidity requiternents for up (o 60-day perniods.

Fxeess cash s invested i tme deposits or s

hort-term marketable securities. Funding for

long-term lquidity needs is additionally secured by an adegquate amount of committed
cradit faciiies and the ability o sell long-term financial assets.

As of end of the reporung periods, the Group’s fmancial

maturtities which are presented below.

December 31, 2012

Teade o ather payables

Aclvances from related pavties
Due 10 joiNf veniure parreers
Redeenmabie prefecred shares

Aceruedd interest on preforred shares

December 31, 201

Teade and other pavables
Advances from wiated partes
[2ue 1o e venture pariners

The above contractual maturities refiec

liabilides bave contractual

Current Nan-currens
Wichin 60 i2 lwos Luater than
6 Months Montis Yeurs, 3 Yeurs
PLTE050LTE P RAA6ETAY 1 1 -
1,145.453.520 - - -
T - ' 214397376 -
- .- A 1,352,330,9U43

10,483.33%

P2221803,604 P 330468739 L

POLOIZETIG6E P 615323407 P
TI7.519.587 -

1366734360 2 10,483,333

104,349 367

D700 A0 B (1523 407 1

104 Gy 30T 2

carrving values of the labilities at the reporting dates.

t the gross cash flows, which may differ from the

CATEGORIES AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES

25.1 Comparison of Carrying Amounis and Fair Values

Financraf asscts
Lomns s recenvables:
Casiv amd cash comvalens
“Peade and other reeercabiien - et

Advances toreited partics

A Pmancra] assens

' The carrying amounts and fair values of the catego
presented in the consolidated stateménts of financial posidon are shown below.

December 31, 2012

ries of fnancial assers and Habilities

Pecembyy 34 2000

Carrving Fair Carrving Iy
Notgy Valucs Values Aajugs Yonles
5 P 466,229,767 P 466,229.767 D 993080142 P QUSRI
0 1,587,908,691  1.587,908.691 L4910 386 1440 106 386
04 930,172,521 230,172,521 405 GF8SED BO3.678315

2,984,310,979  2.954,310,079
1,250,000 1,250,000

32477650410 3. 24E T65.04

1 35010 GITRA

T 7 085 351,070 PLORR 360070

oAy IS ndl Py 240 0n



26.

- 00 -
December 31, 201 December 31 20LE
Carrying Fair Cargying ARt
Mot Values Values Values NMalues
Financial finbilitics
Hnancial habikilics at
amortized cost:
Teade and ether pavables i3 P 1,997,366,325 P1,997,466,325 [ ,621,700.729 1 1.621,709.728
Advances from telated pastics 215 1,045,853,526 1,045,853,526 T17.119.587 717,119,587
Due to joint veniure partners 14 214,397,376 214,397,376 104,549,367 194,549,367
Redecmable prefereed shares 15 1,257,987,900 1,257,987,900
Aceried intercst on prelurred shurus 10,483,333 10,483,333 - e
P 4,520,188.460 P 4.5 26,188,460 12.535,378 683 12533378683

See Notes 2.4 and 79 for a description of the accounting policies for each category of
financial instrument. A description of the Group’s risk management objectives and
po}icics for financial instruments is provided in Note 24.

25.2 Fair Value Hierarchy

The Group’s AFS financial assets are comptised of golf club shares. Fair value
measurements of these financial assets were determined directly by reference to pub]ished
prices quoted in an active market (Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy).

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

‘The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure the Group’s ability to confinue
as a going concern and to pr.ovide an adequate tetura to sharcholders.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall financing structure, i€,
equity and financial habiliies. The (Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light ot changes in econosmic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the undeslying assets. 1o ordet to maintain Or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, 1ssue new shares or sell assets to

reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity as presented on
the face of the consolidated statements of financial position. Capital for the xepoxﬁng
periods ander review is summartized as follows:

2012 2011
Total Liabilities P 7,025,253,985 P 5091,570,197
Total Equity 17.592.403,324 15.890,799,921
Debt-to-equity tatio 0,40:1.00 0.32:1.00
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GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE 1°" QUARTER ENDED March 31, 2013

REVIEW OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Consolidated revenues for the three-month period ended March 31, 2013 amounted to B 436.4
million with an increase of 15% compared to B 378.9 million in March 31, 2012. The Company’s
real estate sale of B 229.5 million came mainly from sale of lots in Newcoast Shophouse District and
Newcoast Village in Malay, Aklan, Sta. Barbara Heights in Ho-1Ilo City, and Twin Lakes Domaine Le
Jardin in Laurel Batangas. Income from rentals and golf course maintenance contracts amounted to
P 48.5 million. Realized gross profit on prior years’ real estate sales amounted to B 27.2 million.
Hotel revenues as of March 31, 2013 amounted to P 72.6 million, an increase of 168% from B 27.0
million as of March 31, 2012 due to expansion of hotel operations in Boracay. Balance of revenues

was contributed by interest and other income of 2-58.7 million.

Cost and expenses posted an increase of P 27.3 million or 8% from R 328.1 million in March 31,
212 to P 355.4 million as of March 31, 2013 mainly due to deferred gross profit on real estate sales

and cost of hotel operations.

The company posted a P80.9 million Net Income or 59% increase fot the three-month period ended
March 31, 2013, as compared to a Php50.8 million net income realized as of March 31, 2012, mainly

due to inctrease in real estate sales and hotel revenue.
As a result, Earnings per share increased to Php 0.0098 from the previous year’s level of Php 0.0068.

Major Movements of Income Statement Accounts are as follows:

® 20% Increase in Real Estate Sales - mainly due to increase in sales generated from new
projects.

e 57% Decrease in Realized gross profit on prior years’ real estate sales — due to majority of
the deferred income from old projects were realized in 2012.



®  23% Decrease in Service and Rental Income — Due to decrease in revenue from golf course
maintenance

e 168% Increase in Hotel Operations — due to expansion of hotel operations

s (8% Increase in Equity in Net Earnings of Associates, interest and other income — Primarily
due to increase in interest and other income.

e 7% Decrease in Cost of Real Estate Sales - due to majority of the sales realized for the
petiod came from sale of lots.

e  49% Increase in Deferred Gross Profit on Real Estate Sales— mainly due to sales realized for
the period came from newly launched projects.

e 240% Increase in Cost of Hotel Operations — mainly due to increase in hotel revenue.
¢ 31% Decrease in Cost of Services — mainly due to decrease in service revenue.

e 12% Decrease in Operating Expenses — mainly due to decrease in registration fee and tax
expense.

¢ 14% Decrease in Interest and other charges — mainly due to decrease in other charges

® (8% Increase in Income Tax expense — due to increase in taxable income

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

The Group’s financial position remained stable. Total assets as of March 31, 2013, Php25.2 billion
compared to Php24.6 billion as of December 31, 2012, posted an increase of Php623 million or 3%.

Trade and other receivables mncreased by 7% due to the increase in installment sales booked for the
petiod, from Php1.99 billion in December 2012 to Php2.13 billion in March 2013. Advances to
related parties increased from Php930.2 million in December 2012 to Php973.6 million in March
2013. The 5% inctease is because of the additional advances made to related parties. Real estate and
resort shares for sale increased by 7% from Php 7.8 billion in December 2012 to Php8.3 billion in
March 2013 due to increase in percentage of completion of on-going project. Property Development
Cost increased by 6% due to development of new project.

Advances from related parties increased by 25% mainly due to additional advances from parent
company. Reserve for property development cost increased by 6% due to increase in accrual of
development cost for the period. Deferred Income on real estate sales increased by 6% due to
deferred gross profit from sales recognized for the period. Deferred Tax Liability also increased
from Php125.2 million in December 2012 to Php153.3 million in March 2013. The 22% increase is
due to increase in taxable temporary difference.

Major movements of Balance Sheet Accounts are as follows:

o 7% Increase in Trade and other receivables — due to increase in installment sales booked
during the period.

e 5% increase in Advances to Related Parties — mainly due to additional advances.



e 7% Increase in Real estate and resorts share for sale — due to increase in percentage of

completion of on-going project.
® (% Increase in Property development cost — due to increase in development of new project

e 25% Increase in Advances from related parties — mainly due to additional advances from

parent company

® (% Increase in Reserve for Property Development Cost — due to increase in accrual of

development cost for the period

® (% Increase in Deferred Income — due to deferred gross profit from real estate sales

recognized for the period. .
o 22% Increase in Deferred Tax Liability — due to increase in taxable temporary difference.

¢ 16% Increase in Other non-current liability — mainly due to non-current portion of

customer’s deposit from sales reservation for the period.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

LIQUIDITY RATIOS
March 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Current Ratio 3.22 3.33
Quick Ratio 0.38 0.40

Current Rétia (Current Assets| Current Liabilities)
Liquidity ratio measures a company’s ability to pay short-term obligations.

Quick Ratio (Cash and cash equivalents + Current Trade receivables] Curvent Liabilities)
It measutes a company’s ability to meet its short-term obligations with its most liquid assets.



LEVERAGE OR LONG-RANGE SOLVENCY RATIOS

March 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Debt to Total Assets 30% 29%
Equity to Total Assets 70% 71%
Debt to Equity 42% 40%
Asset To Equity 1.42 1.40

Debt to Total Assets
It shows the creditors’ contribution to the total resources of the organization.

Egquity to Total Assets
It shows the extent of owners’ conttibution to the total resources of the otrganization,

Debt to Equity

It relates the exposure of the creditors to that of the owners.

Asset To Equity (Total Assets/ Total Owner’s Equity)

It measures the company’s leverage.

PROFITABILITY RATIOS
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Return on Equity 0.58% 0.32%
Return on Assets 0.33% *0.27%
Earnings per Share £0.0098 b 0.0068

Return on Equity (Net Income/ Equity Attributable to Parent Company’s shareholders)
It tests the productivity of the owners’ investments.

Return on Assets (INet Income/ Total Assets)
This ratio indicates how profitable a company is relative to its total assets,

Earnings per Share (EPS)
It indicates the earnings for each of the common shares held.




ACTIVITY RATIOS

March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012
Asset Turnover 0.91% 0.90%

Asset Turnover (Sales/ Total Assets)
It measures the level of capital investment relative to sales volume.

OTHERS
As of the 1st quarter ended March 31, 2013, there are no:

Known trend, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that would have a material impact
on the Company.

Material commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such commitments and
the expected sources of funds for such expenditures.

Known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a
material favorable or unfavorable impact on the net sales/revenues/income from continuing
operations.

Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’s continuing
operations.

Causes for any material changes from period to period in one or more line items of the
Company’s financial operations.

Seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of the operations.



GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 1st QUARTER ENDED MARCH 31, 2013

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1 Corporate Information

Global-Estate Resorts, Inc. (the Company or GERI) was incorporated in the Philippines on May 08, 1994,
primarily to engage in the horizontal development of residential subdivision lots, integrated residential, golf
and other leisure-related properties. The Company also engages in land acquisitions and maintains an

inventoty or raw land for future development.

The registered office of the Company, which is also its principal place of business, is located at the 7% Floor,
Renaissance Towers, Meralco Avenue, Pasig City.

The ultimate parent company of the Group is Alliance Global Group Inc. (AGI) with office address at 7th
Floor, 1880 Eastwood Avenue, Eastwood City CyberPark, 188 E. Rodrguez, Jr. Avenue, Bagumbayan
Quezon City.

The Company holds interests in the following subsidiaries and associates {collectively, together with the
Company, hereinafter referred to as the Group):

Percentage of Qwnership
Explanatory March 31, December 31,

Subsidiares/ Associates Notes 2013 2012
Subsidiaries:
Fil-Estate Properties, Inc. (FEPI) - 100% 10G%
Aklan Holdings Inc. (AHT) (a) 100% 100%
Blu Sky Airways, Iric. (BSAT) (@) 100% 100%
Fil-Estate Subic Development Corp. (FESDC) ) 100% 100%

Fil-Power Construction Equipment

Leasing Corp. (IFPCELC) (a) 100% 100%
Golden Sun Airvays, Inc. (GSAT) o) 100% 100%
La Compafia De Sta. Barbara, Inc. (LCSBT) (a) 100% 100%
MCX Corporation (MCX) (a) 100% 100%
Pioneer L-5 Realty Corp. {PLRC) @ 100% 100%
Prime Airways, Inc. (PAI) @ 100% 100%
Sto. Domingoe Place Development Corp. (SDPDC) {a) 100% 100%
Fil-Power Conercte Blocks Corp. (FPCBC) () 100% 100%
Boracay Newcoast Hotel Group, Inc. BNHGI) (a) 96% 100%
Fil-Estate Industrial Park, Inc. (FEIPI} (a) 79% T9%
Sherwood Hills Development Inc. (SHDT) () 55% 55%



Percentage of QOwnership
Explanatory March 31, December 31,

Subsidiaries /Associates Notes 2013 2012
Subsidiaries:

Fil-Estate Golf and Development, Inc. (FEGDM) 100% 100%
Golforce, Inc. (Golforee) 1)) 100% 100%
Fil-Estate Ecocentrum Corp. (FEEC) (b} 56% 56%

Philippine Aquatic Leisure Corp. (PALC) ] 56% 56%

Fil-Estate Urban Development Corp. (FEUDC) 100% 100%

Novo Sierra Holdings Corp. (NSHC) 100% 100%

Megaworld Global-Estates, Inc. (MGET) {d 60% 60%

Twin Lakes Corp. (TEC) () 50% 50%

Oceanfront Properties, Inc. (OPI) (3] 50% 50%

Associates:

Fil-Estate Network, Inc. (FENI) 20% 20%

Fil-Estate Sales, Inc. (FESE 20% 20%

Fil-Estate Realty and Sales Associates Inc, (FERSAT) 20% 205%

Fil-Estate Realty Corp. (FERC) 20% 20%

Nasugbu Properties, Inc. (NPI) 14% 14%

oPI ® - 50%

Non-controlling interests (NCI) in 2013 and 2012 represent the interests not held by the Group in FEIPL, SHDI, FEEC, PALC, MGEI,
TLC and PALC.

Explanatory notes:
a.).Subsidiarics of FEPL; percentage ownership represents effective ownership of GERL
b.).Subsidiaries of FEGDI; percentage ownership represents effective ownership of GERL
c.}Subsidiary of FEEC.
d.}Subsidiary acquired primarily to matket the Group’s projects.
e.}Subsidiary acquired irs 2011; engaged in the real estate business.
£)In 2012, the Company gained control over OPI's financial and reporting policies, hence, considered as a subsidiary starting
2012; engaged in the real estate business.

All subsidiaries and associates were incorporated in the Philippines, operate within the country and are engaged in businesses related to the
main business of the Company. .

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these

consolidated financial statements are summarized below. The policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial statements

(a) Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the measurement bases
specified by PFRS for each type of asset, liability, income and expense. The
measurement bases are more fully described in the accounting policies that follow.

(B) Presentation of Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements are presented in accordance with
Philippine Accounting Standard (PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements. The
Group presents all items of income and expense in a single consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Two comparative petiods are presented for the consolidated
statement of financial position when the Group applies an accounting policy
retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement of items in its consolidated
financial statements, or reclassifies items in the consolidated financial statements.

(¢c) Functional and Presentation Currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine pesos, the
Group’s presentation and functional currency, and all values represent absolute
amounts except when otherwise indicated.

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured
using the Group’s functional currency. Functional cutrency is the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Group operates.

2.2 Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

(a) Eiffective in 2012 that is Relevant to the Group

In 2012, the Group adopted the following amendments to PFRS that are relevant to
~ the Group and effective for financial statements for the annual-period beginning on
or after July 1, 2011 or January 1, 2012:

PERS 7 (Amendment) ‘ : Financial Instruments: Disclosutres —
Transfers of Financial Assets
PAS 12 (Amendment] : Income Taxes — Deferred Taxes:

Recovery of Underlying Assets
Discussed below are the relevant information about these amended standards.

() PFRS 7 (Amendment), Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets. The amendment requires additional disclosures that will allow users of
financial statements to understand the relationship between transferred financial
assets that are not derecognized in their entirety and the associated liabilities; and,
to evaluate the nature of, and risk associated with any continuing involvement of
the reporting entity in financial assets that are derecognized in their entirety. The
Group did not transfer any financial asset involving this type of arrangement;
hence, the amendment did not result in any significant change in the Group’s
disclosures in its consolidated financial statements.

(i) PAS 12 (Amendment), Income Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets.
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() PFRS 7 (Amendment), Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets.
The amendment requires additional disclosures that will allow users of financial
statements to understand the relationship between transfetted financial assets that
are not derecognized in their entirety and the associated liabilities; and, to evaluate

" the nature of, and risk associated with any continuing involvement of the reporting
entity in financial assets that are derecognized in their entirety. The Group did not
transfer any financial asset involving this type of arrangement; hence, the amendment
did not result in any significant change in the Group’s disclosures in its consolidated
financial statements.

i) PAS 12 (Amendment), Income Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets. The
amendment introduces a rebuttable presumption that the measurement of a deferred
tax liability or asset that arises from investment property measured at fair value under
PAS 40, Investmrent Property, should reflect the tax consequence of recovering the
carrying amount of the asset entitely through sale. The presumption is rebutted for
depreciable investment property (e.g., building) that is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the asset over time, rather than through sale. Moreover, Standing Interpretation
Committee (SIC) 21, facome Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets, is
accordingly withdrawn and is incorporated under

 PAS 12 requiring that deferred tax on non-depreciable assets that are measured using
the revaluation model in PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, should always be
measured on a sale basis of the asset. The amendment became effective for annual
periods beginning on ot after January 1, 2012 but has no significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as its investment property only includes
several properties measured at cost.

(b) Lffective in 2012 that is not Relevant to the Group

PERS 1, First-time Adoption of PFRS, was amended to provide relief for first-time adopters
of PFRS from having to reconstruct transactions that occurred before the date of
transition to PFRS and to provide guidance for entities emetging from severe
hyperinflation either to resume presenting PFRS financial statements ot to present PFRS
financial statements for the first ime. The amendment became effective for annual

periods beginning on or after July 1, 2011 but is not relevant to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

12



(c) Effective Subsequent to 2012 but not Adopted Early

There are new PFRS, amendments, annual improvements and interpretations to existing
standards that are effective for periods subsequent to 2012, Management has initially
determined the following pronouncements, which the Group will apply in accordance
with their transitional provisions, to be relevant to its financial statements:

() PAS 1 (Amendment), Financial Statements Presentation — Presentation of Items of Other
Comprebensive Income (effective from July 1, 2012). The amendment requires an entity
to group items presented in other comprehensive income into those that, in
accordance with other PFRS: (a) will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss; and, (b) will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met. The Group’s management expects that this amendment will
change the current presentation of items in other comprehensive income
[ie.,, unrealized fair value gains and losses on available-for-sale (AFS) financial
assets].

(i) PAS 19 (Amendment), Employee Benefits (effective from January 1, 2013). The
amendment made a number of changes as part of the improvements throughout the
standard. The main changes relate to defined benefit plans as follows:

¢  eliminates the corridor approach under the existing guidance of PAS 19 and
requires an entity to recognize all gains and losses arising in the reporting
period;

e  streamlines the presentation of changes in plan assets and liabilities resulting in
the disaggregation of changes into three main components of service costs, net
interest on net defined benefit obligation or asset, and remeasurement; and,

® cnhances disclosure requirements, including information about the
characteristics of defined benefit plans and the risks that entities are exposed to
through participation in them. '

{iif} Consolidation Standatds

The Group is curtently reviewing the impact on its consolidated financial
statements of the following consolidation standards which will be effective from

January 1, 2013:

o PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements. 'This standard builds on existing
prnciples of consolidation by identifying the concept of control as the
determining factor in whether an entity should be included within the
consolidated financial statements. The standard also provides additional
guidance to assist in determining control whete this is difficult to assess.
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e  PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements. This standard provides a more realistic reflection

’ of joint arrangements by focusing on the rights and obligations of the
arrangement, rather than its legal form. This standard replaces the three
categories undet PAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures, mainly, jomtly controlled
entities, jointly controlled operations and jointly controlled assets, with two
new categories — joint operations and joint ventures. Moreover, this also
eliminates the option of using proportionate consolidation for joint ventures.

- PERS 12, Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities. This standard integrates and
makes consistent the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests i other
entities, including joint arrangements, associates, special purpose vehicles and
unconsolidated structured entities. This also introduces new disclosure
requirements about the risks to which an entity is exposed from its
involvement with structured entities.

e PAS 27 (Amendment), Separate Financial Statements. This revised standard now
covers the requirements pertaining solely to separate financial statements after
the relevant discussions on control and consolidated financial statements have’
been transferred and included in PFRS 10. No new major changes relating to
separate financial statements have been introduced as a result of the revision.

«  PAS 28 (Amendment), Investments in Associate and Joint Venture. This revised
standard includes the requirements for joint ventures, as well as assoclates, to
be accounted for using equity method following the issuance of PFRS 11.

Subsequent to the issuance of the foregoing consolidation standards, the TASB
made some changes to the transitional provisions in International Financial
Reporting Standard (IFRS) 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12, which were also adopted by
the FRSC. The guidance confirms that an entity is not required to apply PFRS 10

" retrospectively in certain circumstances and clarifies the requirements to present
adjusted comparatives. The guidance also made changes to PFRS 10 and
PFRS 12 which provide similar relief from the presentation or adjustment of
comparative mformation for periods prior to the immediately preceding period.
Further, it provides relief by removing the requirement to present comparatives for
disclosures relating to unconsolidated structured entities for any petiod before the
first annual period for which PFRS 12 is applied.

(iv) PFRS 7 (Amendment), Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities (effective from January 1, 2013). The amendment requires
qualitative and quantitative disclosures relating to gross and net amounts of
recognized financial instruments that are set-off in  accordance with
PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation. The amendment also requires disclosure of
information about recognized financial mstruments subject to enforceable master
netting arrangements or similar agreements, even if they are not set-off in the
statement of financial position, including those which do not meet some or all of
the offsetting criteria under PAS 32, and amounts related to a financial collateral.
These disclosures will allow financial statement users to evaluate the effect or
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potential effect of netting arrangements, including rights of set-off associated with
recognized financial assets and financial liabilities on the entity’s financial position.
The Group does not expect this amendment to have a significant impact on its
consolidated financial statements. )

(v) PFRS 13, Fair Vaiue Measurement (effective from January 1, 2013). This standard
alms to Improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise
definition of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across PFRS. The requirements do not extend the use of fair
value accounting but provide guidance on how it should be applied where its use is
already required or permitted by other standards. The Group is yet to assess the
mmpact of this new standard.

(vi) PAS 32 (Amendment), Financial Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities (effective from January 1, 2014). The amendment provides
guidance to address inconsistencies in applying the criteria for offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities. Tt clarifies that a right of set-off is required to be
legally enforceable, in the normal course of business, in the event of default and in
the event of insolvency ot bankruptey of the entity and all of the counterparties.
The amendment also clarifies the principle behind net settlement and includes an

~ example of a gross settlement system with characteristics that would satisfy the
criterion for net settlement. The Group does not expect this amendment to have a
significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.

(viyP¥RS 9, Financial Instruments: Clarification  and  Measurement  (effective from
January 1, 2015). This 1s the first part of a new standard on classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilites that will replace
PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, in its entirety. This chapter
deals with two measurement categories for financial assets: amottized cost and fair
value. All equity instruments will be measured at fair value while debt instruments
will be measured at amortized cost only if the entity is holding it to collect
contractual cash flows which represent payment of principal and interest. The
accounting for embedded derivatives in host contracts that ate financial assets is
simplified by removing the requirement to consider whether or not they are closely
related, and, in most atrangement, does not require separation from the host
contract.

For liabilities, the standard retains most of the PAS 39 requirements which include
amortized-cost accounting for most financial Mabilities, with bifurcation of
embedded derivatives. The main change is that, in case where the fair value option
is taken for financial liabilities, the part of a fair value change due to an entity’s own
credit risk 1s recorded in other comprehensive income rather than in profit or loss,
unless this creates an accounting mismatch.

To date, other chapters of PFRS 9 dealing with impairment methodology and hedge
accounting are still being completed.
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Further, in November 2011, the IASB tentatively decided to consider making
limited modifications to IFRS 9’s financial asset classification model to address
certain application issues.

The Group does not expect to implement and adopt PFRS 9 until its effective date

"~ or until all chapters of this new standard have been published. In addition,
management is currently assessing the impact of PFRS 9 on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and is committed to conduct a comprehensive
study of the potential impact of this standard in the last quarter of 2014 before its
adoption in 2015 to assess the impact of all changes.

(vizi)Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for Construction of Real Estate. This
Philippine interpretation is based on IFRIC interpretation issued by the IASB in
July 2008  effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2009. The adoption of this interpretation in the Philippines, howevet,
was deferred by the FRSC and Philippine SEC after giving due considerations on
various application issues and the implication on this interpretation of the IASB's
.on-going revision of the Revenue Recognition standard. This interpretation
provides guidance on how to determine whether an agreement for the construction
of real estate is within the scope of PAS 11, Construction Contracts, ot PAS 18, Revene,
and accordingly, when revenue from the construction should be recognized. The

~ main expected change in practice is a shift from recognizing revenue using the
percentage of completion method (i.e., as a construction progresses, by reference to
the stage of completion of the development) to recognizing revenue at completion
upon or after delivery. The Group is currently evaluating the impact of this
interpretation on its consolidated financial statements in preparation for its
adoption when this becomes mandatorily effective in the Philippines.

(i) 2009-2011 Annual Improvements to PFRS. Annual itnprovements to PFRS (2009-
2011 Cycle) made minor amendments to a number of PFRS, which are effective for
annual period beginning on or after January 1, 2013. Among those improvements,
the following amendments are relevant to the Group but management does not
expect a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements:

(@) PAS 1 (Amendment), Presentation of Financial Statements — Clarification of the
Reguirements  for Comparative Information.  The amendment clarifies the
requirements for presenting comparative information for the following:

¢ Requirements for opening statement of financial position

If an entity applies an accounting policy retrospectively, or makes a
retrospective testatement or reclassification of items that has a material
effect on the information in the statement of financial position at the
beginning of the preceding period (ie., opening statement of financial
position), it shall present such third statement of financial position.

Other than disclosure of certain specified information in accordance with
PAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, related
16



notes to the opening statement of financial position as at the beginning of
the preceding period are not required to be presented.

® Requirements for additional comparative information beyond minimum
requirements

If an entity presented comparative information in the financial statements
beyond the minimum comparative information requirements, the
additional financial statements information should be presented in
accordance with PFRS including disclosure of comparative information in
the related notes for that additional information. Presenting additional
comparative information voluntarily would not trigger a requirement to
provide a complete set of financial statements.

(b) PAS 16 (Amendment), Property, Plant and Equipment — Classification of Servicing
Equipment.  The amendment addresses a perceived inconsistency in the
classification requirements for servicing equipment which resulted in classifying
servicing equipment as part of inventory when it is used for mote than one
period. It clarifies that items such as spate parts, stand-by equipment and
servicing equipment shall be recognized as property, plant and equipment
when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment, otherwise,
these are classified as inventory.

(c) PAS 32 (Amendment), Financial Instruments — Presentation — Tax Effect of
Distributions to Holders of Equity Instruments. The amendment clarifies that the
consequences of income tax relating to distributions to holders of an equity
instrument and to transaction costs of an equity transaction shall be accounted
for in accordance with PAS 12.  Accordingly, income tax relating to
distributions to holders of an equity instrument is recognized in profit or loss
while income tax related to the transaction costs of an equity transaction is
recognized in equity.

2.3 Basis of Consolidation

The Company obtains and exercises control through voting rights. The Group’s
consolidated financial statements comptise the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries
as enumerated in Note 1, after the elimination of material intercompany transactions. All

intercdmpany balances and transactions with subsidiaries, including income, expenses and
dividends, are eliminated in full. Unrealized profits and losses from intercompany
transactions that are recognized in assets are also eliminated in full. In addition, shares of
stock of the Company, if any, held by the subsidiaries are recognized as treasury stock and
these are presented as deduction in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Any
changes in the market values of such shares as recognized separately by the subsidiaries are
likewise eliminated in full. Intercompany losses that indicate impairment are recognized in
the consolidated financial statements.

Financial statements of entities in the Group that are prepared as of a date different from

that of the date of these consolidated financial statements were adjusted to recognize the
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effects of significant transactions or events that occur between that date of their reporting
period and the date of these consolidated financial statements. Adjustments are also made
to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Company accounts for its investments in subsidiaries, associates, interests in jointly
controlled operations and transactions with NCI as follows:

(@

(%)

Tnvestments in Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to control the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date the Group obtains control,
ditect ot indirect, until such time that such control ceases.

The acquisitton method is applied to account for acquired subsidiaries. This requires
recognizing and measuring the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and any
NCT in the acquiree. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is
the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests
ssued by the Group, if any. The consideration transferred also includes the fair value of
any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisitton-
related costs are expensed as incurred and subsequent change in the fair value of
contingent consideration is recognized directly in profit or loss.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognizes any NCI in the acquiree either at
fair value or at the NCP’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.
|

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any NCI in the acquitee and
the acquisition date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognized as
goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in
the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognized directly in profit or loss as

gan.

Tnvestments in Associates

Associates are those entities over which the Group is able to exert significant influence
but not control and which are neither subsidiaries nor interests in a joint venture.
Investments in associates are imitially recognized at cost and subsequently accounted for
using the equity method. '

Acquired investments in associates are also subject to purchase accounting. However,
any goodwill or fair value adjustment attributable to the share in the associates is
included in the amount recognized as investment in associates. All subsequent changes
to the share of interest in the equity of the associate are recognized in the carrying
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amount of the Group’s investment. Changes resulting from the profit or loss generated
by the associate are shown as Equity Share in Net Profits Losses of Associates in the
Group’s consolidated statement of comprehensive income and therefore affect the net
results of operations of the Group. These changes include subsequent depreciation,

amortization or impairment of the fair value adjustments of the associate’s assets and
liahbilities.

Changes resulting from other comprehensive income of the associates or items that have
been directly recognized in the associate’s equity, for example, resulting from the
assoclate’s accounting for AFS financial assets, are recognized in consolidated other
comprehensive income or equity of the Group, as applicable. Any non-income related
equity movements of the associate that arise, for example, from the distribution of
dividends or other transactions with the associate’s shareholders, are charged against the
proceeds received or granted. No effect on the Group’s net result or equity is
recognized in the course of these transactions. However, when the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments in behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group tesumes recognizing its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits exceeded the accumulated share of losses that has
previously not been recognized.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealized losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounfing policies of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Interests in Jointly Controlled Operations

For interest in jointly controlled operations, the Group recognizes in its consolidated
financial statements its share of the assets that it controls, the liabilites and the expenses
that it incurs and its share in the income from the sale of goods or services by the joint
venture. No adjustment or other consolidation procedures are tequired since the assets,
liabilities, income and expenses of the joint venture are recognized in the separate
financial statements of the venturers.

Transactions with NCI

The Group’s transactions with NCI that do not result in loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions — that is, as transaction with the owners of the Group in theit
capacity as owners. The difference between the fair value of any consideration paid and
the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of the net assets of the subsidiary is
recognized in equity. Disposals of equity investments to NCI result in gains and losses
for the Group that are also recognized in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control over a subsidiary, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the change in
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carrying amount recognized in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
ditectly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
pteviously recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

2.4 Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual terms of
the financial instrument. Financial assets other than those designated and effective as
hedging instruments are classified into the following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL), loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and
AFS financial assets. Financial assets are assigned to the different categories by management
on initial recognition, depending on the purpose for which the investments were acquired.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on their trade date. All
financial assets that are not classified as at FVIPL are initially recognized at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction costs. Financial assets cattied at FVTPL are initially
recorded at fair value and transaction costs related to it are recognized mn profit or loss.

The financial asset categories currently relevant to the Group are as follows:

(a)  Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable

payments that ate not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Group provides
money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivables.
They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the reporting period which are classified as non-current assets.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less impairment loss, if any. Impairment loss is provided when there is
objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due to it in
accordance with the original terms of the receivables. The amount of the impairment
loss is determined as the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.

The Group’s financial assets categorized as loans and receivables are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position as Cash and Cash Equivalents, Trade and
Other Receivables (except Advances to Contractors and Suppliers) and Advances to
Related Parties. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits and
short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less,
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk
of changes in value.
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(b) _AES Financial Assets

This category includes non-derivative financial assets that are either designated to this
category ot do not qualify for inclusion in any of the other categoties of financial assets.
They are classified as non-current assets in the consolidated statement of financial
position unless management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months from
the reporting period. The Group’s AFS financial assets include proprietary golf club
membership shares and are presented as part of the Other Non-current Assets account
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

All financial assets within this category are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains
and losses from changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income, net
of any income tax effects, and are reported as part of the Unrealized Losses on AFS
Financial Assets account in equity. When the financial asset is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, the cumulative fair value gains or losses recognized in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and is presented as
reclassification adjustment within other comprehensive income.

Reversal of impairment losses are recognized in other comprehensive income, except for
financial assets that are debt securities which are recognized in profit or loss only if the
reversal can be objectively related to an event occutring aftet the impairment loss was

recognized.

All income and expenses, if any, including impairment losses, relating to financial assets that
are recognized in profit or loss are presented as part of Finance Costs or Finance Income in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

For investments that are actively traded in organized financial markets, if any, fair value is
determined by reference to exchange-quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the
reporting period. For investments where there is no quoted market price, fair value is
determined by reference to the cutrent market value of another instrument which is
substantially the same or is calculated based on the expected cash flows of the underlying net
asset base of the investment.

Non-compounding mnterest, dividend income and other cash flows resulting from holding
financial assets are recognized in profit or loss when eatned, regardless of how the related
carrying amount of financial assets is measured.

The financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from

the financial instruments expire, or when the financial assets and all substantial risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred.

2.5 Real Estate Transactions

Acquisition costs of raw land intended for future development, including other costs and
expenses incurred to effect the transfer of ttle of the property to the Group, are charged to
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the Land for Future Development account. These costs are teclassified to Property
Development Costs account when the development of the property starts. Related property
development costs are then accumulated in this account. Borrowing costs on cettain loans,
if any, incurred during the development of the real estate properties are also capitalized by
the Group as patt of Property Development Costs.

The cost of real estate property sold before completion of the development, if any, is
determined based on the actual costs incurred to date plus estimated costs to complete the
development of the property. The estimated expenditures for the development of sold real
estate property, as determined by the project engineers, are charged to the cost of residential
and condominium units sold presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income with a corresponding credit to the liability account, Reserve for Property
Development account.

Costs of properties and projects accounted for as Land for Future Development, Property
Development Costs and Real Estate and Resort Shares for Sale are assigned using specific
identification of their individual costs. These properties and projects arc valued at the lower
of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs to complete and the estimated costs
necessaty to make the sale.

The Group recognizes the effect of revisions in the total project cost estimates in the year in
which these changes become known. Any impairment loss from a real estate project is

charged to operations during the period in which the loss is determined.

Revenue and cost relative to forfeited or back-out sales are reversed in the current year as
they occur.

2.6 Prepayments and Other Assets

Prepayments and other assets pertain to other resources controlled by the Group as a result
of past events. They are recognized in the consolidated financial statements when it is
probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the entity and the asset has a cost or
value that can be measured reliably.

Other recognized assets of similar nature, where future economic benefits are expected to
flow to the Group beyond one year after the end of the repotting period (or in the normal

operating cycle of the business, if longer), are classified as non-cutrent assets.

2.7 Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, except land, are catried at acquisition or construction cost less
subsequent depreciation, amortization and any impairment losses. As no finite useful life for
land can be determined, related carrying amount are not depreciated. Land is stated at cost
less any impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for additions, majot
improvements and renewals are capitalized; expenditures for repairs and maintenance are
charged to expenses as incutred.
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Depreciation and amortization 1s computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Building 50 years

Building and office improvements 5-10 years
Office furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-5 years
Transportation and other equipment 5 years

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

The residual values and estimated useful lives of propetty and equipment ate reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An item of property and equipment, including the related accumulated depreciation,
amortization and impairment losses, is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain ot
loss atising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the
year the item is derecognized.

Fully depreciated and amortized assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in
use and no further charge for depreciation is made in respect of those assets.

2.8 Investment Property

Investment property consists of parcels of land and buildings held for lease. Buildings are
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. Land is stated at
cost less any impairment losses. '

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable expenditure.
Expendltures for additions, major improvements and renewals are capitalized; expenditures
for repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred.

Amortization is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the assets
as follows:

Land development and improvements 20 vears
Building and improvements 10-50 vears

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greatet than its recoverable amount.

Transfers to, or from, investment property shall be made when and only when there is 2
change in use.
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An item of investment propetty is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to atise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the profit or loss in the year the item is
derecognized.

2.9 Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities, which include Trade and Other Payables (except tax-related labilities, 1f
any), Advances from Related Parties, Due to Joint Venture Partners and Redeemable
Preferred Shares, are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual terms
of the instrument. All interest-related charges, if any, incurred on financial liability are
recognized as an expense in profit or loss under the caption Finance Costs in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities are recognized initially at their fair values and subsequently measured at
amortized cost less settlement payments.

Preferred shares, which catry 2 mandatory coupon or are redeemable on specific date or at the
option of the shareholder, ate classified as financial liabilities and presented as a separate line
item in the consolidated statement of financial position as Redeemable Preferred Shares.

Dividend distributions to shareholders, if any, ate recognized as financial liabilities when the
dividends are approved by the BOD. The dividends on the redeemable preferred shares of a
subsidiaty are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as interest
expense on an amortized cost basis using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are classified as current habilities if payment is due to be settled within one
year or less after the reporting period (or in the normal operating cycle of the business, if
longer), or the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the hability
for at least twelve months aftet the reporting period. Otherwise, these are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Financial liabilities are detecognized from the consolidated statement of financial position only
when the obligations ate extinguished either through discharge, cancellation or expiration.

2.10 Business Combination

Business acquisitions are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting .
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Goodwill, if any, represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, goodwill, if any, is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.

Negative goodwill, which is the excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of net
identifiable assets acquired over acquisition cost, is charged directly to income.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units or
groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination
in which the goodwill arose. The cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units
are identified according to operating segment.

Gains and losses on the disposal of an interest in a subsidiary include the catrying amount of
goodwill relating to it.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquirer is required to remeasure its
previously held equity interest in the acquiree at its acquisition-date fair value and recognize
the resulting gain or loss, if any, in the profit or loss or other comprehensive income, as
appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferted by the Group is recognized at fair value at
the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration
that is deemed to be an asset or lability is recognized in accordance with
PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, either in profit or loss or
as a change to other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

211 Segment Rep_orﬁng

Opetating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the Group’s BOD; its chief operating decision-maker. The BOD is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.

In identifying its operating segments, management generally follows the Group’s products and

service lines as disclosed in Note 4, which represent the main products and setvices provided
by the Group.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each of these service lines requires
different resoutces as well as marketing approaches. All inter-segment transfers are carried out
at arm’s length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for segment reporting is the same as those used in
its consolidated financial statements. In addition, corporate assets which are not directly

attributable to the business activities of any operating segment ate not allocated to a segment.
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There have been no changes from ptior periods in the measurement methods used to
determine reported segment profit or loss.

2.12 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions ate tecognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of
economic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the
outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or
constructive commitment that has resulted from past events.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation,
based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting period, including the
risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Where there are a number of
similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement 1s determined
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. When time value of money is material, long-
term provisions ate discounted to their present values using a pretax rate that reflects matket
assessments and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to
passage of time is recognized as interest expense. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each
repotting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present
obligations is considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for cannot be
measured reliably, no liability is recognized in the consolidated financial statements. Similarly,
possible inflows of economic benefits to the Group that do not yet meet the recognition
criteria of an asset are considered contingent assets, hence, are not recognized in the
consolidated financial statements. On the other hand, any reimbursement that the Group can
be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect to the obligation 1s recognized as a
separate asset not exceeding the amount of the related provision.

2.13 Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities, patticularly advances to and from related parties, are set-off and
.the resulting net amount is reported in the consolidated statements of financial position when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.14 Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenue is measured by reference to the fair value of consideration received or receivable by
the Group for goods sold and services rendered, excluding value-added tax (VAT).

Revenue is recognized to the extent that the revenue can be reliably measured; it is probable

that future economic benefits will flow to the Group; and the costs incurred or to be incurred '
can be measured reliably. In additon, the following specific recognition ctiteria must also be

met before revenue is recognized:

(a)  Real estate sales — For financial reporting purposes, revenues from transactions covering
sales of real estate are recognized under the percentage-of-completion method. Under
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(e)

this method, realization of gross profit is recognized by reference to the stage of
development of the properties, 1.e., revenue is recognized in the period in which the
work 1s performed. The unrealized gross profit on a period’s sales is presented as
Deferred Gross Profit on Real Estate Sales in the consclidated statement of
comprehensive income; the cumulative unrealized gross profit as of the end of the year
is shown as Deferred Income on Real Estate Sales in the consolidated statement of
financial position. '

The sale is recognized when a certain percentage of the total contract price has already
been collected. If the transaction does not yet qualify as sale, the deposit method is
applied until all conditions for recording the sale are met. Pending the recognition of
sale, payments received from buyer are initially recorded as part of Customers’
Deposits account in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Revenues on sales of undeveloped land and golf and tesort shates for sale, on the other
hand, are recognized using the full accrual method. Under the full accrual method,
revenue is recognized when the risks and rewards of ownership in the undeveloped
land and golf and resort shares have passed to the buyer and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably. Revenues and costs relative to forfeited or back out sales are
reversed in the current year as they occur.

Any adjustments relative to ptevious periods’ sales are recorded in the current period as
they occur.

For tax reporting purposes, a modified basis of computing the taxable income for the
petiod based on collections from sales is used by the Group.

Maintenance income — Revenue is recognized when performance of mutually agreed tasks
has been rendered.

Rental income and hotel operations — Revenue is recognized when the performance of
contractually agreed tasks has been substantially rendered. Rental income is recognized
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Advance rentals received ate recorded as
deferred rental income. For tax purposes, rental income is recognized based on the
contractual terms of the lease.

Interest — Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues taking into account the effective
yield on the asset.

Dividends — Revenue is recorded when the stockholders’ right to receive the payment is
established.

Cost of real estate sales before completion of the projects include the acquisition
cost of the land, development costs incurred to date, applicable borrowing costs
and estimated costs to complete the project, determined based on estimates made by the
project engineers on the stage of completion of the real estate project.

Cost and expenses and other costs (other than costs of real estate sold) are recognized in
profit or loss upon utilization of the services or goods or at the date they are incurred. All
finance costs are reported in profit or loss on an accrual basis, except capitalized borrowing
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costs which are included as part of the cost of the related qualifying asset.

2.15 Operating I .cases

The Group accounts for its leases as follows:
(a) Group as Lessee

Leases which do not transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments (net
of any incentive received from the lessor) are recognized as expense i profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Associated costs, such as repairs and
maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred.

()  Group as Lessor

Leases which do not transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease income from operating
leases is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group determines whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease based on the substance
of the arrangement. It makes an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is

dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangemient conveys a right to use
the asset.

2.16 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

‘The accounting records of the Group are maintained in Philippine pesos. Foreign cutrency
transactions during the year are translated into the functional currency at exchange rates which
approximate those prevailing on transaction dates.

Foreign currency gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of income or loss from operations.

2.17 Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Group’s Investments in Associates, Investment Property, Property and Equipment and
other non-financial assets are subject to impatrment testing whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be tecoverable. For purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result, assets are tested for impairment
either dividually or at the cash-generating unit level.

Irhpairment loss 1s recognized for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount which is the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use. In determining value in use, management estimates the
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expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and determines the suitable
interest rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data used for
impairment testing procedures ate ditectly linked to the Group’s latest approved budget,
adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects of asset enhancements. Discount factors are
determined individually for each cash-generating unit and reflect management’s assessment
of respective risk profiles, such as market and asset-specific risk factors.

All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously
recognized may no longer exist and the carrying amount of the asset is adjusted to the
recoverable amount resulting in the reversal of impairment loss.

2.18 Employee Benefits
(a)  Defined Benefit Plan

The Group has an unfunded, non-conttibutory defined benefit plan covering all regular
employees.

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment plan that defines an amount of
post-employment benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and salary. The legal
obligation for any benefits from this kind of post-employment plan remains with the
entity, even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have been acquired. Plan
assets may include assets specifically designated to a long-term benefit fund, as well as
qualifying insurance policies. The Group’s defined benefit post-employment plan
covers all regular full-time employees.

The liability recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position for defined
benefit post-employment plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation
(DBO) at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets, together with
adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The
DBO is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit
method. The present value of the DBO is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using interest rates detived from the interest rates of a zeto
coupon government bonds as published by the Philippine Dealing and Exchange
Corporation that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and

that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related post-employment
liability.

Actuarial gains and losses are not recognized as an income or expense unless the total
unrecognized gain or loss exceeds 10% of the greater of the obligation and related plan
assets. The amount exceeding this 10% corridor is charged or credited to profit or loss
over the employees’ expected average remaining working lives. Actuarial gains and
losses within the 10% corridor are disclosed separately. Past-service costs are
recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the changes to the post-employment
plan are conditional on the employees remaining in service for a specified petiod of
time (the vesting period). In this case, the past-service costs are amortized on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period.
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(b)  Termination Benefits

Termination benefits ate payable when employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retitement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Company recogmzes termination benefits when it 1s
demonstrably committed to either: (i) terminating the employment of current
employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal; or (i)
providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.

(¢} Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days (including
holiday entitlement) remaining at the end of the reporting period. They are included in
the Trade and Other Payables account of the consolidated statement of financial
position at the undiscounted amount that the Group expects to pay as a result of the
unused entitlement.

2.19 Share-based Employee Remuneration

The Company grants shate options to key executive officers eligible under a stock option
plan. The setvices received in exchange for the grant, and the corresponding share options,
are valued by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted at grant date. This
fair value excludes the impact of non-matket vesting conditions (for example profitability
and sales growth targets and petformance conditions), if any. The share-based remuneration
is recognized as an expense in profit or loss and the corresponding share option is presented
as Shate Options Outstanding account in the equity section of the consolidated statement of
financial position.

‘The expense is recognized during the vesting period based on the best available estimate of
the number of share options expected to vest. The estimate is subsequently revised, if
necessary, such that it equals the number that ultimately vest on vesting date. No
subsequent adjustment is made to expense after vesting date, even if share options are
ultimately not exercised.

Upon exetcise of share option, the proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs up to the nominal value of the shares issued are allocated to capital stock
with any excess being recorded as additional paid-in capital (APIC), and the cost of the stock
option under Shate Options Qutstanding account is reclassified to APIC.

2.20 Borrowing Costs

For financial reporting purposes, borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period
in which they are incurred, except to the extent that they are capitalized. Borrowing costs

30



that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset (i.e., an asset that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use ot
sale) are capitalized as part of cost of such asset. The capitalization of borrowing costs
commences when expenditutes for the asset and borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalization ceases when substantially all such activities are complete. For income tax
" putposes, interest and other borrowing costs are charged to expense as incurred.

2.21 Related Party Relationships and Transactions

Related patty transactions are transfers of resources, services or obligations between the Group
and its related partties, regardless whether a price is charged.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
These parties include: (a) individuals owning, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, control or are controlled by, or under common control with the Group; (b)
associates; and, (c) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of
the Group that gives them significant influence over the Group and close members of the
family of any such individual.

In consideting each possible related patty relationship, attention is directed to the substance of
the relationship and not merely on the legal form.

2.22 Equity

Capital stock represents the nominal value of shares that have been 1ssued.

APIC represents premium received on the initial issuance of capital stock. Any transaction
costs associated with the issuance of shares are deducted from APIC, net of any related income

tax benefits.

Share options outstanding represents the corresponding credit upon recognition of
share-based remuneration expense in profit or loss.

Unrealized losses on AFS financial assets tepresent losses recognized due to changes in fair
values of these assets.

Retained earnings represent all current and priot period tesults of operations as tepotted in the
profit or loss section of the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, reduced by the
amounts of dividends declared, if any.

2.23 Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is determined by dividing the consolidated net profit by the weighted
average number of common shares subscribed and issued during the year, after giving
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retroactive effect to any stock dividends, stock split or reverse stock split declared in the
current yeat.

Diluted earnings per share is computed in the same manner as the basic earnings per shate and
assuming further that at the beginning of the year or at the time of issuance during the year, all
outstanding convertible instruments were converted to common stock and the conversion
would result to a decrease in the basic earnings per share or increase in the basic loss per share.

2.24 Income Taxes

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax
not recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, if any.

Cutrent tax assets or liabilities comptise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal authorities
relating to the cutrent or ptior reporting petiod, that are uncollected or unpaid at the reporting
petiod. These are calculated using the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to
which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets ot
liabilities are recognized as a component of tax expense in profit or loss.

Defetred tax is accounted for using the liability method on temporary differences at the end of
the reporting period between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes. Under the lability method, with certain exceptions, deferred
tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences and the carryforward of unused tax losses
and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities ate measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
petiod when the asset is realized or the liability 1s settled provided such tax rates have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Most changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax expense
in profit or loss. Only changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities that relate to items
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in' equity are recognized in other
comptehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the Group has a legally enforceable
right to set off curtrent tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes telate to

the same entity and the same taxation authority.

2.25 Events After the Reporting Period

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Group’s consolidated
financial position at the end of the reporting petiod (adjusting event) is reflected in the
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consolidated financial statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events, if any,
are disclosed when material to the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The Group’s consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with PFRS require
management to make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and related notes. Judgments and estimates are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
futute events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may
ultimately vary from these estimates.

3.1 Critical Management Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following judgments, apart from those mvolving
estimation, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
consolidated financial statements:

(a) Distinction between Investment Property, Ouwner-occupied Properties and Land for Future
Development )

The Group determines whether an asset qualifies as an item of investment property,
ownet-occupied property or land for future development. In making its judgment, the
Group considers whether the property generates cash flows largely independently of the
other assets held by an entity. Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows that ate
attributable not only to property but also to other assets used in the operations of the
Group or for administrative purposes while Land for Future Development ate
properties intended solely for future development.

Some properties comptise a portion that is held to eatn rental or for capital appreciation
and another portion that is held for administrative purposes. If these portions can be
sold separately (ot leased out separately under finance lease), the Group accounts for the
pottions separately. If the portions cannot be sold separately, the property is accounted
for as investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for administrative
purposes. Judgment is applied in determining whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as investment property. The Group
considers each property separately in making its judgment.
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(¢

Distinction between Operating and Finance Leases

The\Group has entered into vatious lease agreements. Critical judgment was exercised
by management to distinguish each lease agreement as either an operating or a finance
lease by looking at the transfer or retention of significant risk and rewards of ownership
of the properties covered by the agreements. Failure to make the right judgment will
result in either overstatement or understatement of assets and liabilities.

Recognition of Provisions and Contingencies

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and
contingencies.

3.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of

causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year:

(@)

®)

Determining Net Realizable Value of Real Fstate and Resort Shares For § a?e, Property Developmeent
Costs and Land For Future Development

In determining the net tealizable value of real estate and resort shares for sale, propetty
development costs and land for future development, management takes into account the
most reliable evidence available at the times the estimates are made. The future
realization of the catrying amounts of these assets is affected by price changes in the
different matket segments as well as the trends in the real estate industry. These are
considered key sources of estimation and uncettainty and may cause significant
adjustments to the Group’s Real Estate and Resort Shares for Sale, Property
Development Costs and Land For Future Development within the next financial petiod.

Considering the Group’s pricing policy, the net realizable values of real estate and resort
shares for sale, property development costs and land for future development are higher
than their related cartying values as of the end of the reporting periods.

Fair Value of Stock Option

The Company estimates the fair value of the executive stock option by applying an
option valuation model, taking into account the terms and conditions on which the
executive stock optton were granted.

The fair value of the executive stock option recognized as part of salaries and employee
benefits shown under Operating Expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income A corresponding credit to Share Options Outstanding of the

same amount is presented in the equity portion of the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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Fair Valne of Measurement of Invesiment Property

Investment Property ate measured using the cost model. The fair value disclosed in
Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements is estimated by the Group using the fair
value of similar properties in the same location and condition. The Group uses
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each
reporting period.

Estimating Useful Lives of Investment Property and Property and Equipment

The Group estimates the useful lives of investment property and property and
equipment based on the period over which the assets are expected to be available for
use. The estimated useful lives of investment property and property and equipment are
reviewed petiodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due
to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits
on the use of the assets.  Actual results, however, may vary due to changes in estimates
brought about by changes in factors mentioned above.

Impairment of Trade and Other Receivables

Adequate amount of allowance is made and provided for specific and groups of
accounts, where objective evidence of impairment exists. The Group evaluates the
amount of allowance for impairment based on available facts and circumstances
affecting the collectibility of the accounts, including, but not limited to, the length of the
Group’s relationship with the customers, the customers’ current credit status based on
known market forces, average age of accounts, collection experience and historical loss
experience.

Determining the Realizable Amount of Deferred Tax Assets

The Group reviews its deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period and
reduces the cartying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
Management assessed that the deferred tax assets recognized as at
March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 will be fully utilized within the next two to three
years.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

PFRS requires that an impairment teview be performed when certain impairment
indicators are present. Though management believes that the assumptions used in the
estimation of fair values reflected in the consolidated financial statements are
appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in these assumptions may materially
affect the assessment of recoverable values and any resulting impairment loss could have
a material adverse effect on the results of operations.
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Valuation of Post-employment Benefit

The determination of the Group’s obligation and cost of post-employment defined
benefit is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in
calculating such amounts. Those assumptions include, among others, discount rates,
expected rate of return on plan assets, salary rate increase, and employee turnover. In
accordance with PFRS, actual results that differ from the assumptions are accumulated
and amortized over future periods and therefore, generally affect the recognized expense
and recorded obligation in such future periods.

Revenue Recognition Using the Perventage-of-Complerion Method

'The Group uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for its realized
gross profit on real estate sales. The use of the percentage-of-completion method
tequires the Group to estimate the portion completed using relevant information such as
costs incurred to date as a proportion of the total budgeted cost of the project and
estimates by engineers and other experts. There were no changes in the assumptions or
basis for estimation during the period.

Segment revenue and segment results for business segments or geographical segments,

whichever is the enterprise’s primary basis of segment reporting.

The following table present revenue and income information for the 1st quarter ended March

31, 2013 and 2012.

March 31, 2013

{(Amount in thousands)
Sales of Real " Service and

Estate Rental Total
Revenue R229 482 248,503 B277,985
Cost of sales and services 93,043 25,083 118,126
Gross profit 136,439 23,420 159,859
Realized gross profit - net 27,161 - 27,161
Realized gross profit 2163,600 P23,420 2187,020
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March 31, 2012

(Amount in thousands)
Sales of Real Service and

Estate Rental Total
-Revenue P191,604 B62,746 P254,350
Cost of sales and setvices 99,655 36,228 135,883
Gross profit 91,949 26,518 118,467
Realized gross profit — net 62,610 - 62,610
Realized gross profit B154,559 B26,518 P181,077

Material events subsequent to the end of the interim period that have not been reflected in

the financial statements for the period.

There have been no material events that happened subsequent to the interim period that need
disclosure herein.

Effect of changes in the composition of the enterprise during the interim period, including
business combinations, acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and long-term investments,

restructurings, and discontinuing operation.
Not applicable.

7. Changes in contingent liabilities or contingent assets since the last annual balance sheet date

‘The Company is a party to certain lawsuits or claims arising from the ordinary course of business
and from several of its joint venture agreements. The Group’s management and legal counsels
believe that the eventual liabilities under these lawsuits or claims, if any, will not have a material
effect on the consolidated financial statements, and thus, no provision has been made for these
contingent liabilities.

8. Existence of material contingencies and any other events or transactions that are material to

10.

1.

an understanding of current interim period.
‘There have been no material contingencies and any other events or transactions that are material

to an understanding of current interim period.

Any events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligations that is material to the

company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.
There have been no events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligations that is

material to the company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

All _material off-balance sheet transactions, atrrangements, obligations (including contingent
obligations), and_other relationships_of the company with unconsolidated entities or other

persons created during the reporting period.
There have been no material off-balance sheet transactions and other relationships of the
company with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

Dividends paid separately for ordinary shares and other shares
Not applicable.
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12. Seasonality or cyclicality of interim operations
Not applicable

13. Nature and amount of items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income, or cash flows that ate
unusual because of thelr nature, size and incidence,

Not applicable

14. Issuances, repurchases, and repayments of debt and equity securities

There have been no issuance, repurchase and repayment of debt and equity securities for the
petiod.

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s financial insttuments comptise of cash, short-term bank deposits and investments.

Exposures to credit and liquidity risk atise in the normal course of the Group’s business activities.
The main objectives of the Group’s financial risk management are as follows:

1. To identify and monitor such risks on an ongoing basis;
2. To minimize and mitigate such nisks; and
3 To provide a degree of certainty about costs.

Credit Risk

The investment of the Group’s cash resources is managed so as to minimize risk while seeking to
enhance yield. The Group’s holding of cash and marketable securities expose the Group to credit
tisk of the counterparty if the counterparty is unwilling ot unable to fulfill its obligations, and the
Group consequently suffers financial loss. Credit risk management involves entering into financial
instruments only with counterparties with acceptable credit standing. The treasury policy sets
aggregate credit limits of any one counterparty and annually reviews the exposure limits and credit
ratings of the counterparties.

‘The Group has credit management policies in place to ensure that rental contracts are entered into
with customers who have sufficient financial capacity and good credit history.

Sales to buyers of teal estate which are collectible on installment are relatively risk-free. Sales to real
estate buyers are documented under Contract to Sell agreements which allow cancellation of the sale
and forfeiture of payments made in the event of default by buyers. Transfer of title 1s made to
buyers only upon full payment of the account.

Receivable balances ate being monitored on a regular basis to ensure timely execution of necessary
intervention efforts.
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Liquidity Risk

The Group monitors its cash flow position, debt maturity profile and overall liquidity position in
assessing its exposure to liquidity risk.

The Group has no bank debt and has reduced payables to suppliers, contractors and other creditors
~ via asset swap arrangements utilizing the Group’s real estate and golf and resort shates inventory.

As a matter of policy, no new bank debt shall be secured unless for project development putrposes
which are expected to provide sufficient cash flows to ensure repayment.

Ioterest Rate Risk

The Group has no significant exposure to interest rate risk as financial assets and liabilities are non-
interest bearing (trade and other receivables and payables).

Currently, the Group has no outstanding interest beating loans from any financial institution.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Most of the Group’s transactions ate cartied out in Philippine pesos, its functional cutrency. The
currency exchange rates arise from Group’s United States (U.S.) dollar-denominated cash and cash
equivalents. '

Management assessed that the foreign currency risks related to these U.S. dollar-denominated cash
and cash equivalents to be not material.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall financing structure, i.e., equity and
financial liabilites. The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light
of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In otder to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shates ot sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the cartying amount of equity as presented on the face

of the consolidated statements of financial position. Capital for the teporting pettods under review
is summarized as follows:

March 2013 December 2012

‘Total Liabilities P 7,497,352,931 P7,025,253,985
Total Equity 17,743.631,568 17,592,403,324
Debt-to—equity ratio 0.42:1 0.40:1
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CATEGORIES AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a lability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties 1 an arm’s length transaction. In determining the fair value of its
financial assets and liabiliies, the Company takes into account its current circumstances and the
costs that would be incurred to exchange or settle the underlying financial assets and liabilities.

The catrying amounts and fair value of the categoties of financial assets and liabilities presented in
the consolidated financial statement of financial position are shown below:

Figures in thousands

March 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Yalues Values Values WValues
Financial assets
Loans and receivables:

Cash and cash cquivalents P 485,073 P 485,073 P 466,230 P 466,230
Trade and other receivables - net 2,131,668 2,131,668 1,986,921 1,986,921
Advances to related parties 973,614 973,614 930,172 930,172
3,590,355 3,590,355 3,383 323 3,383,323
AFS financial assets 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250

E___3591,605 P__2591605 P__ 3,384,575 P 3,384,573

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2012
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Values Values Values Values
Financial liabilities
Financia! liabilities at
amottized cost:
Trade and other payables P 2,044,845 P 2,044,845 P 2,006419 P 2,006,419
Advances from related parties 1,310,681 1,310,681 1,045,854 1,045,854
Due to joint venture partners 218,733 218,733 214,397 214,397
Redeemable preferred shares 1,257,988 1,257,988 1,257,988 1,257,988
Accrued interest on preferred shares 18346 _ 18346 ___ 10483 10,483

P 4850503 P 4,850,593 P 4535141 P 4,535,141

See notes to financial statements 2.4 and 2.9 for a description of the accounting policies for each
category of financial instrument. A description of the Group’s risk management objectives and
policies for financial instruments is provided in page 38.

The Group does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes.
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GLOBAL-ESTATE RESCRTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF MARCH 31, 2013
{Artount in Thousands)

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash equivalent
Trade and other receivables - net
Advances to related parties
Real cstate, golf and resort shares for sale-net
Property Development Costs
Prepayments and other current assets

Taotal Cucrent Asscts

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Trade-and other receivables - net
Advances to real estate property cwners
Land for future development
Investment in associates
Investment Propertics - net
Property and equipment - net
Other non-current assets

Total Non-current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Custorner's deposit
Advances from related parties
Reserve for property development
Deferred income on real estate sales

Total Current Liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Due to joint venture partners
Redeemable preferred shares
Reserve for property development
Deferred ineome on teal estate sales
Defereed tax habilines-net
Retirement benefit obliganon
Other non-current liabilines

Total Non-current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
EQUITY
Equity attributable to parent company's shareholder
Nen-controlling interest

Tatal, Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Unaudited Audited

Mar-13 December 2012
485,073 466,230
1,141,386 1,127,461
973,614 930,172
8,323,663 7,802,354
2,068,542 1,943,663
900,430 909,001
13,892,708 13,178 851
990,283 $59,460
1,073,257 1,066,413
7,391,487 7,644,655
739,379 740,852
358,792 359,864
679,444 661,783
115,634 105,745
11,348,276 11,438,776
25,240,984 24,617,657
2,044 845 2,006,419
561,434 549,604
1,310,681 1,045,854
63,665 50,525
334,491 305,237
4,315,116 3,057,729
218,733 214,397
1,257,088 1,257,988
702,502 673,397
577,773 553,162
153,265 125,180
63,018 63,018
208,958 180,383
3,182,237 3,067,525
7,497,353 7,025,254
14,182,335 14,089,008
3,561,296 3,503,395
17,743,631 17,592,403
25,240,984 24,617,657
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GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE PERIOD 1Q2013 VS. 1Q2012
(Amount in Thousands}

REVENUES
Real Estate Sales
Realized gross profic on prior years' real cstate sales
Service and rental income
Hotel Operations
Eguity in net earnings (losses) of associates,
interest and other income

COST AND EXPENSES
Cost of real estate sales
Deferred gross profit on rcal cstate sales
Cost of hotel operations
Cost of services
Operating expenscs
Interest and other charpes
Income tax expense

Net Profit (Loss)

Other Comprehensive Loss
Revaluation reserve

Total Comprehensive Income {Loss)
Net profit (loss) attributable to:

Parent Company's shareholder
Non-controlling interest

Total Comprehensive Income(loss) attributable to:
Parent Company's shareholders
Non-controlling interest

Earnings per share

Annex A-2
1st quarter Ist quarter
2013 2012
229,482 191,604
27,161 62,610
48,503 62,746
72,564 27,038
58,650 34,922
436,360 378,920
93,043 99,655
88221 59,066
22,857 6,727
25,083 16,228
80,269 91,688
13,051 15,199
32,882 19,568
355 406 328,131
80,954 50,789
(2,162) (2.162)
78,792 48,627
82,927 56,904
{1,973 {6,115)
" 80,954 50,789
80,765 54,742
(1,973 (6,115)
78,792 48,627
0.0098 0.0068



GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(Amount in Thousands)

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO PARENT
COMPANY'S SHAREHOLDER

CAPITAL STOCK
ADDITIONAL PAID IN CAPITAI,

SHARE OPTION OUTSTANDING
REVALUATION RESERVE
RETAINED EARNINGS

MINORITY INTEREST

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Annex A-3

1st quarter

1st quarter

2013 2012
8,486,000 8,356,000
1,597,739 1,597,739
49,947
(2,132) (2,132)
4,050,781 3,729,898
14,182,335 13,681,505
3,561,296 2,259,051
17,743,631 15,940,556




GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
{Amounts in Thotusands)

Net Income before tax

Add(less)

Interest expense

Amortization of deferred interest

Depreciation and amortization

lnterest income

Equity in net eamings (loss) of associates

Operating Income(loss) before working capital changes

Net Changes in Operating Assety and Liabilities
Decrease(Increasc) curcent and non current asset
(Decrease)Increase current and non current liabilities

Cash paid for income taxes

Cash from(used in) Operating Activities

Cash from{used in} Investing Activities

Cash from (used in) Financing Activities

Net Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year

.Annex A-4

Mar-13 Mar-12

113,836 70,357
8,089 5,857
4,962 9,342
8,337 4,327
(6,299 (8,262)
1,473 1,767
130,398 83,388
(501,885) (311,815
161,800 128,215
{4,798) {6,958)
(214,485) (107,170)
(31,499 (91,851)
264,827 (14,865)
18,843 {213,886)
466,230 993,080
485,073 779,194




GLOBAL-ESTATE RESORTS, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES

AGING OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
AS OF MARCH 31, 2013

{Amounts in Thousands)

1 Aging of Accounts Receivable

Annex A-5

Type of receivables: TOTAL

CURRENT/NGT
YET DUE

1 Month

2-3 Months

4-6 Months

7 Months to 1
Year

1-2 Years

3-5 Years

a. Trade/Other Receivable 2,131,669

1,913,310

107,363

66,774

40,569

3,653

Net Receivable 2,131,669




